

## COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT



AND

LEAGUE of VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS & HOMES of NEW YORK

2021 - 2024



# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

AND



October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE I Recognition - The Collective Bargaining Unit	8
ARTICLE II Union Security	9
ARTICLE III Check-Off	10
ARTICLE IV No Discrimination	
ARTICLE V Union Activity, Visitation and Bulletin Boards	13
ARTICLE VI Joint Employment Service	14
ARTICLE VII Probationary Employees	15
ARTICLE VIII Temporary Employees	16
ARTICLE VIIIA Vacancies and Emergency Vacancies	17
ARTICLE IX Seniority	
ARTICLE IXA Employment Security and Job Security Fund	23
ARTICLE IXB Consolidation of Departments and Mergers	37
ARTICLE X Wages and Minimums	
ARTICLE XI Hours	
ARTICLE XII Weekend Scheduling	
ARTICLE XIII Overtime	
ARTICLE XIV Shifts and Shift Differentials	62
ARTICLE XV Holidays	62
ARTICLE XVI Vacations	64
ARTICLE XVII Sick Leave	
ARTICLE XVIII Paid Leave	
ARTICLE XIX Unpaid Leave	
ARTICLE XX Past Practices	71
ARTICLE XXI Severance Pay	
ARTICLE XXII League/ 1199SEIU Training and Upgrading Fund	71
ARTICLE XXIII Benefit Fund	72
ARTICLE XXIV Pension	75
ARTICLE XXV Enforcement of Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV,	
XXXVII and XLII (the Funds)	
ARTICLE XXVI Uniforms	
ARTICLE XXVII Management Rights	
ARTICLE XXVIII Resignation	
ARTICLE XXIX Discharge and Penalties	
ARTICLE XXX No Strike or Lockout	
ARTICLE XXXI Grievance Procedure	
ARTICLE XXXIA Mediation	
ARTICLE XXXIB Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee	
ARTICLE XXXII Arbitration	
ARTICLE XXXIII Effect of Legislation - Separability	
ARTICLE XXXIV Individual Stipulations	92

ARTICLE XXXV Supersedes MOA	92
ARTICLE XXXVI Negotiation of Local Issues	
ARTICLE XXXVII Child Care	93
ARTICLE XXXVIII Housing	93
ARTICLE XXXIX Health and Safety Create a Safe and	
Healthy Workplace	93
ARTICLE XL Local/Institution Labor Management Committees	94
ARTICLE XL(A) Professional/Technical Practice Committees	94
ARTICLE XLI Leon J. Davis/Martin Cherkasky Quality Care	
Committee	95
ARTICLE XLII LMI Fund	95
ARTICLE XLIII Effective Dates and Duration	95
EXHIBIT A CHECK-OFF AUTHORIZATION	98
EXHIBIT B 1199 SEIU FEDERAL CREDIT UNION CHECK-OFF	
AUTHORIZATION	99
EXHIBIT C POLITICAL ACTION FUND CHECK-OFF	
AUTHORIZATION	
EXHIBIT D MUNICIPAL AFFILIATES	101
EXHIBIT E FUND ISSUES	
ATTACHMENT 1 TO SIDE LETTER FUND DIVERSIONS	105
EXHIBIT F RESIDUAL JOB CLASSIFICATIONS	106
EXHIBIT G QCC LANGUAGE APPLICABLE TO NURSING HOMI	E
EMPLOYERS THAT PARTICIPATE IN THE QCC	108
EXHIBIT H	113
SCHEDULE A MEMBER INSTITUTIONS OF THE LEAGUE OF	
VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK, A	
MULTI-EMPLOYER BARGAINING UNIT, COVERED BY THI	IS
AGREEMENT	114
SCHEDULE B NEW LEAGUE MEMBERS AND EXISTING MEMB	ER
INSTITUTIONS WITH COLLECTIVE BARGAINING	
AGREEMENTS WHO JOINED SINCE JULY 16, 2018	
SCHEDULE C LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMI	
NEW YORK 1199 RN INSTITUTIONS AND AFFILIATES	
STIPULATION I	120
STIPULATION II MINIMUM RATES AND HOURS OF WORK	
UNIFORM JOB TITLES & RATES NON-UNIFORM	
JOB TITLES & RATES	
STIPULATION III.	
STIPULATION IV	120

SIDE LETTER RE: CIPC121
SIDE LETTER RE: 144 MINIMUMS 122
SIDE LETTER RE: ALTERNATIVES TO LAYOFFS 123
SIDE LETTER RE: NON-DISCRIMINATION124
SIDE LETTER RE:
NBF CONTRIBUTION RATE AND NPF BENEFITS125
SIDE LETTER RE: PENSION CONTRIBUTION AND
TEF FUNDING126
SIDE LETTER RE: MATERNITY LEAVE 128
SIDE LETTER RE: ELECTRONIC DUES TRANSMISSION, ELECTRONIC
TRANSFERS AND CONTRACT AND BENEFITS
ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM129
SIDE LETTER TO MOA DATED OCTOBER 1, 2018 RE: ENHANCED
QUALITY & PERFORMANCE INITIATIVES ("COMMITTEE")
SIDE LETTER TO MOA DATED SEPTEMBER 23, 2021
RE: NURSING HOMES132
ATTACHMENT A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT133
ATTACHMENT A UNION ORGANIZING RIGHTS134
EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT A142
EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT A (CONTINUED)
INFORMATION SHEET143
ORGANIZING RULES OF CONDUCT144
SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A146
SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A147
SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A148
ATTACHMENT B AMBULATORY AND PRIMARY CARE OFF-SITE
AGREEMENT150
SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES
STIPULATION 2A NURSING HOME/NEW HIRE RATES FOR NURSING
HOME EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1, 2013
ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM
MINIMUM RATES163
STIPULATION 2A (CONTINUED) NURSING HOME/NEW HIRE
RATES FOR NURSING HOME EMPLOYEES HIRED
PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1, 2013
UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM
RATES BY RATE171
STIPULATION 2B NEW HIRE/MINIMUM RATES FOR NURSING
HOME EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER OCTOBER 1, 2013177

SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK CITY EARNED SAFE AND SICK TIME
ACT AND NEW YORK STATE PAID LEAVE LAW189
MAY 18, 2016 LETTER RE: 1199 AND LVHH-JOB SECURITY FUND
("JSF")190
MAY 6, 2015 LETTER RE: APPOINTMENT OF ARBITRATORS191
SIDE LETTER RE: CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM/
DELEGATE TRAINING PROGRAM192
AGREEMENT RE: FUNDING FOR CONTRACT
ADMINISTRATORS193
SIDE LETTER RE: DELEGATE TRAINING AND CONTRACT
ADMINISTRATION STUDY194
1199SEIU-LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES
OF NEW YORK COMMISSION ON WORKFORCE
AND POLICY ISSUES195
SIDE LETTER RE: NURSING HOME COMMITTEE197
SIDE LETTER RE: ARBITRATOR SELECTION 198
SIDE LETTER RE: 1199 NURSING HOME PROPOSAL199
SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK HERO ACT
SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK CITY TEMPORARY SCHEDULE
CHANGE LAW201
SIDE LETTER RE: NYU PRO/TECH RATE ADJUSTMENTS 202
INDEX
NOTES

#### 2021-2024 1199-LEAGUE AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made and entered into this 23rd day of September, 2021, by and between the LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK, with its offices at 555 West 57th Street, New York, NY 10019 (hereinafter called the "League"), as agent for and on behalf of each of its member institutions whose names appear on Schedules A and B annexed hereto and made a part hereof (each of which is hereinafter designated as the "Employer") and **1199SEIU UNITED HEALTHCARE WORKERS EAST**, with its offices at 498 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10018 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union" or "1199"), acting herein on behalf of the Employees of the said Employer, as hereinafter defined, now employed and hereafter to be employed and collectively designated as the "Employees" (hereinafter "Agreement" or "CBA").

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Employer recognizes the Union as the collective bargaining representative for the Employees covered by this Agreement as hereinafter provided, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent and purpose of the parties hereto that this Agreement promote and improve the mutual interests of the patients of the Employer as well as of its Employees and to avoid interruptions and interferences with services to patients and to set forth herein their agreement covering rates of pay, hours of work and conditions of employment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE I Recognition - The Collective Bargaining Unit

1. (a) The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative of all of the Employees in the bargaining unit(s) set forth in a stipulation (Stipulation I) between the Union and each Employer to be annexed hereto.

(b) Excluded from each of the aforesaid bargaining units are supervisory, confidential, executive and managerial employees, physicians, dentists, registered nurses, students whose performance of work at the Employer is a part of the educational course of study such students are pursuing, part-time employees who work a total of one-fifth (1/5) of the regular full-time work week or less for the job classifications in which they work, temporary employees as defined herein, and such other employees hired to work one-fifth (1/5) or less of the regular full-time work week for his/her classification shall be an Employee covered by the Agreement if he/she works more than sixteen (16) shifts within any period of up to thirteen weeks. Bargaining unit coverage shall be retroactive to the first day of the thirteen (13) week period.

2. It is agreed that this Agreement shall apply and continue in full force and effect at any location to which the Employer may move. It is further agreed that this Agreement shall apply to any new or additional facilities of the Employer and under its principal direction and control within the five (5) boroughs of New York City, Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester Counties. The application of this provision to certain ambulatory and primary care off site facilities is set forth in Attachment B. The Employer shall give seven (7) days notice to the Union subsequent to the completion of arrangements for all expansions, acquisitions, sales, new facilities, mergers within the five boroughs of New York City, Nassau, Suffolk, and Westchester counties.

3. To the extent permitted by law, whenever an Employer hereafter shall enter into an affiliation agreement with the City of New York, the Employer shall extend recognition to the Union hereunder for the Employees employed by the Employer under such affiliation and this Agreement shall apply to such Employees.

4. Whenever the word "Employee" is used in this Agreement, it shall be deemed to mean the Employees in the bargaining unit(s) covered by this Agreement, as defined in Article I, Section 1 hereof.

5. At the time a new Employee subject to this Agreement is hired, the Employer shall deliver to said Employee a written notice that the Employer recognizes and is in contractual relations with the Union and quoting or paraphrasing the provisions of Articles II and III of this Agreement.

6. **Part-time Employees:** Part-time Employees covered by this Agreement shall receive fringe benefits, wage rates and wage increases hereunder on a pro rata basis.

7. The Employer shall prorate paid benefits (i.e., paid: vacations, holidays, sick leave, free days, leave for death in the family and paternity leave) based

on the average number of hours actually worked per week in a six (6) month period. Computations shall be made every six (6) months. Part-time Employees shall not accrue benefits which are greater than those accrued by a full-time Employee in the same job who is regularly scheduled to work the normal full-time work week.

8. Although certain part-time and temporary employees are excluded from coverage hereunder, nevertheless, the Employer will employ them at not less than the wages and minimums specified in this Agreement. It is recognized, however, that such employees are not and shall not be in any way considered covered by any of the provisions of this Agreement.

9. Attachment A hereto shall apply with respect to residual units.

#### ARTICLE II Union Security

1. All Employees on the active payroll as of October 1, 2021, who are members of the Union shall maintain their membership in the Union in good standing as a condition of continued employment.

2. All Employees on the active payroll as of October 1, 2021, who are not members of the Union shall become members of the Union within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement, except those who were required to become members sooner under the expired Agreement who shall become members on the earlier applicable date, and shall thereafter maintain their membership in the Union in good standing as a condition of continued employment.

3. All Employees hired after October 1, 2021, shall become members of the Union no later than the thirtieth (30th) day following the beginning of such employment and shall thereafter maintain their membership in the Union in good standing as a condition of continued employment.

4. For the purposes of this Article, an Employee shall be considered a member of the Union in good standing if he/she tenders his/her periodic dues and initiation fee uniformly required as a condition of membership.

5. Subject to Article XXXI, an Employee who has failed to maintain membership in good standing as required by this Article shall, within twenty (20) calendar days following receipt of a written demand from the Union requesting his/her discharge, be discharged if, during such period, the required dues and initiation fee have not been tendered.

6. The Union agrees that it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from any recovery of damages sustained by reason of any action taken under this Article.

#### ARTICLE III Check-Off

1. Upon receipt of a written authorization from Employee in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A, or in any other form designated by the Union necessary to accommodate any changes in the 1199 dues or initiation fee structure, the Employer shall, pursuant to such authorization, deduct regular dues and/ or initiation fees as established from time to time by the Union from the wages due said Employee. Such deduction shall start no later than the first pay period following the completion of the Employee's first thirty (30) days of employment.

The Employer shall remit to the Union all deductions for dues and/or initiation fees made from the wages of all Employees on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month in which the paycheck was dated from which those dues and initiation fees were deducted.

This remittance shall be accompanied by a list of all Employees on whose behalf dues and initiation fees are being paid. Such list shall include, for each Employee, the following information: Institution, Employee's name, social security number, job classification, amount of dues remitted, amount of initiation fees remitted, hours worked, gross pay, and total pay subject to dues deduction.

2. At the written request of the Union made in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph 2, the Employer shall deduct from the wages due an affected Employee an amount stated by the Union to be unpaid dues and/or initiation fees. Such a written request for unpaid dues shall be made by the Union no more frequently than twice a year on January 1 and/or July 1. The request shall include the name, social security number, amount of dues and/or amount of initiation fees to be deducted from the Employee's wages, and the number of installments by which the total shall be deducted.

With the written request, the Union shall send the Employer a copy of a letter that has been sent to each listed Employee advising them of the Union's dues and initiation fee policies, the amount of dues or initiation fees owed by the members, an explanation of the computation, and the procedure by which such unpaid dues and/or initiation fees shall be deducted by the Employer. The letter shall advise the Employee to direct any question on this deduction to the Union. The Employer shall provide the Union with the name, title, and telephone number of the person to which requests pursuant to this paragraph shall be submitted.

The Employer shall make the first deduction pursuant to the request no more than thirty (30) days after receipt of the request, and shall remit the deductions on the same schedule as set forth in paragraph 1 above.

The Employer shall provide to the Union a separate list of all Employees on whose behalf payments pursuant to this paragraph 2 are being made. Said list shall include name, social security number, and amount of dues and/or amount of initiation fees remitted.

The limitation of submission of requests on January 1 and July 1 shall not apply when an Employee is a new hire from whom deduction of dues and/or initiation fees were not initiated timely. In such cases, deduction of dues and/or initiation fees by the Employer shall commence immediately on the Employer receiving written authorization.

The Employer shall not be required to attempt to recover unpaid dues or initiation fees from Employees who have terminated employment and received their last wages prior to the receipt of the request.

3. Employees who do not sign written authorizations for deductions must adhere to the same payment procedure by making payments directly to the Union.

4. The 1199SEIU Federal Credit Union: Upon receipt of a written authorization from an Employee in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B, the Employer shall, pursuant to such authorization, deduct from the wages due said Employee each pay period, starting not earlier than the first period following the completion of the Employee's first thirty (30) days of employment, the sum specified in said authorization and remit same to the 1199SEIU Federal Credit Union, or successor credit union, bank or other financial institution ("the Credit Union") to the credit or account of said Employee. If the Employer's payroll system permits, such deductions shall be remitted to the Credit Union on each pay date via ACH or similar electronic funds transfer system, directly to the account of the Credit Union as designated by the Credit Union as to account number and place, for the benefit of each participant, with funds available in "US Funds" on the scheduled payroll date. Such transmittal shall contain for each participant, the name, social security number prefixed with a "0" (making a 10-digit number), description, Institution name, and Institution's Credit Union ID.

If an ACH transfer is not possible under the Employer's payroll system, the Employer shall wire the funds to the Credit Union on each paydate to the account of the Credit Union as designated by the Credit Union as to account number and place, and shall at the same time e-mail to the Credit Union a file containing the same information as listed above, written in a common spreadsheet program or ASCII, together with the total of the funds that have been transmitted.

5. Upon receipt of a written authorization from an Employee in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit C, or in any other form designated by the Union and necessary to accommodate political action deductions, the Employer shall, pursuant to such authorization, deduct from the wages due said Employee once a month the sum specified in said authorization and remit the funds to the 1199SEIU Political Action Fund, in the same manner and at the same time as the Employer shall remit dues and initiation fees as described above. This remittance shall be accompanied by a list of all Employees on whose behalf deductions are being submitted. Such list shall include, for each Employee, the following information: Institution, Employee's name, social security number and amount remitted.

6. The Employer shall be relieved from making such "check-off' deductions upon (a) termination of employment, or (b) transfer to a job other than one covered by the bargaining unit, or (c) lay-off from work, or (d) an agreed leave of absence, or (e) revocation of the check-off authorization in accordance with its terms or with applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the return of an Employee to work from any of the foregoing enumerated absences in section (b) - (d), the Employer will immediately resume the obligation of making said deductions, except that deductions for terminated Employees shall be governed by Paragraph 1 hereof. This provision, however, shall not relieve any Employee of the obligation to make the required dues and initiation fee payment pursuant to the Union constitution in order to remain a member in good standing of the Union.

7. The Employer shall not be obliged to make deductions of any kind from any Employee who, during any dues month involved, shall have failed to receive sufficient wages to equal the dues deductions.

8. The Employer agrees to furnish the Union each month within fifteen (15) days after the end of the month a listing in order of social security numbers of the names of all bargaining unit Employees paid at any time in the prior month, their addresses, social security numbers, classifications of work, their date of hire, and if terminated during the month, their date of termination; and names of bargaining unit Employees on leave of absence together with their beginning dates of leave of absence and type of leave.

9. Upon receipt of a written authorization from an Employee in the form approved by the 1199 Pension Fund Trustees, the Employer shall, pursuant to such authorization, deduct from the wages due said Employee once a month the sum specified in said authorization and remit same to the 1199 Pension Fund as the monthly repayment of the Employee's loan obtained from such Fund on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month in which the paycheck was dated from which the deduction was made. It is specifically agreed that the Employer assumes no obligation, financial or otherwise, as a result of compliance with this provision.

10. It is specifically agreed that the Employer assumes no obligation, financial or otherwise, arising out of compliance with the provisions of this Article, and the Union hereby agrees that it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from any claims, actions or proceedings by any Employee arising from deductions made by the Employer hereunder. The Union further indemnifies and holds the Employer harmless from any claims, actions or proceeding by any government agency or by any groups so long as such groups are not funded directly or indirectly by the Employer for the 1199SEIU Political Action Fund. Once funds are remitted to the Union, their disposition thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Union.

11. Any list required hereunder that contains in excess of twenty-five (25) names shall be transmitted to the Union or the Credit Union in electronic form in the format agreed to between the League and the Union. The Employer shall provide to the Union and the Credit Union the name, title, e-mail address, and telephone number of one person responsible for each separate dues/initiation fees remittance list to be submitted pursuant to this paragraph who can directly authorize and produce such electronic transmission.

12. The Union may process arbitration claims under this Article III before the Funds Arbitrator designated in Article XXV paragraph 5, and pursuant to the procedures set forth in that section. No other sections of that Article shall apply.

#### ARTICLE IV No Discrimination

1. Neither the Employer nor the Union shall discriminate against or in favor of any Employee on account of race, color, creed, national origin, political belief, sex, sexual orientation, citizenship status, marital status, disability or age.

2. No Sexual Harassment:

(a) The Employer will instruct its supervisory and managerial staff that sexual harassment will not be permitted or tolerated.

(b) Management and supervisory staff will receive regular periodic updates on sexual harassment policy, standards of acceptable (and unacceptable) behavior and consequences for violations of policy.

3. The Employer after notification to the Union shall be permitted to take all actions legally required to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

#### ARTICLE V Union Activity, Visitation and Bulletin Boards

 No Employee shall engage in any Union activity, including the distribution of literature, which could interfere with the performance of work during his/ her working time or in working areas of the Employer at any time, except as provided in Article XXXI Grievance Procedure.

2. A representative of the Union shall have reasonable access to the Employer for the purpose of conferring with the Employer, delegates of the Union and/ or Employees, and for the purpose of administering this Agreement. Where the Union representative finds it necessary to enter a department of the Employer for this purpose, he/she shall first advise the personnel office or the head of the department or his/her designee in person, as the Employer shall state. A delegate intending to go to a department other than the one he/she represents shall follow the above procedure. Such visits shall not interfere with the operation of the Employer.

3. The Employer shall provide Bulletin Board(s) which shall be used for the purpose of posting proper Union notices. Such Bulletin Board(s) shall be placed conspicuously and at places readily accessible to workers in the course of employment.

4. The work schedules of Employees elected as Union Delegates shall be adjusted to permit attendance at regular delegate assembly meetings providing Employer operations shall not be impaired.

5. Each October, the Union will provide a listing of its representatives at member institutions, including delegates, to the Employer. In the event the Union changes its representatives at member institutions, the Union promptly shall notify in writing the Employer of such change.

6. Employees elected or appointed as Trustees of the NBF, PF, TUF, JSF, LMI and Child Care Fund shall be released by the Employer without pay to attend scheduled meetings of the Trustees. The Employer will also make its best effort to release Employees elected or appointed to the Executive Council to attend scheduled meetings thereof. In both cases, the Employees shall be released unless such release will unreasonably interfere with the operation of the unit in which the Employee is employed.

7. As part of cost savings referred to in this Agreement, the parties recognize that the Union's delegates will play a pivotal role in educating the Union membership in understanding the cost savings programs, in helping to prevent fraud and abuse in the Funds, and in understanding the Agreement and collective bargaining process. In this regard, for the period October 1, 2021 through the expiration of the Agreement, the Delegates will be released for up to five (5) days over the life of this Agreement with pay for intensive training in these areas. The Employers will be reimbursed for the cost of release time (approximately \$340 per day per Delegate), as agreed to by the President of the League and President of the Union.

#### ARTICLE VI Joint Employment Service

1. The Joint Employment Service ("Service") will be the sole source of referrals for all 1199 bargaining unit jobs for a seven (7) day period. This Service will include referrals of agency and per diem workers. A priority consideration for employment will be given to qualified referrals. In emergency situations or cases where qualified agency or per diem workers are not available, the Employer may hire without going through the Service. Disputes will be subject to review by the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee, as set forth in Art. XXX-IB.

The Service shall maintain a computerized bank of prospective employees from all sources, and shall maintain a validation process by which employees' prior work performance, licensure and certification are verified.

2. Neither the Service in referring, nor the Employer in hiring, shall discriminate against an applicant because of membership or non-membership in the Union or any ground prohibited under Article IV (No Discrimination) of this Agreement.

3. (a) The Employer shall notify the Service of all bargaining unit job and training position vacancies<sup>1</sup>, including temporary and part-time vacancies and positions for which its laid off Employees may be eligible for recall, and shall afford the Service seven (7) days from the time of notification (exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays) to refer applicants for the vacancy before the Employer hires from any other sources. In referring applicants, after persons on layoff from the Employer have been recalled, the Service shall give preference to persons on layoff from other members of the League, persons with prior experience in the health care industry, and persons living in the community the Employer serves, and must meet the qualifications required by the individual Employer for a particular job vacancy.

1 Where the Employer has an affiliated school or University program and where students do their practical work at the Employer, the Employer may offer vacant positions to said students at its discretion without referring to the Joint Employment Service, notwithstanding paragraph 7, below.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer, after giving notice to the Service, may fill vacancies if it must fill the position without delay to meet an emergency or to safeguard the health, safety and wellbeing of patients, provided that such vacancy may not be filled on a permanent basis.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer retains the right to hire such applicants referred by the Service as it deems qualified, in its sole discretion, and the right to hire applicants from other sources in the event the Service does not refer qualified applicants within seven (7) days, except that the Employer shall not, without giving a reason, reject an applicant (other than an Employee on layoff from the Employer) sent by the Service where the Service sends a minimum of three (3) applicants who have the minimum qualifications for the job and have at least three (3) years recent experience in the same or similar job with a League member.

5. Any applicant hired into a permanent job shall have a Certificate issued by the Service. All applicants referred to the Service by the Employer shall be issued a Certificate.

6. The Employer agrees to notify and utilize the Service in accordance with the procedure set forth above (in this Article VI) for all short-term positions, including temporary positions, agency referrals, and positions for one-fifth (1/5) of the work week or less, once the Service initiates such referral program. In hiring short-term workers for one-fifth (1/5) or less of the work week the Employer may use other sources.

7. The hiring rights and obligations set forth in this Article VI shall not interfere with the mandatory match requirements of Article IXA, Section B (6)(c)(i)(Job Security Fund).

#### ARTICLE VII Probationary Employees

1. Newly hired Employees shall be considered probationary for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of employment, excluding time lost for sickness and other leaves of absence.

2. Where a new Employee being trained for a job spends less than twenty-five percent (25%) of his/her time on the job, only such time on the job shall be counted as employment for purposes of computing the probationary period.

3. The probationary period for a part-time Employee whose regularly scheduled work week is less than three-fifths (3/5) of the regular work week applicable to his/her job classification shall be four (4) consecutive months.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the probationary period for social workers including part-time social workers, according to custom shall be six (6) months.

5. During or at the end of the probationary period, the Employer may discharge any such Employee at will and such discharge shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE VIII Temporary Employees

1. A temporary Employee is one who is hired for a period of up to three (3) months and is so informed at the time of hire, and who is hired for a special project, to replace an Employee on leave or vacation, to fill a vacant position (a position for which the Employer is actively recruiting for which no Employee at the institution has exercised rights under Article IX (Seniority) and after the position has been submitted to the Job Security Fund layoff pool ("JSF pool") operated by the Joint Employment Service), to fill an emergency vacancy of up to five (5) business days or less due to bereavement leave, illness or emergency family care. The said three (3) month period may be extended by the Employer at its option up to an additional three (3) months or for the length of the leave of the Employee being replaced, whichever is greater. Such Employee shall become a member of the Union after the expiration of the initial three (3) month period.

2. Temporary Employees will receive holiday pay in the same manner as regular Employees.

3. After three (3) months, temporary Employees will begin to accrue vacation and sick leave beginning with the first day of the fourth month of employment. If, however, temporary Employees are retained beyond six (6) months in continuous employment, the accrual of vacation and sick leave will be from the first day of employment.

4. Contributions to the 1199SEIU National Benefit Fund for Health and Human Service Employees on behalf of temporary Employees shall commence after three (3) months of employment and shall cover the payroll periods beginning with the first day of the fourth month.

5. Contributions to the 1199SEIU Health Care Employees Pension Fund, the Hospital League/1199 Training and Upgrading Fund, the League/1199SEIU/ Health Care Industry Job Security Fund, and the 1199SEIU/Employer Child Care Fund will not be made on behalf of temporary Employees unless and until they begin permanent employment, in which case such contributions shall commence for the payroll period in which they are made permanent.

6. A temporary Employee who has been employed three (3) months or longer shall be treated as a regular Employee for the purpose of filling vacant or available permanent positions for which the Employee is immediately qualified. A temporary Employee who is retained as a temporary Employee after the initial three (3) month period shall be entitled, when replaced by the returning Employee, to bump an Employee in his/her classification with less bargaining unit seniority, subject, however, to subsection 7(b) of Article IX (Seniority).

7. Prior to hiring temporary Employees to fill temporary positions, the Employer shall:

(a) Offer the position to Employees with layoff/recall rights;

(b) Offer the position to individuals in the JSF pool;<sup>2</sup>

<sup>2</sup> Mandatory Match obligation applies only if the temporary position is of three (3) months duration or longer (see Art. IXA(B)(6)(c)(v)). The Employer need only refer a particular temporary job to the Joint Employment Service once.

(c) Offer additional hours to incumbent part-time Employees in the classifications by seniority, provided they commit to covering the entire assignment for the duration of the opening. Said part-timers shall have the right to return to their former positions at the end of the temporary position;

(d) Utilize the Joint Employment Service;

(e) Utilize the Joint Employment Service's short-term referral program (Article VI, paragraph 6, above), if established, which shall provide staff for short-term need at competitive rates; or

(f) Offer overtime to incumbent Employees if practicable.

8. An agency worker may be used to fill a temporary position as defined herein if the Employer is unable to fill the temporary position from the sources listed above.

#### ARTICLE VIIIA Vacancies and Emergency Vacancies

1. The Employer shall fill vacant positions (positions for which the Employer is actively recruiting for which no Employee at the institution has exercised rights under Article IX and after the position has been submitted to the JSF pool and the Joint Employment Service) in the following order:

(a) Offer the extra hours to incumbent part-timers by seniority who will commit to covering the entire assignment for the duration of the opening;

(b) Offer overtime where practicable;

(c) Use agency workers under the following conditions:

(i) for up to two (2) months. If the period extends for more than two (2) months the agency worker shall become a member of the bargaining unit;

(ii) there shall be no extensions of this time period;

(iii) use of agency workers shall be permissible for only one two (2) month period for each specific vacancy as defined in 1 above;

(iv) if an agency employee is used to temporarily fill a vacant position beyond the aforementioned time period, the Employer shall either place such employee on its payroll or employ another person. The employee will be covered by the collective bargaining agreement effective on the first day after the two (2) month time period expires.

2. In the event of an emergency vacancy of up to five (5) business days or less due to bereavement leave, illness or emergency family care, the Employer shall have the right to use agency employees if the position cannot practicably be filled by a part-time Employee or by use of overtime.

3. At the end of said two (2) month period for filling vacancies, or five (5) days for emergency leave or three (3) months filling a temporary position as set forth in Art. VIII (paragraphs 7 and 8), agency workers shall be removed from

agency payroll and placed on the hospital payroll as bargaining unit members. Subject to this paragraph 3, agency workers hired to fill vacancies, vacations, special projects, emergency leaves or temporary positions are not in the bargaining unit.

4. If areas of frequent utilization of agency employees are determined, the Employer and the Union shall undertake training initiatives to fill vacancies by use of in-house staff. Such initiatives shall include jointly notifying the Training and Upgrading Fund to undertake training programs for said shortage areas, including training workers in multi-skills and for particular classifications. The institution agrees to make space available on-site or assist in locating space in the area of the institution.

#### ARTICLE IX Seniority

#### 1. Definition.

(a) Bargaining unit seniority is defined as the length of time an Employee has been continuously employed in any capacity in the Employer.

(b) Classification seniority shall be defined as the length of time an Employee has worked continuously in a specific job classification within a Department.

#### 2. Accrual.

(a) An Employee's seniority shall commence after the completion of his/her probationary period and shall be retroactive to the date of his/her last hire.

(b) Bargaining unit seniority shall accrue during a continuous authorized leave of absence without pay up to twenty-four (24) months, or for the period of maternity leave provided that the Employee returns to work immediately following the expiration of such leave of absence; during an authorized leave of absence with pay; during a period of continuous layoff not to exceed the lesser of (i) twelve (12) months (or the period of receipt of JSF benefits if longer than twelve (12 months) or (ii) the length of an Employee's continuous employment, if the Employee is recalled into employment or placed by the JSF; and during a sick leave of up to twenty-four (24) months.

(c) Classification seniority shall accrue during the periods specified in (b) above and during the time an Employee works in a specific job classification.

(d) Temporary Employees, as defined in Article VIII, shall have no seniority during the first three (3) months they occupy the status of temporary Employees, but if employed longer than three (3) months or should any temporary Employee become a permanent Employee, then his/her seniority shall be retroactive to the date of employment, except as otherwise provided in Section 4(c) hereof.

(e) Part-time Employees who are regularly scheduled to work three-

fifths (3/5) or more of the regular work week applicable to their job classification shall accrue seniority as set forth in (a), (b) and (c) above. Part-time Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than three fifths (3/5) of the regular work week applicable to their job classification (except those employed as of June 30, 1974, whose seniority shall be governed by the provisions of the contract expiring June 30, 1974, or such other appropriate expiration date as provided in subsection 2 of Article XLIII) shall accrue seniority in accordance with the following formula:

Length of Service X <u>Straight time hours paid</u>

Number of hours constituting the regular work week

For purposes of computing vacation entitlement, however, all part-time Employees shall accrue seniority as set forth in (a), (b) and (c) above.

#### 3. Loss of Seniority.

An Employee's seniority shall be lost when he/she:

(a) Terminates voluntarily.

(b) Is discharged for cause.

(c) Willfully exceeds an official leave of absence.

(d) Is laid off for (i) a period of twelve (12) consecutive months (or the period of JSF benefits if longer than twelve (12) months) or (ii) a period exceeding the length of the Employee's continuous service, whichever is less.

(e) Fails to return to work on a recall from layoff, within a reasonable time after the Employer has sent notice to him/her to return by letter or telegram to the last address furnished to the Employer by the Employee, unless the Employee has a valid reason for inability to respond.

#### 4. Application.

(a) Bargaining unit seniority shall apply in the computation and determination of eligibility for all benefits where length of service is a factor pursuant to this Agreement and to layoff, recall, displacement, lateral transfers and promotions.

(b) Classification seniority shall apply for scheduling of vacations as herein provided.

(c) Employees specifically covered by this Agreement as set forth in the stipulations referred to in Article I, Section l(a), more than fifty percent (50%) of whose pay is charged to a special or non-budgetary fund and who are informed at the time of their hire or at the time of transfer that their employment is for a special non-budgetary or research project and subject to this provision, shall, for the purposes of layoff, be considered to have bargaining unit seniority which may be exercised only within the project or grant to which assigned. Such Employees shall be considered to have bargaining unit seniority for purposes of transfer or recall to a vacant position outside of the special project, provided in each case that the Employer determines that the Employees retained or recalled have the ability to do the work. Such determination by the Employer shall not be arbitrary. Employees, fifty percent (50%) or more of whose pay is charged to an Employer's budget shall be considered as having seniority on that basis and not under a grant. The layoff, employment security, displacement and recall rights of Employees whose pay is partially or wholly from an externally funded grant or program who had completed twenty-four (24) months of membership in an 1199 bargaining unit at their Employer as of January 1, 2013, are as set forth in Art. IXA A.8. Effective January 1, 2021, the layoff, employment security, displacement and recall rights of Employees whose pay is partially or wholly from an externally funded grant or program and who was employed in an 1199 bargaining unit at their Employer prior to January 1, 2011, are as set forth in Art. IXA A.8. Effective January 1, 2023, the January 1, 2011 date in the preceding sentence shall be January 1, 2013.

#### 5. Layoff.

(a) In the event of a layoff within a job classification or group, probationary Employees within that job classification, or group (where applicable) shall be laid off first without regard to their individual periods of employment. Non-probationary Employees shall be the next to be laid off on the basis of their bargaining unit seniority.

(b) A non-probationary Employee shall not be laid off if, at the time of the prospective layoff, temporary or agency employees are being utilized in the Employee's classification or group (where applicable) and the Employee accepts the same assignments and schedule as the temporary/agency employee(s) in lieu of layoff. At the time of layoff, it shall be the Employee's option to accept such assignment or to exercise rights under the layoff and recall provisions of this Article and under Article IXA (Job Security). If the Employee accepts such assignment, the Employee is not laid off and remains an Employee with recall rights commencing from the date the Employee starts such assignment.

The Employer shall use best efforts is to consolidate temporary, agency and less than one fifth work schedules to create regular positions for Employees who would otherwise be laid off.

Upon request, at the time of layoff, the Employer shall provide to the Union an updated schedule of all temporary and agency employees and one-fifth (1/5) or less Employees in the relevant classification(s).

(c) In the event an Employee is scheduled to be laid off in one Department and there exists a vacant position in another Department which the Employee has the ability to perform, then bargaining unit seniority shall prevail in assigning such Employees scheduled to be laid off to such vacant jobs. This provision is not intended to circumvent paragraph 8 of this Article. (d) If a part-time Employee has greater full-time equivalent seniority than a full-time Employee in the same classification who is to be laid off, the part-time Employee must be willing to accept full-time employment to continue working.

#### 6. Recall.

(a) Whenever a vacancy occurs, Employees who are on layoff in that classification or group (where applicable) shall be recalled in accordance with their bargaining unit seniority. If a vacancy occurs where no Employee in that classification or group (where applicable) has recall rights, then the laid off Employee with the most bargaining unit seniority will be recalled if he/she has the ability to do the work and if not, the next senior Employee will be recalled, and so on.

(b) Probationary Employees who have been laid off have no recall privileges.

(c) A part-time Employee on layoff shall have recall rights to a fulltime position only if he/she is willing to work the required full-time schedule of hours.

7. (a) It is agreed in principle that for the purpose of applying seniority to recalls and to vacant positions and to layoffs, Employees in job classifications of similar types and requiring similar skills shall be grouped together. This provision shall be implemented on an Employer-by Employer basis.

(b) The Employer shall use its best efforts to place permanent Employees designated to be laid off into vacant positions for which they are qualified if they can fully perform the job.

(c) In the event of a layoff of any Employee, there shall occur only one "bump" in the Employer. The only Employee who may be bumped by the Employee originally scheduled to be laid off shall be the Employee with the least bargaining unit seniority who is in the classification or group (where applicable). An Employee who is "bumped" shall himself/herself have no bumping rights. In the event the Employee originally scheduled to be laid off does not wish to exercise his/her right to "bump" the Employee with the least bargaining unit seniority who is in the classification or group (where applicable), such Employee shall be deemed to be laid off.

#### 8. Promotions.

(a) Where a promotional vacancy in a bargaining unit job occurs, the Employer shall post a notice of such vacancy on the bulletin boards it ordinarily uses for notices to bargaining unit Employees for a period of not less than three (3) working days excluding weekends and holidays before the vacancy is filled. Where two (2) or more Employees are under consideration for such vacancy, the Employer shall promote the Employee with the greatest bargaining unit seniority, unless as between or among such Employees there is an appreciable difference in their ability to do the job. Where an emergency exists, the Employer may dispense with the posting requirement. Disputes under this provision shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of the Agreement.

(b) An Employee who is promoted shall, upon promotion, receive an increase equal to the difference between his/her prior rate and the minimum rate for the job into which he/she is promoted or ten dollars (\$10.00) per week, whichever is greater (pro-rated in the case of part-time Employees).

(c) An Employee who is promoted shall serve the same probationary period on the new job as a new hire. If he/she is removed from the new job during the probationary period, he/she shall be returned to his/her former job, if vacant, or to another suitable job (vacant or one that will be newly created) on the same shift as the former job without loss of seniority, pay or other benefits applicable to the former job, excepting that if he/she is discharged, his/her rights shall be subject to Article XXIX (Discharge and Penalties) of this Agreement.

(d) A bargaining unit job vacancy shall, as to any Employee under consideration for such vacancy, be deemed a promotion if the difference in minimum rates between the job occupied by the Employee and the job in which a vacancy exists is at least five dollars (\$5.00) per week, or if the vacancy exists within a job classification (for example, a Staff to Senior title, "A" to "B", "I" to "II"). If the new job in which the Employee is placed is considered a promotion under the foregoing provisions, he or she shall receive the guaranteed increase as set forth above in paragraph 8(b). If the new job in which the Employee is placed a promotion under the foregoing have a staff receive either his or her present salary or the minimum rate for the new job, whichever is higher.

#### 9. Lateral Transfer.

(a) Where a vacancy occurs in a bargaining unit job (other than a promotional vacancy), any Employee with a satisfactory work record and with at least one (1) year of service in his/her present job may request, in writing, a transfer to fill such a vacancy provided that the Employee has the necessary qualifications to perform the job and provided further that such transfer will not unreasonably reduce the operational efficiency of any department. Where two (2) or more Employees request such transfer in writing, the Employer shall transfer the Employee with the greatest bargaining unit seniority, unless as among such Employees there is an appreciable difference in their ability to do the job.

(b) An Employee who is laterally transferred shall serve the same probationary period on the new job as a new hire. If he/she is removed from the new job during the probationary period, he/she shall be returned to his/her former job, if vacant, or to another suitable job (vacant or one that will be newly created) on the same shift as the former job without loss of seniority, pay or other benefits applicable to the former job, excepting that if he/she is discharged, his/her rights shall be subject to Article XXIX (Discharge and Penalties) of this Agreement. Additionally, during said probationary period an Employee shall be returned to his/her former job upon his/her request, in which event the provisions of the preceding sentence shall apply.

#### ARTICLE IXA Employment Security and Job Security Fund

#### A. Employment Security-Protected Status

1. Effective January 1, 2021, all regular full-time and part-time Employees who as of January 1, 2013 completed twenty-four (24) months of membership in a 1199 bargaining unit at their Employer, shall not be laid off during the term of this Agreement. Effective January 1, 2023, all regular full-time and part-time Employees who as of January 1, 2015 have completed twenty four (24) months of membership in an 1199 bargaining unit at their Employer, shall not be laid off during the term of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, bargaining unit seniority shall be used to determine the Employment Protection Status of Employees in bargaining units covered by this Agreement on or before September 23, 2021. Employees working in bargaining units newly organized after September 23, 2021 shall be eligible for Employment Protection Status two years after their bargaining unit's initial coverage<sup>3</sup>, provided an Employee meets the bargaining unit seniority requirements above.

2. In the event an Employer raises substantial issue over the number of protected bargaining unit Employees (e.g. more than 75% of the Employees in a department or area are protected) the issue may be referred to CIPC, but shall not be subject to its arbitration process. This provision shall not apply the event an institution is closed. If an externally funded grant or program or an HHC affiliation is discontinued, or if its funding is reduced, the provisions of Section 8 or Section 9 below will apply.

3. Periods of (a) part-time status, (b) paid or unpaid LOA(s), (c) employment in an externally funded grant or program, and/or (d) non-bargaining unit status during an Employee's twenty-four (24) month period of membership in an 1199 bargaining unit at his/her Employer, does not disqualify such Employee from protected status, provided the Employee otherwise qualified under section 1 above, except that an Employee on an unpaid LOA on January 1, 2013 must have returned to work at the end of the LOA and worked for a period of ninety (90) days following such return. Effective January 1, 2023, the January 1, 2013 date in the preceding sentence shall become January 1, 2015.

4. In the event the Employer transfers an Employee covered by the employment guarantee to a lower rated position or reduces his/her hours, the Employee's base weekly salary will not be reduced during the term of this Agreement. As applied to part-time Employees, this salary guarantee means that the Employee's annual actual hours, excluding overtime, shall not be reduced below such hours for the twelve (12) month period preceding the transfer, nor shall

<sup>3</sup> For Employers joining the League after September 23, 2021, membership in a bargaining unit shall be measured by when the unit was first represented by 1199.

the Employee's current hourly rate, as modified by Article X, sections l(a) and (b) (Wage Increases) be reduced.

5. In the event that an institution is faced with a severe economic downturn placing that institution in jeopardy of closing and requiring the reduction of its staff, the issue of appropriateness and number of lay-offs will be determined by the CIPC named in Article XXXIB of this Agreement in accordance with all of the procedures set forth therein. In such event, the laid off Employees shall be covered by all of the provisions of the Job Security Fund.

6. The institution shall continue to have the right to train or retrain its Employees, including those covered by paragraph 1 above.

7. During the term of this Agreement, the Employer will not remove or initiate any proceeding to remove, any Employee or classification from a bargaining unit covered by this Agreement as of the execution of this Agreement based upon an application of the NLRB decision in Oakwood Healthcare Inc., 348 NLRB No. 37 (2006) to the current job duties of the Employee or classification.

8. Externally Funded Grants or Programs

(a) Employees who otherwise meet the criteria for protected status whose pay is less than one hundred percent (100%) externally funded by a grant or program have full protected status under this Article IXA(A).

(b) Employees who otherwise meet the criteria for protected status and whose pay is one hundred percent (100%) externally funded by a grant or program, may be laid off with recall rights of up to two (2) years (or the length of JSF eligibility whichever is greater) in the event of a partial or full loss of funding from the grant or program. The savings to the grant or program from such layoffs shall not exceed the loss in external funding.

i. If there is an available vacant position<sup>4</sup> outside the grant or program in the Employee's classification or group (where applicable), the Employee must accept that position or be laid off. If there is no such position, the Employee may bump the Employee with the least bargaining unit seniority in the Employee's classification or group (where applicable), excluding Employees working under any other externally funded grants or programs.

ii. The Employee will maintain his/her salary if placed in the same job classification or group (where applicable). Where the Employee chooses to accept or bumps into a lower job classification his/ her salary will be reduced by the difference between the two minimum rates. The Employee will retain his/her seniority and accrued time off benefits.

(c) The notice provision of Article IX (Seniority) (4)(c) shall not apply to Employees hired prior to July 1, 1998. Notice will be provided to those hired or transferred on or after July 1, 1998 in accordance with Article IX(4) (c).

<sup>4</sup> The phrase "available vacant position" in the externally funded grants or programs provision includes bargaining unit positions of a merged institution.

HHC Affiliations

(a) When an HHC Affiliation contract is terminated or its funding reduced, HHC Affiliation Employees who otherwise meet the criteria for protected status may be laid off subject to the following rights (including the JSF extension of benefits):

i. Employee must accept offer of "rollover" if at current salary, or be laid off.

ii. If (i) does not apply the Employee shall: (a) be eligible for a bargaining unit vacancy at the parent institution, its HHC affiliations or merged institution (Consolidation of Departments and Mergers Article IXB) in his/her classification or group (where applicable), provided the Employee is qualified and is able to perform the vacant job according to the standards of the new Employer, (b) maintain his/her salary if placed in the same job classification or group (where applicable); where the new job is in a lower classification his/ her salary will be reduced by the difference between the two minimum rates (as in Section 8(b)(ii) above), and (c) retain seniority rights, accrued time off benefits and have recall rights at the above institutions for up to two (2) years in the Employee's classification or group (where applicable).

(b) The savings to the HHC affiliation from such layoffs shall not exceed the loss of funding that precipitated the layoff.

10. Displacement

(a) Order of Displacement for protected Employees:

i. When a job of a protected Employee is eliminated the Employee subject to displacement is the Employee with the least bargaining unit seniority in that classification on that shift within that Department. This provision applies only when the displaced protected Employee can exercise the choices set forth below. (If a displaced Employee is unprotected, his/her rights are governed by Article IX (Seniority).)

ii. The displaced protected Employee as defined above has two options:

1. The right to take a vacant position in his/her classification or group (where applicable) which the Employee is qualified for and can perform.

2. To bump the least senior Employee in the classification, provided such bumped Employee is qualified for and can perform the vacant position. The bumped Employee must take the vacant position or be laid off.

Nothing herein diminishes the employment protection of a protected Employee, unless he/she refuses a vacant position hereunder.

(b) Incentive for protected Employees displaced into jobs that pay at least fifty dollars (\$50.00) below former weekly rate:

i. Choice A - one time offer

2021-2024 1199-LEAGUE AGREEMENT

1. Super severance package - subject to budget cap/allocation determined by the parties and will be made available to displaced Employees for a limited period of time.

2. JSF option

ii. <u>Choice B</u> - arises when offered or after Employee refuses Choice A.

1. Retraining (Employee retains salary of the job from which he/she was originally displaced - including increases - and his/her protected status):

A. Employer originated training (if provided) which will result in an upgrade from the job into which the Employee was displaced.

B. Retraining opportunity through the TUF (or JSF) in a program developed by the TUF (or JSF) Trustees which will qualify the Employee within twelve (12) months for a job in which employment is available in the industry, that will be a promotional opportunity for the displaced Employee from his/ her present job. Examples of such programs include but are not limited to:

1. Tuition Assistance (up to six (6) credits per semester)

- 2. Discrete training programs
- 3. Scholarships

Pay will be maintained during the retraining program. If the Employee fails to successfully complete the program in the time allotted, his/her salary guarantee will continue; the Employee will not be retrained for the same position if TUF determines he/she cannot be retrained for that job. If TUF determines the Employee is capable of retraining and there was no "Misconduct" - poor attendance, failure to complete assignments (or other objective criteria determined by TUF) - he/she must then accept retraining to avoid a reduction in pay. If TUF determines there was Misconduct, the Employee's pay will be reduced to the job rate of the Em

2. Promotional opportunity from displaced job (however the Employee will not receive a salary increase unless the new job would be a promotion under Art. IX 8(d) with respect to the job from which the Employee was displaced).

Refusal of (1) or (2) of Choice B if offered results in lay-

off

(c) An unprotected Employee whose job is eliminated shall have layoff rights under Article IX.

#### B. League/1199SEIU/Health Care Industry Job Security Fund

1. The Union and the League agree to continue the 1199 Job Security Fund program in order to place Employees threatened with layoff in vacancies and retrain those who cannot immediately be placed.

2. In the event that a layoff cannot be avoided, this program is intended to assist the institution in retaining trained Employees within the League regardless of the circumstance of any particular League member. All regular full-time Employees who have completed their probationary period and part-time Employees as set forth below shall be eligible for this program. In no case, however, shall an Employee be entitled to supplemental income for a period longer than his/her length of employment.

3. Part-time Employees who have completed their probationary period will be covered by the Job Security Fund in the event of lay-off, provided the following:

(a) A part-time Employee must be eligible to receive unemployment insurance. All part-time Employees eligible to receive unemployment insurance who are laid off are eligible for Job Security funding provided they have served for a minimum of ninety (90) days and have worked a minimum of seven (7) hours per week (35 hour work week) or seven and one-half hours (37-1/2 hour work week). Laid off part-time Employees who satisfy all the conditions set forth at subsection 6(a) of this Article IXA(B) shall be eligible for Job Security payments until the expiration of this Agreement, or for two (2) years, whichever is greater, but not to exceed the period of the Employee's continuous service.

(b) Any part-timer who is laid off and is not eligible to receive Job Security payments will be entitled to participate in the hiring process.

4. (a) The JSF will be financed by an Employer contribution equal to one-quarter percent (.25%) of gross payroll of the Employees for the preceding month exclusive of amounts earned by the Employees during the first two (2) months following the beginning of their employment.

(b) If the Fund balance reaches a five million dollar (\$5 million) level for League institutions the requirement to pay one-quarter percent (.25%) of gross payroll shall be discontinued and shall only be re-instituted if the amount falls below five million dollars (\$5 million).<sup>5</sup>

(c) During the period of this Agreement, if the assets of the JSF fall below one million dollars (\$1 million) an amount equal to one (1) month of PF contributions shall be paid to the JSF and no contribution will be required to be made to the Pension Fund in that month.

(d) The JSF contribution shall be diverted to the TUF as provided in Exhibit E to this Agreement (pp. 102-104).

5. The Job Security Program will be implemented in the following manner:

(a) Institutions which, for economic or other reasons, must retrench <u>Employees in any</u> title represented by the Union agree to provide thirty (30) 5 This provision shall be suspended for the duration of this Agreement (October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024), provided however that in the event the cap is reached, CIPC shall determine whether, and if so where, the 0.25% contribution shall be diverted.

days notice.

(b) Every affected Employee will be immediately referred to the JSF for evaluation and counseling. Any affected Employee shall have the right to a vacant job in the same classification or group (where applicable) in any League institution.

(c) During the notice period, the institution will make every effort to find comparable employment at the institution.

(d) Once the JSF and the Union have been advised of a layoff at any member institution, and the JSF has so advised other League institutions, no member institution may hire into that title without first allowing the JSF to make the job available to Employees subject to layoff. If there is more than one job available in a classification, an Employee may choose where to be placed. If more than one Employee selects a job, Employees shall be placed in seniority order.

(e) Employees who are placed in another member institution shall retain their recall rights and their seniority for the purposes of benefit entitlement.

(f) During the notice period the Employee will be entitled to attend any interviews scheduled by the Placement Service without loss of pay.

(g) If the Employee is not hired during the notice period, he or she will be referred to the JSF for evaluation and placement in an appropriate training program if applicable.

(h) A laid off Employee who complies with the rules and regulations of the JSF, including participation in training as determined by the JSF Trustees, shall (1) be entitled to receive Supplemental Unemployment Benefit (SUB) payments and benefits, and (2) retain industry placement rights as well as recall rights to his/her own institution for the length of time the Employee is eligible for JSF benefits, but not to exceed the period of the Employee's continuous employment. (See paragraph 6(a) below.)

(i) If Employees in the Job Security Fund are required to take an available position on a shift which presents a serious hardship, they may appeal such requirement to the Trustees of the Job Security Fund. An Employee in training through the Job Security Fund, who is required to take a vacant position in the industry, may seek approval to continue training until such training is completed from the Fund Director, with the approval of the Trustees.

(j) In no case will the training program be scheduled to last longer than one (1) year except (i) when the Employee has been admitted to a regular Training and Upgrading Fund Technical or Professional Training and Upgrading Program; or (ii) the JSF Executive Director may approve training for up to two (2) years where she/he determines such training is necessary to make the individual re-employable in an appropriate job.

(k) It is the intent of the Job Security Program to substantially supplement the unemployment income received by a laid off worker who is attending a training program to the maximum extent available from the designated funds as determined under Section 6(a) of this Article. (l) In the event a major facility, affiliation contract or grant program closes or terminates, the availability and amount of this stipend benefit shall be determined by CIPC.

(m) No Employee facing layoff or actually unemployed will be required to take a job at an institution farther than the greater of (i) one (1) hour (average NYC travel time) from his/her home; or (ii) his/her average commuting time to the job from which he/she was laid off.

(n) If an Employee refuses to take a job within reasonable travel time of his/her home, he/she shall be removed from the industry-wide pool and be precluded from receiving Supplemental Unemployment Benefits, but shall retain full recall rights to his/her own institution.

(o) An Employee hired under this program will serve a thirty (30) day probationary period.

(p) The severance pay of an Employee laid off under this program who is hired by another institution with no break in service will be paid to the hiring institution. If such an Employee is laid off within one (1) year and hired by another institution with no break in service, his/her severance pay will be paid to the hiring institution.

(q) The Union and the League will seek the assistance of the New York State Departments of Labor and Health, the New York City Department of Employment and the US Department of Labor to help fund the education and training and re-training components of the Job Security Program.

(r) Other 1199 Employers may join the program if they agree to the above conditions subject to the approval of the League and the Union.

(s) Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, for purposes of the mandatory placement provisions of this Article only, the terms "member institution," "institution," "League institutions" or "Employer" shall include, in addition to Employers participating in the program pursuant to collective bargaining agreements with 1199, any other employer which has entered into a subscription agreement with the LMI Fund agreeing to parallel reciprocal placement rights.

6. In order to implement the job security provisions set forth in paragraphs 1 through 5 of this Article, the League and the Union have agreed to the following provisions supplementing paragraphs 1 through 5.

(a) Economic Provisions

Under the Job Security Program, a laid off Employee will be entitled to up to eighty percent (80%) of his/her salary and health coverage for him/ herself and his/her family under the NBF under the same conditions that prevail in the present Agreement, as determined by the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article XXXI(B), provided that the maximum period of time for which any covered Employee may receive JSF payments and benefits shall be until the expiration of the Agreement, or two (2) years, whichever is greater, but not to exceed the period of the Employee's continuous service, unless he/she fails to pursue JSF referrals, refuses to enroll in JSF recommended training, or turns down appropriate job offers, at which time the Executive Director may terminate benefits. The League and Union hereby direct the Administrator to promulgate appropriate rules to ensure full compliance with JSF regulations.

(i.) The amount of the SUB under this Article IXA(B) will be determined in accordance with the following schedules, unless modified by the Trustees of the JSF.

1. Full-Time Employees

	Weekly Amount of SUB (While NYS Un-	Weekly Amount of SUB (After NYS
Average weekly pay	employment Ins. payments are being received)	Unemployment Ins. payments cease)
less than \$600	\$100	\$325
\$600 but less than \$750	\$125	\$350
\$750 or more	\$150	\$375

2. Part-Time Employees

- FIRST: Determine the full-time SUB benefit for the Employee's position using the chart in subparagraph (1) above.
- SECOND: Multiply the applicable full-time SUB payment by this ratio:

<u>Average weekly pay</u> Full-time minimum weekly rate for Employee's position

3. The SUB for a part-time Employee shall not exceed the SUB payable to a full-time Employee laid off from the same position. If the average weekly earnings of a part-time Employee exceed the full-time minimum weekly rate for his/her position, he/she shall receive SUB benefits calculated under sub-paragraph (1) above.

4. SUB payments shall commence when monies from unemployment insurance, severance and accrued leave benefits (e.g., vacations, holidays, accrued sick leave where provided by past practice, etc.) cease to replace one hundred percent (100%) of the affected Employee's pre-layoff weekly salary on an after-tax (adjusted for FICA) basis.

5. For the purposes of this paragraph 6(a) only, average weekly pay shall mean the Employee's gross pay averaged over the prior fifty-two (52) weeks or period of his/her employment if less than fifty-two (52) weeks.

(ii) National Benefit Fund Coverage

Coverage under the National Benefit Fund (NBF) will be provided by the JSF for up to the duration of the Agreement or up to two (2) years whichever is longer, pursuant to this paragraph 6(a) of Article IXA(B). JSF payment for NBF coverage will commence when NBF coverage would otherwise cease due to layoff so that there is no break in coverage for the Employee and dependents. The JSF shall pay the NBF at the current Employer contribution percentage based on the individual's average weekly pay at the time he/she was laid off.

(b) Administration of Job Security Fund

(i) The Trustees of the JSF, in addition to the monies received from Employers, shall attempt to secure such additional funds as may be available from public or other private sources. In addition, the Trustees shall seek community cooperation in such programs.

(ii) The JSF shall set up a completely separate job security program for other employers who agree to contribute to the JSF, provided there is a total and complete legal segregation of funds and entitlement to monetary and other job security benefits to be provided or administered by the JSF.

(iii) The League shall be entitled to designate nine (9) JSF trustees, two (2) of whom will be from Employers who are not members of the League but are in the League Pool of the JSF and one of whom shall be from the Archdiocese. Other employers who are not in the League Pool will have the right to elect up to two (2) trustees with authority limited to dealing with the benefits to be provided to Employees of such other employers. The Union shall be entitled to designate nine (9) trustees to correspond to the nine (9) designated by the League, and two (2) trustees to correspond to the two (2) designated by other employers.

(c) Other Provisions

### (i) Job Classification, Minimums, Grouping and Right to Vacant Positions

(1) In accordance with the provisions below, there shall be mandatory hiring if an Employee is in the same classification or group, subject only to probationary period for evaluating performance (see subparagraph (vi), below) and providing on-the-job training as necessary.

The right of an affected Employee to a vacant job in the same classification or group in any League institution under subsection (5)(b) of Article IXA(B) means the right to a vacant job in either the same job classification if it exists at the other League institution, or group where applicable, under subparagraphs (2) or (3) below. Employees shall be accorded the same orientation provided to new hires in that classification. Job classification includes job title and job description which, in turn, includes duties and minimum qualifications and requirements.

An Employee must meet the minimum qualifications and

requirements of the vacant job which the new Employer applies to promotions and new hires, except the requirement of a high school diploma or its equivalency for Entry Level Jobs. Entry-Level Jobs means job classifications with full-time minimum weekly rates of pay no greater than five dollars (\$5) above the lowest full time minimum weekly rate under this Agreement. Also, Employees shall be accorded the same orientation provided to new hires in that classification.

(2) The following two (2) League-wide job classification groupings shall apply to all Employers for Job Security Fund purposes.

\*All entry level non-skilled jobs: Uniform service/ maintenance; including but not limited to the following: Housekeeping, waxer and stripper, dietary worker, dietary clerk, pot washer, cook's helper, central sterile technician, soiled laundry handler, laundry worker, mailroom clerk, groundskeeper, presser, washer, painter's helper, carpenter's helper, trades' helper.

\*Uniform clerical entry jobs and clerical jobs whose minimum rate is twenty dollars (\$20) or less above the entry level minimum; i.e., clerk, clerk typist, mail room clerk, admitting clerk, receptionist, ward clerk, accounting clerk, etc., except those requiring specialized skills.

The League and the Union agree to meet to prepare appropriate modifications to the above lists.

(3) In addition, an affected Employee shall also have the right to a vacant job which, by past practice, an Employer has previously grouped with the Employee's job classification for such Employer's purposes of layoff and recall, except where such other job classification has since been materially modified in a way that renders the prior grouping inappropriate. These groupings shall be memorialized in writing on a hospital-by-hospital basis by March 31, 2000.

(4) An Employer may not hire into a vacancy in the same job classification or grouped job classification (where applicable) without first allowing the JSF to make the job available to Employees subject to layoff. The Employer shall be deemed to have made the job available to the Employees subject to layoff if after notification from the JSF it affords the JSF seven (7) working days from the time it notifies the JSF of a vacancy to refer applicants before it hires from other sources. With respect to any given job vacancy, there shall be only one seven (7) working day period during which the Employer may not hire from other sources. However, Employees in the same job classification who become subject to layoff shall have the right to such vacant job during the seven (7) working

days immediately following the foregoing seven (7) working day period unless the Employer has made a commitment to hire another individual for such vacancy before the Employee is referred to the Employer by the JSF.

The parties shall designate an arbitrator to resolve disputes, on an expedited basis, grieving alleged violations of the "mandatory match" provisions of subsection 6(c) of Article IXA(B). A hearing before the arbitrator shall be held within fifteen (15) calendar days after the Union submits the matter to arbitration, and an award shall be rendered in forty-eight (48) hours.

The Job Security Fund will have full access to all relevant information and cooperation from the Human Resources Departments and 1199 chapter job committees for maximum placement of laid off Employees.

#### (ii) Bumping or Transfer to Vacant Position

An Employee who refuses a vacancy or refuses or fails to exercise his/her bumping rights, shall not be covered by the JSF provisions of this Article IXA(B) provided, however, such coverage shall apply to Employees who fail to bump or accept a vacancy within their bargaining unit<sup>6</sup> if the minimum rate for the new job is more than seven and one-half percent (7.5%) less than the minimum rate for their current job and to full-time Employees who decline to bump into or to accept a part-time position. This paragraph is without prejudice to and shall not be used in any proceeding interpreting any issues concerning rights and duties under the layoff and recall provisions of this Agreement (e.g. issues such as whether the Employee must accept a vacancy to avoid layoff).

#### (iii) 30 Day Notice of Layoff

The thirty (30) day notice of layoff provided in paragraph 5(a) of this Article IXA(B) means that the Employer must meet the following notice requirements before effectuating a layoff pursuant to the Job Security Program.

(1) It shall give thirty (30) days notice to the Union, the JSF and the Employee whose position is being eliminated.

(2) Within seven (7) working days of the notice in paragraph (1), the Employer shall notify the Employee of a suitable vacancy or of his/her bumping rights, if any, and the Employee must exercise his/her right to bump or fill such vacancy within two (2) working days or forfeit such right.

(3) Within one (1) working day of the Employee's notice that he/she has exercised his/her right to bump, the Employer shall notify the Employee who has been bumped that he/she is to be laid off. On the same day, the Employer shall

<sup>6</sup> Bargaining unit means the bargaining unit set forth in the Employer's individual bargaining units stipulation

notify the JSF and the Union of the Employee who is bumped.

(4) Notices by the Employer to Employees under these provisions shall be perfected if the Employer provides actual notice or sends a telegram or certified letter to the last known address of the Employee provided, however, that Employees who are at work shall be given actual notice if practicable. Notices by the Employer to the Union and the JSF shall be perfected by sending a fax to the JSF and Union.

(5) In no case shall an Employer who gives the notices provided in paragraphs (1) through (3) above be prevented from effecting a layoff because of failure to meet any other notice provision(s) of this Agreement. Any days of delay by the Employer in effecting the notices in paragraphs (2) and (3) shall be added to and shall correspondingly extend the thirty (30) day notice provided in Section (1).

#### (iv) Continuation of Training

A laid off Employee who is offered an appropriate job as defined in paragraph (c)(i) may elect to remain in training until the training program is completed if he/she has:

(1) completed at least one-third (1/3) of the training program, and

(2) has a commitment for a job upon completion of the course, or the training program will qualify the Employee for a market scarce job as determined by the Trustees.

If an Employee is in training and does not meet the above criteria, he/she may seek approval to continue training from the Fund Director, with the approval of the Trustees.

#### (v) Temporary Jobs

The Employer shall refer temporary jobs to the JSF and shall only refer that particular temporary job once. It is understood that the Mandatory Match provisions of this Article only apply to temporary jobs of at least three (3) months duration. It is further understood that:

(1) an Employee who chooses to take a temporary job must commit to work for the entire period,

(2) the Employee shall not be entitled to Job Security Fund rights (including SUB) during the time he/she occupies the temporary job and the time limit on job security rights shall be tolled during that period,.

(3) when the temporary job ends the Employee returns back to coverage under the Job Security Fund for the balance of any Job Security Fund rights due under the JSF, and

(4) the Employee shall lose all Job Security Fund rights under this Article IXA(B) if he/she leaves the temporary job before the original commitment ends.

#### (vi) Discharge During 30 Day Probationary Period

During or at the end of the thirty (30) day probationary period, the Employer may discharge an Employee referred by the JSF and such discharge shall not be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration provisions of this Agreement except as hereinafter provided. If the Employer asserts that the discharge was for cause other than inability to properly perform the job, the Union may submit within thi1ty (30) working days a grievance against the League to CIPC which will hear, decide or arbitrate the case in accordance with the CIPC rules and timetable. The sole issue for CIPC or the arbitrator shall be whether the Employee was terminated for cause other than inability to properly perform the job. The only remedy shall be for the Employee to return to the JSF. If the termination was for cause, he/she shall forfeit his/her rights under the Job Security Program. An Employee terminated for inability to pe1form shall return to the JSF. The thiity (30) day probationary period shall apply to all Employees referred by the JSF during the period they retain industry placement rights.

#### (vii) Working Days

Working days refers to Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

Notifier	Notifiee	Time Allowed	Substance
(A) JSF	All hospitals	3 working days from receipt of layoff notice from an Em- ployer	All laid off Employees and the job classifications <sup>8</sup>
(B) Hospitals	JSF	1 working day following (A) or availability of vacancy <sup>9</sup>	All vacancies in job classification and previously grouped other jobs available to JSF placements
(C) JSF	Layoffees	2 working days following (B)	Make contact; counsel

#### (viii) Job Security Fund Notice Provisions<sup>7</sup>

<sup>7</sup> The Union and the League may review the notice provisions to see if they are working in conformity with the meaning and intent of this Article IXA(B) and, if they are not, the parties commit to resolve the matter promptly.

<sup>8</sup> Includes job title, essential duties, qualifications and requirements. Notices by the JSF to the Employer shall be perfected by sending a fax to the Employer.

<sup>9</sup> From time job is available to outside hires (after hospital recalls, transfers, promotions, shift changes, etc.).
(D) Layoffees	JSF	2 working days following (C)	Employee must make job selec- tion <sup>10</sup>
(E) JSF	Specific selected	1 working day from (B)	Notify hospi- tal of available referral; an in- terview shall be conducted with- in the following 2 working days
(F) Hospital	JSF	1 working day from completion of (E)	Selection/rejec- tion of referral <sup>11</sup>
(G) JSF	All Hospitals	1 working day from (F)	Of Placement of JSF referrals
(H) Specific Hospital	JSF Union	1 working day following event	Termination during probation
(I) JSF	All hospitals	1 working day following (H)	Follow steps in A-G above, unless termi- nation was for cause other than ability to perform

7. Job Security Fund Committee

A committee ("Committee") consisting of an equal number of members from the Union and the League shall meet to review the Job Security Fund ("JSF") recommendations and to consider other necessary reforms in JSF protocols and procedures. The Labor Management Initiative (LMI) shall assist the Committee in its work.

The Committee shall also review and make recommendations regarding the impact of the Employers' use of behavioral interviews on the JSF's ability to place otherwise qualified employees. The Committee shall retain the services of experts/professionals who shall be paid for through LMI.

Within six (6) months thereafter, the Committee shall issue a report with recommendations to adopt changes in the JSF's protocols and procedures and with respect to the use of behavioral interviews ("Report").

Any disputes regarding recommendations in the Report shall be submitted to CIPC.

<sup>10</sup> The layoffee may visit the institution(s) at which appropriate jobs are available.

<sup>11</sup> E.g., if the individual does not meet minimum qualifications. Acceptance may be conditioned on passage of a physical.

## ARTICLE IXB Consolidation of Departments and Mergers

1. When institutions consolidate departments in separate locations which are represented by 1199, the following terms shall apply to Employees of the affected departments:

(a) Employees transferred from one location to another shall carry their bargaining unit

(b) Employees shall be eligible for vacancies and promotional opportunities in the consolidated department(s) based upon their bargaining unit seniority.

(c) Employees shall carry their protected status from one location to another.

(d) An Employee who transfers as the result of a department consolidation shall suffer no reduction in base weekly salary. In addition, he/she shall receive contract increases in base weekly rate. Step increases shall be up to the amount(s) which bring the Employee to the pay step for someone of his/her experience at the new location.

(e) The Employee shall retain all time off accruals (e. g. sick, vacation, personal,

(f) Except as provided above, Employees transferred from one location to another shall be bound by the terms and conditions applicable at the new location.

(g) If there are differences in terms and conditions among the current locations, and a new location is established, the parties shall negotiate which of these terms and conditions apply at the new location.

2. An Employee who would be laid off shall be eligible for placement and/ or recall into a bargaining unit vacancy, after internal transfers, promotions and recall rights, if any, at a merged institution. The placement of an Employee subject to layoff shall be for a vacancy in the same classification or group (where applicable) which is part of the bargaining unit at the institution where the vacancy exists. In addition, the Employee must be qualified and able to perform the vacant job according to the standards at the institution where the vacancy exists. An Employee who is placed into a job pursuant to this provision shall cany his/her bargaining unit seniority, time off accruals and recall rights, and will suffer no reduction in base weekly salary. Step increases shall be up to the amount(s) which bring the Employee to the pay step for someone of his/her experience at the new location.

### ARTICLE X Wages and Minimums

#### A. <u>Wage Increases</u>

(i) Effective October 1, 2021, each Employee on the payroll on that date and covered by this Agreement shall receive an increase in his/ her base weekly rate of two percent (2%) of his/her September 30, 2021 base weekly rate. The minimum rates and steps shall be increased by the across-the-board two percent (2%) wage increase. (ii) Effective October 1, 2022, each Employee on the payroll on that date and covered by this Agreement shall receive an increase in his/ her base weekly rate of three percent (3%) of his/her September 30, 2022 base weekly rate. The minimum rates and steps shall be increased by the across-the-board three percent (3%) wage increase. (iii) Effective October 1, 2023, each Employee on the payroll on that date and covered by this Agreement shall receive an increase in his/ her base weekly rate of three percent (3%) of his/her September 30, 2023 base weekly rate. The minimum rates and steps shall be increased by the across-the-board three percent (3%) wage increase. B. Lump Sum Recognition Payment November 1, 2021

(i) Effective with the first payroll period following November 1, 2021, each full-time Employee on the payroll on that date and who was employed ninety (90) days prior to that date, shall receive a lump sum recognition payment of \$3,000, representing appreciation for their heroic efforts during the COVID-19 pandemic. The payment shall be prorated for part-time Employees based on the average hours actually worked during the foregoing ninety (90) day period (or the ninety (90) day period referred to in paragraph l(B)(iii) below, where applicable).

(ii) The lump sum recognition payment shall not be considered as pay for any purpose, including payment of contributions to, or benefits provided by, the Union Funds, or for purposes of overtime, shift or other differentials or any form of premium pay.

(iii) The term "employed" as used in this Section 1(B) shall include (a) all periods of paid leave and (b) for this Section 1(B) only, (1) a period for which the Employee is entitled to receipt of disability or workers compensation payments from the NBF or other insurance paid for by the Employer, or (2) a period of authorized unpaid leave of absence or layoff, if but only if the individuals who were on an authorized unpaid leave of absence or layoff (with recall rights) on the first pay period following November 1, 2021 return to work to a regular full-time or regular part time position at the end of the leave, or, in the case of layoff, before their recall rights have expired, and work for a period of ninety (90) days following such return.

(iv) The lump sum recognition payment shall be in a separate payment. Withholding shall be based on the most favorable tax treat-

ment for the Employees permitted by law.

2. Minimum Rates of Pay

(a) The full-time minimum weekly rates including step minimum rates for all job classifications shall be increased by the across-the-board increases provided in l(a), (b) and (c) above.

(b) Each League member shall provide longevity increases to Nursing Attendants, Senior Nursing Attendants and Ward Clerks (or comparable job titles which are used instead of such titles) as follows:

(i) ten (10) or more years of service at the Employer - ten dollars (\$10.00) per week added to the Employee's base weekly rate;

(ii) twenty (20) or more years of service at the Employer - an additional ten dollars (\$10.00) per week added to the Employee's base weekly rate for a total of twenty dollars (\$20.00) after twenty (20) years; and

(iii) in the future all Employees in the foregoing categories shall be entitled to the aforesaid longevity increases upon reaching the appropriate years of service.

(c)

(i) For facilities other than nursing homes, the lowest full-time minimum weekly rate shall be:

Effective October 1, 2021 (\$808.95) per week

Effective October 1, 2022 (\$833.22) per week

Effective October 1, 2023 (\$858.22) per week

(ii) Nursing Home Hiring/ Minimum Rates for employees hired before October 1, 2013, see Stipulation 2A on page 163; and,

(iii) Nursing Home Hiring/Minimum Rates for employees hired after October 1, 2013, see Stipulation 2B on page 177.

(d) Employees hired on and after October 1, 2021, but before October 1, 2022 shall receive, during the first year of employment, a base weekly rate which is two percent (2%) less than the minimum weekly rate for his/her job classification.

Employees hired on and after October 1, 2022 shall receive, during the first year of employment, a base weekly rate which is three percent (3%) less than the minimum weekly rate for his/her job classification.

During the probationary period, Employees shall receive twenty dollars (\$20) per week less than the base weekly hiring rate applicable to their classification (increased by the amount of any across-the-board wage increase effected during their first year of employment).<sup>12</sup>

3. The minimum rates for each individual Employer shall be contained in a stipulation (Stipulation II) between each Employer and the Union to be annexed hereto. Set forth below, are the uniform job titles and uniform minimum rates.

<sup>12</sup> If an extension of the probationary period is agreed to by the Union, the Employee shall continue to receive twenty dollars (\$20) per week less than the hiring rate for his or her job classification for the duration of such extension or one (1) month, whichever is less. After one (1) year of employment, no Employee shall receive less than the minimum for his or her job classification.

2021-2024 1199-LEAGUE AGREEMENT

4. Employees when required to work at a higher rated bargaining unit job, shall be paid their rate or the rate for the other job, whichever is higher, after a total of five (5) days work in such higher classification in each contract year.

5. Wherever in this Agreement the phrase "regular pay" appears, it shall be deemed to include shift and specialty differentials, but shall exclude overtime and on-call pay.<sup>13</sup>

6. For those jobs with experience steps, the Employer shall recognize recent, relevant hospital or nursing home experience in the indust1y in the same job in determining the applicable step.

7. Social Workers who are required to use their own automobiles in the performance of their duties shall receive not less than the mileage allowance provided to other Employees of the Employer.

8. (a) The Employer shall give the Union thirty (30) days notice in writing of its intention to institute a new job classification or substantially modify an existing job classification (e.g., by combining jobs or restructuring existing jobs, etc.). The Union may request a meeting to discuss the Employer's proposal including the proposed wage rate. If the parties disagree about job content or wage rates, the Employer and Union may invoke a facilitation process (as provided in Article XLII(l)(a)(ii)). If there is disagreement on the proposed wage rate, the Union may submit that issue to third step grievance and arbitration under Articles XXXI and XXXII within sixty (60) days of receiving the Employer's thirty (30) days notice. The Union will use its best efforts to request the meeting within thirty (30) days of said notice. It is expressly understood and agreed, however, that neither the Union nor any Employee may grieve or arbitrate with respect to the content or description of any such job or job classification. In no event shall these procedures delay implementation of the Employer's proposal. (b) If it is claimed by the Union that the Employer has instituted anew job classification or substantially modified an existing job classification without providing the notice required above the Union may process a claim for change in the job rate for such classification in accordance with the provisions of Articles XXXI and XXXII of the Agreement provided, however, that it is expressly understood and agreed that neither the Union nor any Employee may grieve or arbitrate with respect to the content or description of any such job or job classification.

9. Employees shall receive paychecks during their regular work shift on payday.

10. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, it is understood and agreed that any Employee who, as of June 30, 1974, has been certified by the City of New York as a Clinical Technologist and is working as a Clinical Laboratory Technician shall, effective July 1, 1974, be classified as a Clinical Laboratory Technologist I and paid at the minimum rate provided in that agreement for

<sup>13</sup> However, the three-quarter (3/4) pay for off-premises on-call hours shall be included in regular pay for calculating overtime after 40 hours in a work week.

such job classification. Except to the extent that the prior practice of a particular institution is to the contraly, there shall be no further automatic advancements from Technician to Technologist other than those set forth in this paragraph.

11. Employees who work thirty-five (35) hours per week and are displaced to a position with longer weekly hours (e.g. 37.5) will receive additional pay at their former hourly rate for the additional hours worked. Employees who are displaced to positions with fewer hours will retain their weekly rate of pay.

12. Contrast Dye Differential- Effective September 1, 2008, for all Techs, (e.g. CT, MRI, X Ray) who have been trained and perform (actually give the injection for) contrast dye procedures on a regular basis during their shift, a differential of \$2.00 per hour will be paid. This differential will not be considered part of base weekly wages for purposes of future wage increases, but will be included in vacation, sick, and regular pay.<sup>14</sup>

13. Recognition Pay. When there is a federal or state declared public health emergency that results in a material increase in hazard to unit members in the performance of their work duties at their place of employment, 1199 may demand local bargaining over Recognition pay. In the event that there is no local resolution within 30 calendar days from 1199's demand, 1199 can refer the dispute to CIPC for resolution. The CIPC arbitrator shall consider the Employer's ability to pay in awarding relief, if any. This procedure shall not apply to weath-er-related emergencies or the current COVID-19 pandemic emergency.

14. Professional/Technical Classifications:

1. All Employees working in the professional/technical classifications that require continuing education, either from the requirements of licensure and/or the requirements of mandatory registries/certifications or Employer requirements shall be entitled to, up to, an equivalent of two (2) days off with pay per year, except where the written past practice supersedes, for the purpose of attending relevant continuing education programs. Time attended at TUF CEU or Employer sponsored courses will count toward the two (2) days off with pay per year. This benefit shall be pro-rated for part-timers. Management shall have the right to approve any such program in advance, and to receive proof of attendance. The Employer shall not unreasonably deny requests for paid time off for continuing education. Professional and Technical Employees who are required by the Employer to present at a professional conference shall be released with pay for one (1) additional day, for a total of three (3) paid continuing education days per contract year.

2.(A) Rate Adjustments

(i) The Union shall have the right to demand local bargaining for rate adjustments for each Professional/Technical classification once during the life of the contract when: (a) the Employer has a demonstrated recruitment and retention problem as evidenced by a combination of the following factors: vacancy rate, length of time of

<sup>14</sup> This provision does not apply to North Shore/Long Island Jewish Health System and Continuum. Northh Shore/Long Island Jewish Health System has a local agreement on the issue.

vacancy, turnover rate, or substantial required overtime; or (b) there are material changes in educational requirements, certification and/or licensing requirements for the title, promulgated by the Employer or by a governmental or regulatory body.

(ii) If the Union has not invoked paragraph (i), then once during the life of the contract, the Union may demand local bargaining over material discrepancies in compensation within a system in the same geographic area without the requirement of demonstrating a recruitment and retention problem. Disputes may be referred to CIPC but shall not be subject to arbitration.

(iii) Following 120 days of a demand to negotiate a specific title, the dispute shall be referred to the CIPC arbitrator, who shall act as or shall designate a mediator to attempt to bring the parties to a mediated resolution. If the parties have not come to agreement 30 days after refenal to the CIPC arbitrator, unresolved negotiations shall be resolved exclusively through CIPC dispute resolution, up to and including interest arbitration to determine whether the conditions in (i) have been satisfied, and, if so, what the revised rate should be. If the arbitrator finds that the conditions in (i) have been satisfied, the arbitrator shall consider the wages of other employees in the same titles performing similar services or similar skills, in the relevant geographic area, under similar working conditions, with comparable limitations, if any, on ability to pay an increased rate. The arbitrator shall also consider any recent market adjustments to the wage rate made by the hospital. The scheduling and administration of the arbitration shall be within the jurisdiction of the arbitrator and consistent with the parties' prior practice concerning CIPC arbitrations of a similar nature.

(iv) Decisions resulting from this process may be considered by the arbitrator but shall not be a controlling factor.

(B) Preceptor Pay

Employees in Professional/Technical titles assigned in writing by management to instruct and/or teach other employees, students or residents, in a new modality, technique or in the use of new technology, shall be paid an additional \$2.00/hour for the hours they actually spend precepting. Orientation or onboarding of new employees, students or residents to existing work procedures and processes, without the preceptor duties identified above, shall not be deemed precepting. 3. <u>Physicians' Assistants</u>

A committee will be established within 120 days of the ratification of the agreement to study and make recommendations to the parties regarding the terms and conditions of Physicians' Assistants and whether it is necessary or appropriate to include a minimum rate for those Physicians' Assistants who are in the bargaining unit.

ALPHABETIC	CAL UNIFOR	N JOB TITLES	AND UNIFOI	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR	HOSPITALS		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octob	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Cashier-Dietary	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Cook's Helper	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Dietary Clerk	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Dietary Worker	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
First Cook	991.71	1022.38	1021.97	1042.83	1041.89	1074.11	1073.14	1106.33
Housekeeping Worker	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Laundry Worker II	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Laundry Worker I	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Lead Dietary Worker	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Lead Housekeeper	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Nursing Attendant	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Pot Washer	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Presser	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Second Cook	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19	991.30	1021.96
Senior Nursing Attendant	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Sewing Machine Operator	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Soiled Laundry Handler	771.12	794.97	794.65	810.87	810.14	835.20	834.45	860.26
Third Cook/Special Order Cook	865.61	892.38	892.03	910.23	909.41	937.54	936.70	965.67
Ward Clerk	775.04	799.01	798.69	814.99	814.26	839.44	838.68	864.62
Washer	811.04	836.12	835.78	852.84	852.08	878.43	877.64	904.78
Waxer Stripper	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Ambulance Attendant	790.69	815.14	814.81	831.44	830.69	856.38	855.61	882.07
Emergency Medical Technician(EMT)	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Ambulance Driver/Attendant	941.31	970.42	970.03	989.83	988.93	1019.52	1018.61	1050.11
Carpenter A	995.82	1026.62	1026.21	1047.15	1046.20	1078.56	1077.59	1110.92

ALPHABETIC	<b>AL UNIFORM</b>	I JOB TITLES	S AND UNIFOF	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR I	HOSPITALS		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Carpenter B	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19	991.30	1021.96
Carpenter's Helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Central Sterile Technician	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Electrician A	1025.32	1057.03	1056.61	1078.17	1077.20	1110.52	1109.52	1143.84
Electrician B	945.46	974.70	974.31	994.19	993.30	1024.02	1023.10	1054.74
Electrician's Helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Engineer - two licenses if required	1479.57	1525.33	1524.72	1555.84	1554.44	1602.52	1601.08	1650.60
Fireman	874.00	901.03	900.67	919.05	918.22	946.62	945.77	975.02
Groundskeeper	790.69	815.14	814.81	831.44	830.69	856.38	855.61	882.07
Incinerator Attendant	840.09	866.07	865.72	883.39	882.59	909.89	909.07	937.19
Lead Carpenter	1058.87	1091.62	1091.18	1113.45	1112.44	1146.85	1145.82	1181.26
Lead Electrician	1117.77	1152.34	1151.88	1175.39	1174.33	1210.65	1209.56	1246.97
Lead Painter	987.44	1017.98	1017.57	1038.34	1037.41	1069.49	1068.52	1101.57
Lead Plumber	1079.82	1113.22	1112.77	1135.48	1134.45	1169.54	1168.49	1204.63
Maintenance Mechanic	945.46	974.70	974.31	994.19	993.30	1024.02	1023.10	1054.74
Maintenance Worker	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Mason-Plasterer	974.85	1005.00	1004.60	1025.10	1024.17	1055.85	1054.90	1087.53
Morgue Attendant	827.77	853.37	853.03	870.44	869.65	896.55	895.75	923.45
Motor Vehicle Operator	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Painter A	907.61	935.68	935.30	954.39	953.53	983.02	982.13	1012.51
Painter B	874.00	901.03	900.67	919.05	918.22	946.62	945.77	975.02
Painter's Helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Plumber A	1012.72	1044.04	1043.62	1064.92	1063.96	1096.87	1095.89	1129.78
Plumber B	920.27	948.73	948.35	967.70	966.83	996.73	995.83	1026.63

ALPHABETIC	CAL UNIFOR	N JOB TITLE:	S AND UNIFOI	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR	HOSPITALS		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobel	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Stationary Engineer-One License Required.	1268.97	1308.22	1307.69	1334.38	1333.18	1374.41	1373.17	1415.64
Trades Helper	786.82	811.15	810.82	827.37	826.62	852.19	851.43	877.76
Accounting Clerk	811.04	836.12	835.78	852.84	852.08	878.43	877.64	904.78
Accounts Pay/Receivable Clerk	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Admin/Exec/Secretary III	941 .31	970.42	970.03	989.83	988.93	1019.52	1018.61	1050.11
Admitting Clerk	806.71	831.66	831.32	848.29	847.53	873.74	872.95	899.95
Cashier (Business Office)	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Clerk	769.30	793.09	792.77	808.95	808.22	833.22	832.47	858.22
Clerk/Typist	782.90	807.11	806.79	823.25	822.51	847.95	847.19	873.39
Key Punch Operator	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Mailroom Clerk	771.12	794.97	794.65	810.87	810.14	835.20	834.45	860.26
Medical Records/Coding Clerk	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Payroll Clerk	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Receptionist	779.00	803.09	802.77	819.15	818.41	843.72	842.96	869.03
Registrar	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Secretary I	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Senior Secretary/Secretary II	89 4.97	922.65	922.28	941.10	940.25	969.33	968.46	998.41
Telephone Operator	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Typist/Transcriptionist (Medical)	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Typist/Transcriptionist	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Registered Dietitian (RD)								
0-2 Years	1176.37	1212.75	1212.27	1237.01	1235.90	1274.12	1272.97	1312.34
2-4 Years	1204.35	1241.60	1241.10	1266.43	1265.29	1304.42	1303.24	1343.55

ALPHABETICA	AL UNIFORM	A JOB TITLES	AND UNIFO	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR	HOSPITALS		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobel	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Cardiopulmonary technician	987.44 1103.39	1017.98 1137.52	1017.57 1137.06	1038.34 1160.27	1037.41 1159.23	1069.49 1195.08	1068.52 1194.00	1101.57 1230.93
Dental Assistant Dental hygienist	815.21 928.55	840.42 957.27	840.09 956.89	857.23 976.42	856.46 975.54	882.95 1005.71	882.16 1004.80	909.44 1 035.88
Dental technician/asst. certified Echocardionranh Technolonist	836.22 1210.90	862.08 1248.35	861.73 1247.85	879.32 1 <i>2</i> 73.32	878.53 1 <i>272</i> .17	905.70 1311.52	904.88 1310.34	932.87 1350.87
EG technician	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19 010 27	991.30 019 EA	1021.96
Graduate dietitian	1042.12	1074.35	1073.92	1095.84	1094.86	1128.72	1127.70	340.30 1162.58
Graduate pharmacist	1037.80 928.55	1069.90 957.27	1069.47 956.89	1091.30 976.42	1090.32 975.54	1124.04 1005.71	1123.03 1004.80	1157.76 1035.88
Histology technician II	991.71 949.60	1022.38 978.97	1021.97 978.58	1042.83 998.55	1041.89 997.65	1074.11 1028.51	1073.14 1027.59	1106.33 1059.37
Infant care technician	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Clinical Laboratory Technician   0-2 Years	989.66	1020.27	1019.87	1040.68	1039.74	1071.90	1070.94	1104.06
5-10 Years	1023.27	1054.92	1054.50	1076.02	1075.05	1108.30	1107.30	1141.55
10-15 Years	1051.27 1079.27	1083.78 1112.65	1083.35 1112.20	1105.46 1134.90	1104.46 1133.88	1138.62 1168.95	1137.60 1167.90	1172.78 1204.02
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 0-2 Years	1032.57 1047.56 1066.22	1064.51 1079.96 1099.20	1064.08 1079.53 1098.76	1085.80 1101.56 1121.18	1084.82 1100.57 1120.18	1118.37 1134.61 1154.82	1117.36 1133.59 1153.78	1151.92 1168.65 1189.46

ALPHABETICA	AL UNIFORM	A JOB TITLES	AND UNIFOF	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPTIALS	RATES FOR I	<b>IOSPTIALS</b>	_	
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
10-15 Years	1094.23	1128.07	1127.62	1150.63	1149.60	1185.15	1184.08	1220.70
15 + Years	1122.18	1156.89	1156.43	1180.03	1178.97	1215.43	1214.33	1251.89
<b>Clinical Laboratory Technician Merged</b>								
0-2 Years	989.66	1020.27	1019.87	1040.68	1039.74	1071.90	1070.94	1104.06
2-5 Years	1004.57	1035.64	1035.22	1056.35	1055.40	1088.04	1087.06	1120.68
5-10 Years	1023.27	1054.92	1054.50	1076.02	1075.05	1108.30	1107.30	1141.55
10-15 Years	1051.27	1083.78	1083.35	1105.46	1104.46	1138.62	1137.60	1172.78
15 + Years	1079.27	1112.65	1112.20	1134.90	1133.88	1168.95	1167.90	1204.02
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I								
0-2 Years	1083.01	1116.50	1116.05	1138.83	1137.80	1172.99	1171.93	1208.18
2-5 Years	1097.94	1131.90	1131.45	1154.54	1153.50	1189.18	1188.11	1224.86
5 -10 Years	1116.60	1151.13	1150.67	1174.15	1173.09	1209.37	1208.28	1245.65
10-15 Years	1144.64	1180.04	1179.57	1203.64	1202.56	1239.75	1238.63	1276.94
15 + Years	1172.61	1208.88	1208.40	1233.06	1231.95	1270.05	1268.91	1308.15
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II								
0-2 Years	1163.27	1199.25	1198.78	1223.24	1222.14	1259.94	1258.81	1297.74
2-5 Years	1178.26	1214.70	1214.21	1238.99	1237.88	1276.16	1275.01	1314.44
5-10 Years	1196.89	1233.91	1233.42	1258.59	1257.46	1296.35	1295.18	1335.24
10-15 Years	1224.93	1262.81	1262.31	1288.07	1286.91	1326.71	1325.51	1366.51
15 +Years	1252.93	1291.68	1291.16	1317.51	1316.33	1357.04	1355.82	1397.75
<b>Clinical Laboratory Technologist Merged</b>								
0-2 Years	1083.01	1116.50	1116.05	1138.83	1137.80	1172.99	1171.93	1208.18
2-5 Years	1097.94	1131.90	1131.45	1154.54	1153.50	1189.18	1188.11	1224.86
5-10 Years	1116.60	1151.13	1150.67	1174.15	1173.09	1209.37	1208.28	1245.65

ALPHABETIC	AL UNIFORM	A JOB TITLES	AND UNIFO	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR I	<b>IOSPITALS</b>	_	
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
10-15 Years	1144.64	1180.04	1179.57	1203.64	1202.56	1239.75	1238.63	1276.94
	1172.61	1208.88	1208.40	1233.06	1231.95	1270.05	1268.91	1308.15
	832.01	857.74	857.39	874.89	874.11	901.14	900.32	928.17
	1340.40	1381.86	1381.31	1409.50	1408.24	1451.79	1450.48	1495.34
Licensed practical nurse 1,2,3,4 LPN 0 -3 Years	1076 .26	1109.55	1109.11	1131.74	1130.72	1165.69	1164.64	1200.66
LPN 3 - 6 Years	1090.02	1123.73	1123.28	1146.20	1145.17	1180.59	1179.53	1216.01
	1109.08	1143.38	1142.93	1166.25	1165.20	1201.24	1200.16	1237.28
	1130.90	1165.88	1165.42	1189.20	1188.13	1224.88	1223.78	1261.63
LPN 15 - 20 Years	1140.44	1175.71	1175.24	1199.22	1198.14	1235.20	1234.09	1272.26
	1158.15	1193.97	1193.49	1217.85	1216.76	1254.39	1253.26	1292.02
	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
	890.78	918.33	917.97	936.70	935.86	964.80	963.93	993.74
Radiation Oncology Therapist	1067.28	1100.29	1099.85	1122.30	1121.29	1155.97	1154.93	1190.65
0-2 Years	1155.54	1191.28	1190.81	1215.11	1214.01	1251.56	1250.44	1289.11
Reg Nuclr Med Technologist 0-2 Years	1067.28 1155.54 1210.16	1100.29 1191.28 1247.59	1099.85 1190.81 1247.09	1122.30 1215.11 1272.54	1121.29 1214.01 1271.40	1155.97 1251.56 1310.72	1154.93 1250.44 1309.54	1190.65 1289.11 1350.04
Registered pharmacist Reg Pharm 0-2 Years	2034.44 2110.95 2172.10	2097.36 21 76.24 2239.28	2096.52 2175.36 2238.39	2139.31 2219.76 2284.07	2137.39 2217.76 2282.01	2203.49 2286.35 2352.59	2201.50 2284.29 2350.47	2269.59 2354.94 2423.17

ALPHABETIC	<b>AL UNIFORN</b>	A JOB TITLES	AND UNIFOF	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS	RATES FOR I	<b>IOSPITALS</b>		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October 1, 2023	1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Reg Pharm 10+ YearsRegistered Respiratory Therapist	2294.51 1253.85	2365.47 1292.63	2364.52 1292.11	2412.78 1318.48	2410.61 1317.29	2485.16 1358.03	2482.92 1356.81	2559.71 1398.77
Registry Elig Nuclr Med.Techng	1012.73	1044.05	1043.63	1064.93	1063.97	1096.88	1095.90	1129.79
registry trig respirators Respiratory therapy technician	1203./3	1034.08	1033.66	1054.76	1053.81	1303.75	1302.37 1085.42	1118.99
Respiratory therapy trainee	790.69	815.14	814.81	831.44	830.69	856.38	855.61	882.07
Special Procedure Technician	1273.22	1312.60	1312.07	1338.85	1337.65	1379.02	1377.78	1420.39
Ultra Sound Technologist - registered	1253.85	1292.63	1292.11 10.47 0F	1318.48	1317.29	1358.03	1356.81	1398.77
UIT'S SOUND LECHNOLOGISL	1210.90	C5.8421	CQ' / 47 I	12/3/2	11.2721	70,1151	1310.34	19,0051
Radiologic Technologist 0-2 Years	1195.03	1231.99	1231.50	1256.63	1255.50	1294.33	1293.17	1333.16
2-5 Years	1241.74	1280.14	1279.63	1305.74	1304.56	1344.91	1343.70	1385.26
5-10 Years	1297.73	1337.87	1337.34	1364.63	1363.40	1405.57	1404.31	1447.74
10+Years	1335.09	1376.38	1375.83	1403.91	1402.65	1446.03	1444.73	1489.41
Social Work Assistant								
0-2 years experience	998.89	1029.78	1029.37	1050.38	1049.43	1081.89	1080.92	1114.35
1-2 years experience	1040.18	CC.2/01	26 1/0L	1093.80	18,2601	1126.61	09.6211	1160.41
2-3 years experience	1081.54 22.021	1114.99	40.4111	113/.29	1136.27	11/1.41	11 /0.35	1206.01 1205
3-4 years experience	11/22.80	1157.53	1157.07	1180.68	11 79.62	1216.10	1215.00	1252.58
MSW social worker		1010	1010 00	00 1001		00000	01 0101	1010
U-1 year experience	1219.03 1260.38	1256./3 1299.36	1298.84	1281.86 1325.35	1280./1 1324.16	1320.32 1365.11	1319.13 1363.88	1359.93 1406.06
2-3 years experience	1301.69	1341.95	1341.41	1368.79	1367.55	1409.85	1408.59	1452.15

ALPHABETICA	AL UNIFORM Octobe	NIFORM JOB TITLES October 1, 2020	AND UNIFOF October	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS October 1, 2020 October 1, 2021 October 1, 2022	RATES FOR I Octobe	S FOR HOSPITALS October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
3-4 years experience     4-5 years experience     5-6 years experience     6-7 years experience     7-8 years experience     7-9 years experience and over	1343.03 1384.40 1425.71 1467.08 1549.68	1384.57 1427.22 1489.80 1512.45 1555.01 1597.61	1384.01 1426.64 1469.22 1511.85 1554.39 1596.97	1412.26 1455.76 1499.20 1542.70 1586.11 1629.56	1410.99 1454.45 1497.85 1541.31 1584.68 1628.10	1454.63 1499.43 1544.18 1588.98 1633.69 1678.45	1453.32 1498.08 1542.79 1587.55 1632.22 1676.94	1498.27 1544.41 1590.51 1636.65 1682.70 1728.80
Senior social Worker	1518.23 1559.60 1600.88 1642.20	1565.19 1607.84 1650.39 1692.99	1564.56 1607.20 1649.73 1692.31	1596.49 1640.00 1683.40 1726.85	1595.05 1638.52 1681.88 1725.30	1644.38 1689.20 1778.66	1642.90 1687.68 1732.34 1777.06	1693.71 1739.88 1785.92 1832.02

50

October 1, Hiring M Rate 769.30 769.30 769.30 769.30 769.30 769.30 769.30 771.12 771.12 771.12 779.00 782.90 782.90 782.90 782.90 782.90 782.90 782.90 779.66 794.63 794.63 794.63					
Hiring     Minimum     Hiring     Minimum       Rate     Rate     Rate     Rate       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.67     794.65       775.04     793.09     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79     77       782.90     807.11     806.79     78.48       782.90     807.11     806.79     78.48       782.90     807.11     806.79     79.68       782.90     807.11	October 1, 2021	October 1, 2022		October 1, 2023	123
Rate     Rate     Rate     Rate       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.65     777       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     792.77       775.04     793.09     802.77       775.04     793.09     802.77       775.04     793.09     802.77       775.04 </th <th>-</th> <th>Hiring Mini</th> <th>Minimum Hii</th> <th>Hiring M</th> <th>Minimum</th>	-	Hiring Mini	Minimum Hii	Hiring M	Minimum
789.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     769.30   793.09   792.77     771.12   794.65   771.12     771.12   794.65   771.11     771.12   794.65   794.65     771.12   794.67   794.65     775.00   803.09   802.71     775.01   793.06   807.11     771.12   794.65   806.79     775.00   807.11   806.79     782.90   807.11   806.79     782.90   807.11   806.79     790.69   815.14   814.81		Rate Rá	Rate R	Rate	Rate
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       775.04     794.97     794.65       775.04     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     798.69       775.04     794.65     794.65       779.00     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     <				832.47	58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     798.69       775.04     799.01     798.65       775.00     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     815.14     814.81       790.69     <				2.47	58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     798.69       7775.04     799.01     798.69       7775.04     799.01     798.69       779.05     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90					58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       777.00     803.09     802.77       779.00     807.11     806.79       772.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.91     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     <				832.47	58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     878.69       775.00     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     <					58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     793.69       775.04     794.05     794.65       775.04     794.01     794.65       775.04     794.01     794.65       775.04     794.01     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     <					58.22
769.30     793.09     792.77       771.12     794.97     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     794.07     794.65       775.04     794.01     794.65       775.04     794.01     794.65       775.04     794.01     794.65       779.00     803.09     802.77       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     <					58.22
771.12     794.65       771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     794.07     794.65       775.04     794.07     794.65       775.04     794.07     794.65       775.04     794.07     794.65       779.00     803.09     802.77       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79  779.69     815.14     814.81  790.69     815.14     814.81  790.69     815.14     814.81  790.63     819.21     818.88  794.63     819.21     818.88  794.63     819.21     818.88					58.22
771.12     794.97     794.65       775.04     799.01     794.65       775.04     799.01     798.69       775.04     799.01     798.69       775.04     793.09     802.77       779.00     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       780.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					60.26
775.04     799.01     798.69       779.00     807.11     806.79       779.00     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       780.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.63     815.14     814.81       790.63     815.14     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88       734.63     819.21     818.88					60.26
779.00     803.09     802.77       779.00     803.09     802.77       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       60.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.63     819.21     818.88       61     734.63     819.21     818.88					64.62
782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       10.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.63     815.14     814.81       790.63     819.21     818.88       11     794.63     819.21     818.88			843.72 84		869.03
782-90     807.11     806.79       101     782-90     807.11     806.79       101     782-90     807.11     806.79       101     782-90     807.11     806.79       102     782-90     807.11     806.79       103     782-90     807.11     806.79       104     782-90     807.11     806.79       115     811.15     810.82     811.15       106     815.14     814.81     790.69       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     814.81     814.81       106     815.14     818.88     819.21     818.88       106     819.21     818.88     818.88     818.88					173.39
782-90     807.11     806.79       tor     782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       782-90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       10.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.63     819.21     818.88       44     794.63     819.21     818.88       44     794.63     819.21     818.88					173.39
782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.63     815.14     814.81       790.64     815.14     814.81       790.65     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					173.39
782.90     807.11     806.79       782.90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					173.39
782.90     807.11     806.79       786.82     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					173.39
786.82     811.15     810.82       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					173.39
790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       790.69     815.14     814.81       794.63     819.21     818.88       794.63     819.21     818.88					877.76
. 790.69 815.14 814.81 . 790.69 815.14 814.81 . 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88					82.07
. 790.69 815.14 814.81 . 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88					82.07
. 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88					82.07
. 794.63 819.21 818.88 . 794.63 819.21 818.88					86.48
. 794.63 819.21 818.88					86.48
					86.48
. 794.63 819.21 818.88			860.66 85		86.48

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Medical records/coding clerk	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Registrar	794.63	819.21	818.88	835.59	834.84	860.66	859.89	886.48
Motor vehicle operator	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Cook's helper	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT)	802.57	827.39	827.06	843.94	843.18	869.26	868.48	895.34
Admitting clerk	806.71	831.66	831.32	848.29	847.53	873.74	872.95	899.95
Washer	811.04	836.12	835.78	852.84	852.08	878.43	877.64	904.78
Accounting clerk	811.04	836.12	835.78	852.84	852.08	878.43	877.64	904.78
Telephone operator	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Dental Assistant	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Accounts pay/receivable clerk	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Cashier (business office)	815.21	840.42	840.09	857.23	856.46	882.95	882.16	909.44
Electrician's helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Painter's helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Carpenter's helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Plumber's helper	819.38	844.72	844.38	861.61	860.84	887.46	886.66	914.08
Payroll clerk	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Typist/transcriptionist	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Infant care technician	823.60	849.07	848.73	866.05	865.27	892.03	891.23	918.79
Morgue attendant	827.77	853.37	853.03	870.44	869.65	896.55	895.75	923.45
Laboratory trainee	832.01	857.74	857.39	874.89	874.11	901.14	900.32	928.17
Dental technician/asst. certified	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Surgical Technologist	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Typist/transcriptionist (medical)	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Secretary I	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87
Maintenance worker	836.22	862.08	861.73	879.32	878.53	905.70	904.88	932.87

ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS BY RATE	JNIFORM JO	B TITLES AND	UNIFORM N	IINIMUM RATE	S FOR HOSF	ITALS BY RAI	щ	
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobel	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Incinerator Attendant	840.09	866.07	865.72	883.39	882.59	68.606	200.00	937.19
EKG technician	848.84	875.09	874.74	892.59	891.79	919.37	918.54	946.95
Third cook/special order cook	865.61	892.38	892.03	910.23	909.41	937.54	936.70	965.67
Fireman	874.00	901.03	900.67	919.05	918.22	946.62	945.77	975.02
Painter B	874.00	901.03	900.67	919.05	918.22	946.62	945.77	975.02
Practical dietitian	890.78	918.33	917.97	936.70	935.86	964.80	963.93	993.74
Senior secretary/secretary II	894.97	922.65	922.28	941.10	940.25	969.33	968.46	998.41
Painter A	907.61	935.68	935.30	954.39	953.53	983.02	982.13	1012.51
EEG technician	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19	991.30	1021.96
Second cook	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19	991.30	1021.96
Carpenter B	916.07	944.40	944.02	963.29	962.42	992.19	991.30	1021.96
Plumber B	920.27	948.73	948.35	967.70	966.83	996.73	995.83	1026.63
Hemodialysis technician	928.55	957.27	956.89	976.42	975.54	1005.71	1004.80	1035.88
Dental hygienist	928.55	957.27	956.89	976.42	975.54	1005.71	1004.80	1035.88 -
Emergency Medical Technician								
(EMT)/attendant	941.31	970.42	970.03	989.83	988.93	1019.52	1018.61	1050.11
Admin/exec/secretary III	941.31	970.42	970.03	989.83	988.93	1019.52	1018.61	1050.11
Electrician B	945.46	974.70	974.31	994.19	993.30	1024.02	1023.10	1054.74
Maintenance mechanic	945.46	974.70	974.31	994.19	993.30	1024.02	1023.10	1054.74
Histology technician I	949.60	978.97	978.58	998.55	<b>997.65</b>	1028.51	1027.59	1059.37
Mason-plasterer	974.85	1005.00	1004.60	1025.10	1024.17	1055.85	1054.90	1087.53
Lead Painter	987.44	1017.98	1017.57	1038.34	1037.41	1069.49	1068.52	1101.57
Cardiopulmonary technician	987.44	1017.98	1017.57	1038.34	1037.41	1069.49	1068.52	1101.57
Lab tech Merged 0-2 Yrs	989.66	1020.27	1019.87	1040.68	1039.74	1071.90	1070.94	1104.06
Clinical Laboratory Technician I 0-2 Yrs	989.66	1020.27	1019.87	1040.68	1039.74	1071.90	1070.94	1104.06
Histology technician II	991.71	1022.38	1021.97	1042.83	1041.89	1074.11	1073.14	1106.33

ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS BY RATE	JNIFORM JO	<b>B TITLES AND</b>	UNIFORM N	IINIMUM RATE	S FOR HOSF	ITALS BY RAI	щ	
	Octob	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October 1, 2023	1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
First cook	991.71	1022.38	1021.97	1042.83	1041.89	1074.11	1073.14	1106.33
Carpenter A	995.82	1026.62	1026.21	1047.15	1046.20	1078.56	1077.59	1110.92
Social Work Asst. 0-2 yrs experience	998.89	1029.78	1029.37	1050.38	1049.43	1081.89	1080.92	1114.35
Respiratory therapy technician	1003.06	1034.08	1033.66	1054.76	1053.81	1086.40	1085.42	1118.99
Clinical Laboratory Technician I 2-5 Yrs	1004.57	1035.64	1035.22	1056.35	1055.40	1088.04	1087.06	1120.68
Lab tech Merged 2-5 Yrs	1004.57	1035.64	1035.22	1056.35	1055.40	1088.04	1087.06	1120.68
Plumber A	1012.72	1044.04	1043.62	1064.92	1063.96	1096.87	1095.89	1129.78
Registry Eligible Nuclr Med. Technolog	1012.73	1044.05	1043.63	1064.93	1063.97	1096.88	1095.90	1129.79
Clinical Laboratory Technician I 5-10 Yrs	1023.27	1054.92	1054.50	1076.02	1075.05	1108.30	1107.30	1141.55
Lab tech Merged 5 -10 Yrs	1023.27	1054.92	1054.50	1076.02	1075.05	1108.30	1107.30	1141.55
Electrician A	1025.32	1057.03	1056.61	1078.17	1077.20	1110.52	1109.52	1143.84
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 0-2 Yrs	1032.57	1064.51	1064.08	1085.80	1084.82	1118.37	1117.36	1151.92
Graduate pharmacist	1037.80	1069.90	1069.47	1091.30	1090.32	1124.04	1123.03	1157.76
Social Work Asst. 1-2 yrs experience	1040.18	1072.35	1071.92	1093.80	1092.81	1126.61	1125.60	1160.41
Graduate dietitian	1042.12	1074.35	1073.92	1095.84	1094.86	1128.72	1127.70	1162.58
LPN 0 -3 Years	1076.26	1109.55	1109.11	1131.74	1130.72	1165.69	1164.64	1200.66
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 2-5 Yrs	1047.56	1079.96	1079.53	1101.56	1100.57	1134.61	1133.59	1168.65
Clinical Laboratory Technician I 10-15 Yrs	1051.27	1083.78	1083.35	1105.46	1104.46	1138.62	1137.60	1172.78
Lab tech Merged 10-15 Yrs	1051.27	1083.78	1083.35	1105.46	1104.46	1138.62	1137.60	1172.78
LPN 3 - 6 Years	1090.02	1123.73	1123.28	1146.20	1145.17	1180.59	1179.53	1216.01
Lead Carpenter	1058.87	1091.62	1091.18	1113.45	1112.44	1146.85	1145.82	1181.26
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 5 -10 Yrs	1066.22	1099.20	1098.76	1121.18	1120.18	1154.82	1153.78	1189.46
Radiation Oncology Therapist 0-2 yrs	1067.28	1100.29	1099.85	1122.30	1121.29	1155.97	1154.93	1190.65
Reg Nuclr Med Techngist 0-2 yrs	1067.28	1100.29	1099.85	1122.30	1121.29	1155.97	1154.93	1190.65
LPN 6 -10 Years	1109.08	1143.38	1142.93	1166.25	1165.20	1201.24	1200.16	1237.28
LPN 10 - 15 Years	1130.90	1165.88	1165.42	1189.20	1188.13	1224.88	1223.78	1261.63

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
CI ACCIEICATION	Hiring Bate	Minimum Bate	Hiring Bate	Minimum Bata	Hiring Bate	Minimum Bate	Hiring Bate	Minimum Rate
ULADDIFIUALIUN	nale	nale	nate	nate	nale	nale	nale	nate
Lab tech Merged 15 + Yrs	1079.27	1112.65	1112.20	1134.90	1133.88	1168.95	1167.90	1204.02
Clinical Laboratory Technician I 15 + Yrs	1079.27	1112.65	1112.20	1134.90	1133.88	1168.95	1167.90	1204.02
Lead Plumber	1079.82	1113.22	1112.77	1135.48	1134.45	1169.54	1168.49	1204.63
Social Work Asst. 2-3 yrs exper	1081.54	1114.99	1114.54	1137.29	1136.27	1171.41	1170.35	1206.55
Lab technigst Merged 0-2 Yrs	1083.01	1116.50	1116.05	1138.83	1137.80	1172.99	1171.93	1208.18
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 0 -2 Yrs	1083.01	1116.50	1116.05	1138.83	1137.80	1172.99	1171.93	1208.18
<b>Clinical Laboratory Technician II 10-15 Yrs</b>	1094.23	1128.07	1127.62	1150.63	1149.60	1185.15	1184.08	1220.70
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 2-5 Yrs	1097.94	1131.90	1131.45	1154.54	1153.50	1189.18	1188.11	1224.86
Lab technigst Merged 2-5 Yrs	1097.94	1131.90	1131.45	1154.54	1153.50	1189.18	1188.11	1224.86
Certified respiratory therapy tech	1103.39	1137.52	1137.06	1160.27	1159.23	1195.08	1194.00	1230.93
LPN 15 - 20 Years	1140.44	1175.71	1175.24	1199.22	1198.14	1235.20	1234.09	1272.26
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 5 -10	1116.60	1151.13	1150.67	1174.15	1173.09	1209.37	1208.28	1245.65
Lab technigst Merged 5 -10 Yrs	1116.60	1151.13	1150.67	1174.15	1173.09	1209.37	1208.28	1245.65
Lead Electrician	1117.77	1152.34	1151.88	1175.39	1174.33	1210.65	1209.56	1246.97
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 15 + Yrs	1122.18	1156.89	1156.43	1180.03	1178.97	1215.43	1214.33	1251.89
Social Work Asst. 3-4 yrs exper	1122.80	1157.53	1157.07	1180.68	1179.62	1216.10	1215.00	1252.58
LPN 20 + Years	1158.15	1193.97	1193.49	1217.8S	1216.76	1254.39	1253.26	1292.02
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 10-15	1144.64	1180.04	1179.57	1203.64	1202.56	1239.75	1238.63	1276.94
Lab technigst Merged 10-15 Yrs	1144.64	1180.04	1179.57	1203.64	1202.56	1239.75	1238.63	1276.94
Reg Nuclr Med Technigst 2-4 yrs	1155.54	1191.28	1190.81	1215.11	1214.01	1251.56	1250.44	1289.11
Radiation Oncology Therapist 3+yrs	1155.54	1191.28	1190.81	1215.11	1214.01	1251.56	1250.44	1289.11
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 0-2 Yrs	1163.27	1199.25	1198.78	1223.24	1222.14	1259.94	1258.81	1297.74
	1172.61	1208.88	1208.40	1233.06	1231.95	1270.05	1268.91	1308.15
Lab technigst Merged 15 + Yrs	1172.61	1208.88	1208.40	1233.06	1231.95	1270.05	1268.91	1308.15
Registered Dietitian (RD) 0-2 Yrs	1176.37	1212.75	1212.27	1237.01	1235.90	1274.12	1272.97	1312.34
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 2-5 Yrs	1178.26	1214.70	1214.21	1238.99	1237.88	1276.16	1275.01	1314.44

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	October	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
NULTATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
	IIII		IIarc	וומרפ		IIato	liato	
Radiologic Technologist 0-2 Yrs	1195.03	1231.99	1231.50	1256.63	12S5.50	1294.33	1293.17	1333.16
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 5-10	1196.89	1233.91	1233.42	1258.59	1257.46	1296.35	1295.18	1335.24
Registry Elig Resp Therapist	1203.73	1240.96	1240.46	1265.78	1264.64	1303.75	1302.57	1342.86
Registered Dietitian (RD) 2-4 Yrs	1204.35	1241.60	1241.10	1266.43	1265.29	1304.42	1303.24	1343.55
Reg Nucl Med Techngst 5+ yrs	1210.16	1247.59	1247.09	1272.54	1271.40	1310.72	1309.54	1350.04
Ultra Sound Technologist	1210.90	1248.35	1247.85	1273.32	1272.17	1311.52	1310.34	1350.87
Echocardiograph Technologist	1210.90	1248.35	1247.85	1273.32	1272.17	1311.52	1310.34	1350.87
MSW 0-1 yr experience	1219.03	1256.73	1256.22	1281.86	1280.71	1320.32	1319.13	1359.93
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 10-15	1224.93	1262.81	1262.31	1288.07	1286.91	1326.71	1325.51	1366.51
Registered Dietitian (RD) 4-10 Yrs	1232.38	1270.49	1269.98	1295.90	1294.74	1334.78	1333.58	1374.82
Radiologic Technologist 2-5 Yrs	1241.74	1280.14	1279.63	1305.74	1304.56	1344.91	1343.70	1385.26
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 15 +	1252.93	1291.68	1291.16	1317.51	1316.33	1357.04	1355.82	1397.75
Registered Resp Therapist	1253.85	1292.63	1292.11	1318.48	1317.29	1358.03	1356.81	1398.77
Ultra Sound Technigist - regstd	1253.85	1292.63	1292.11	1318.48	1317.29	1358.03	1356.81	1398.77
MSW 1-2 yrs experience	1260.38	1299.36	1298.84	1325.35	1324.16	1365.11	1363.88	1406.06
Registered Dietitian (RD) 10+ Yrs	1260.40	1299.38	1298.86	1325.37	1324.18	1365.13	1363.90	1406.08
Stationery enginr-one license reqrd	1268.97	1308.22	1307.69	1334.38	1333.18	1374.41	1373.17	1415.64
Special Procedure Technician	1273.22	1312.60	1312.07	1338.85	1337.65	1379.02	1377.78	1420.39
Radiologic Technologist 5-10 Yrs	1297.73	1337.87	1337.34	1364.63	1363.40	1405.57	1404.31	1447.74
MSW 2-3 yrs experience	1301.69	1341.95	1341.41	1368.79	1367.55	1409.85	1408.59	1452.15
Radiologic Technologist 10+ Yrs	1335.09	1376.38	1375.83	1403.91	1402.65	1446.03	1444.73	1489.41
Lead Radiologic Technologist	1340.40	1381.86	1381.31	1409.50	1408.24	1451.79	1450.48	1495.34
MSW 3-4 yrs experience	1343.03	1384.57	1384.01	1412.26	1410.99	1454.63	1453.32	1498.27
MSW 4-5 yrs experience	1384.40	1427.22	1426.64	1455.76	1454.45	1499.43	1498.08	1544.41
MSW 5-6 yrs experience	1425.71	1469.80	1469.22	1499.20	1497.85	1544.18	1542.79	1590.51
MSW 6-7 yrs experience	1467.08	1512.45	1511.85	1542.70	1541.31	1588.98	1587.55	1636.65

UNIFORM	JOB TITLES	S AND UNIFOR	MINIMUN	UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES FOR HOSPITALS BY RATE	<b>OSPITALS B</b>	Y RATE		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	<b>Octobe</b>	October 1, 2022	Octobel	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Engineer - two licenses if required	1479.57 1508.26	1525.33 1566.01	1524.72 1554.72	1555.84 1586 11	1554.44 1584.68	1602.52 1622.60	1601.08 1622.22	1650.60 1682 70
Sr social Worker 0-1 yr experience	1518.23	1565.19	1564.56	1596.49	1595.05	1644.38	1642.90	1693.71
MSW 8-9 yrs experience and over	1549.68	1597.61	1596.97	1629.56	1628.10	1678.45	1676.94	1728.80
Sr social Worker 1-2 yrs experience Sr social Worker 2-3 vrs evnerience	1559.60 1600 88	1607.84 1650 30	1607.20 1649.73	1640.00 1683 40	1638.52 1681 88	1689.20	1687.68	1739.88 1785 02
Sr social Worker 3-4 yrs experience	1642.20	1692.99	1692.31	1726.85	1725.30	1778.66	1777.06	1832.02
Reg Pharmacist 0-2 Years	2034.44	2097.36	2096.52	2139.31	2137.39	2203.49	2201.50	2269.59
Reg Pharmacist 3-5 Years	2110.95	2176.24	2175.36	2219.76	2217.76	2286.35	2284.29	2354.94
Reg Pharmacist 6-9 Years	2172.10	2239.28	2238.39	2284.07	2282.01	2352.59	2350.47	2423.17
Reg Pharmacist 10+ Years	2294.51	2365.47	2364.52	2412.78	2410.61	2485.16	2482.92	2559.71

#### ARTICLE XI Hours

1. The regular work week for all full-time Employees shall consist of the number of hours per week regularly worked by such Employees as of June 30, 1982. The regular work week for part time Employees shall not exceed five (5) days. Such hours, not to exceed thirty-seven and one half (37.5) per week, shall be specified in a stipulation (Stipulation II) between the Union and each Employer, to be annexed hereto. Employees shall receive two (2) days off in each full calendar week except in the event of overtime. The work week shall commence on Sunday and end on Saturday.

2. The regular work day for all full-time Employees covered by this Agreement shall consist of the number of hours in the regular work week as above defined, divided by five (5), exclusive of an unpaid lunch period, except for those Employees who received a paid lunch period as of June 30, 1982.

# 3. Part-timers:

(a) The parties agree that it is a desirable objective to have fulltime jobs in this industry.

(b) The Employer will not split a full-time position in which there is an incumbent into part-time jobs.

(c) Conversion of Part-Timers to Full-Time Workers:

All part-time Employees who have worked for an average of the regular full-time work week for that classification for any consecutive four (4) months shall become full-time Employees. All hours worked on special projects, filling in for Employees on leave of absence, vacations, and emergencies, shall not be counted towards meeting the aforementioned requirement, except if an Employee is specifically hired for permanent vacation relief and/or permanent leaves of absence relief. In each instance where the Employer claims that a part-time Employee worked on a special project or filled in for an Employee on leave of absence, vacation or in an emergency, the Employer upon request of the Union, shall within sixty (60) days identify the Employee whom he/she filled in for and the length of the leave of absence, vacation or in the case of a special project or emergency circumstance, the nature of the project or emergency and the duration of such additional temporary service.

(d) <u>Right To Extra Hours:</u>

Whenever practicable, pre-scheduled hours and available regular hours shall be offered to part-time Employees based upon classification seniority.

(e) A local institution-based Labor/Management Committee may undertake an analysis of why part-time employment exists and measures which can be instituted to create more full-time employment. All relevant information regarding part-timers will be provided to the Union and to the local Labor/Management Committee.

4. Employees required by the Employer to be on-call off Employer premises

shall receive, during such time, a rate of pay equal to three-fourths (3/4) of their regular base pay. Employees on-call called to work at other than during their normal work hours shall receive time and one-half for all such hours worked outside of their normal work day, with a guaranteed minimum of pay for four (4) hours work. There shall be no pyramiding of pay under this provision.

5. Employees shall be entitled to two (2) rest periods of fifteen (15) minutes each in each working day, as assigned by the Employer to each Employee. Employees who are required to work overtime shall be entitled to an additional fifteen (15) minute rest period for each full half shift worked.

6. Employees shall be afforded a reasonable time during which to cash pay checks.

7. Where the Employer requires periodic medical examinations of its Employees, such examinations shall be performed during an Employee's scheduled work shift.

#### 8. Monitoring and Dispute Resolution re: Full-Time Status:

The Employer shall submit part-timer status reports in a Lotus format, or other agreed upon format, to the Union every four (4) months. Reports shall be by department and include name, social security number, date of hire, salary, straight time and overtime hours worked. If hours were worked under paragraph 3(c) above, it shall be noted in the report. Disputes over an Employee's full-time status shall be submitted to CIPC which will hear, decide or arbitrate the case in accordance with the CIPC rules and timetable.

9. The Employer shall not use part-timers to subvert the meaning and intent of this Agreement as reflected in Article VII, (3) and Article XI, (3) (c) and (8).

## ARTICLE XII Weekend Scheduling

1. Each Employer shall schedule each permanent full-time Employee who is regularly scheduled to work five (5) days a week for every other weekend off except:

(a) Where an Employee agrees to or requests another schedule of days off and the Employer consents,

(b) Where the Union and the Employer otherwise agree to a different schedule with respect to a particular unit, department or job classification,

(c) Where such scheduling would result in an unreasonable interference with the efficient operation of a unit or department, and(d) In emergencies.

2. For full-time Employees hired during the term of this Agreement (October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2024), this provision shall apply after two (2) years of employment.

3. (a) The term "weekend" shall mean Saturday and Sunday.

A shift which begins on Friday night with a majority of the time to be worked on Saturday morning is considered a weekend shift, whereas a shift which begins on Sunday night with a majority of the time to be worked on Monday morning is not considered a weekend shift.

(b) Employees who were on the payroll of the institution prior to October 12, 1986, and have continued on the payroll thereafter, and were on an every other weekend work schedule and not previously required to make up unscheduled absences as of October 12, 1986, will not be required to make up (i) the first three (3) days of absence on scheduled weekend work days due to illness or injury absent unjustified use of sick leave or (ii) absences on scheduled weekend work days due to vacations, holidays and paid or unpaid leaves (including but not limited to leave for which disability or workers compensation is received).

(c) Employees who were on the payroll of the institution prior to October 12, 1986 and have continued on the payroll thereafter, and were on an every other weekend work schedule and previously required to make up unscheduled absences as of October 12, 1986, may be required to make up unscheduled absences on a scheduled weekend work day due to sick leave (including paid and unpaid sick days) only; they will not be required to make up absences on scheduled weekend work days due to vacations, holidays and paid or unpaid leaves (including but not limited to leave for which disability or workers compensation is received).

(d) Employees who are hired on or after October 12, 1986 and have been or are on an every other weekend work schedule may be required to make up unscheduled absences on a scheduled weekend work day due to sick leave (including paid or unpaid sick days) only; they will not be required to make up absences on scheduled weekend work days due to vacations, holidays and paid or unpaid leaves (including but not limited to leave for which disability or workers compensation is received).

(e) Where a regular, full-time Employee or a temporary full-time Employee has worked a permanent regular schedule of weekends off, his/ her schedule of weekends off shall not be reduced while he/she is in his/her present position or shift, except in an emergency. Where work assignments are otherwise changed such Employee shall have his/her schedule of weekends off maintained unless to do so would unreasonably impair the efficiency of the Employer. Where an Employee elects with the Employer's consent a changed work assignment with prior knowledge of a new schedule of weekends off such new schedule shall prevail.

(f) As previously implemented, an Employee who desires to waive the every other weekend off requirement, shall, if consented to by the Employer, execute a written waiver which may not be revoked without the agreement of the Employer during the life of the Agreement.

(g) Grievances alleging violations of Article XII shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement, but shall, if the matter proceeds to arbitration, be determined by an arbitrator se-

lected from the panel of CIPC arbitrators who shall have the following authority and responsibility:

i. to determine if there have been misapplications or violations of Article XII by the Employer or the Union;

ii. to issue final and binding decisions within seven (7) days of hearing a case;

iii. upon finding of Employer misapplication, may issue one of the following remedies:

1. Time and one-half pay for time worked on weekends in violation of this Article by the Employee; or

2. Compensation time off for time worked on weekends in violation of this Article by the Employee.

#### ARTICLE XIII Overtime

1. Employees shall be paid one and one-half (11/2) times their regular pay for authorized time worked in excess of the regular full-time work week for their classification as set forth in Article XI, Section land in the case of a regular full-time Employee who is regularly scheduled to work five (5) days per week,<sup>15</sup> for authorized time worked in excess of the regular full-time work day as defined in Article XI, paragraph 2.<sup>16</sup>

2. The following paid absences shall be considered as time worked for the purposes of computing overtime: holidays, vacations, jury duty days, condolence days, paternity day, and marriage days. Unpaid absences shall not be considered as time worked.

3. (a) The Employer will assign, on an equitable basis, "on-call" duty and required pre scheduled overtime among qualified Employees. Employees shall be required to work overtime when necessary for the proper administration of the Employer.

(b) Each Employer shall establish a procedure for assigning overtime, in the first instance, among qualified Employees who wish to work overtime, except in emergencies. Such procedure shall include a provision whereby such Employees are assigned in rotation, starting with the Employee on duty who has the most classification seniority. Pursuant to such procedure, a volunteer ovellime roster shall be compiled and posted every six (6) months. A part-timer shall not receive premium overtime hours prior to full-timers, unless he/she has greater classification seniority.

(c) Where the Employer assigns overtime on a compulsory basis due to an emergency or the inability to obtain a qualified volunteer on a timely basis, assignments shall be made among qualified Employees on a rotating basis starting with the Employee on duty who has the

<sup>15</sup> However, the three-quarter (3/4) pay for off-premises on-call hours shall be included in regular pay for calculating overtime after 40 hours in a work week.

least classification seniority.

- 4. The work week shall commence on Sunday and end on Saturday.
- 5. There shall be no pyramiding of overtime.

## ARTICLE XIV Shifts and Shift Differentials

1. Employees working on shifts whose straight time hours end after seven (7:00) p.m. or begin prior to six (6:00) a.m. shall receive the following differentials:

(a) Licensed Practical Nurses - an amount equal to the greater often percent (10%) of the LPN's salary including specialty differential, or three-fourths (3/4) of the shift differential paid to Registered Nurses in the same institution, whichever is greater.

(b) All Other Employees - a shift differential of ten percent (10%) of salary, including specialty differential.

2. Employees shall work in the shift, shifts or shift arrangements for which they were hired. The Employer may change an Employee's shift only for good and sufficient reason, and any such change shall apply to the Employee with the least classification seniority qualified to do the work.

Whenever the Employee requests a change of shift, approval of such request shall not be unreasonably withheld if a vacancy exists in the classification in which he/she is then working and if more than one Employee applies, such change shall apply to the Employee with the most classification seniority qualified to do the work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employees shall have preference in filling vacancies on another shift in the classification in which they are then working over new Employees.

3. The foregoing shall not interfere with any training program requiring rotation of shifts.

4. Licensed Practical Nurses who are assigned by the Employer to "in-charge" responsibilities shall receive a differential in a dollar amount equal to the RN incharge differential at that institution. In each Hospital this amount may differ.

5. There shall be no split shifts.

### ARTICLE XV Holidays

1. Employees shall be entitled to a total of thirteen (13) paid holidays within each year, except as otherwise provided in 3(b) below. If a holiday falls within an Employee's first thirty (30) days of employment, then such Employee shall receive pay for the holiday only upon completion of twelve (12) months of employment.

2. At least nine (9) such holidays specified in Section 1 above shall be legal holidays, including Juneteenth, and the balance shall be either legal holidays, religious holidays, free days, or a combination thereof. In any event, such holidays shall be specified in a stipulation (Stipulation IV) between the Union and

each Employer to be annexed hereto. On a calendar year basis, each Employee shall be permitted to designate two (2) of his/her earned free days to be used for religious holidays, provided the granting of such request will not unreasonably interfere with the operation of the unit in which the Employee is assigned to work.

3. (a) Recognizing that the Employer works every day of the year and that it is not possible for all Employees to be off on the same day, the Employer shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require any Employee to work on any of the holidays herein specified; however, the Employer agrees to distribute holidays off on an equitable basis.

(b) In the event an Employee is required to work on any of the first nine (9) legal holidays specified in Stipulation IV annexed hereto, he/ she shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half his/her regular pay for all hours worked on the holiday, and shall in addition, receive an additional day off with regular pay within thirty (30) days of the holiday, or an extra day's regular pay in lieu thereof, as determined by the Employer. Where premium pay has been paid for more than nine (9) holidays or more paid holidays have been granted, such practice shall continue.

(c) An Employee required to work on any holiday other than those specified in (b) above shall receive a day off with regular pay within thirty (30) days of the holiday, or, in lieu thereof, shall be paid a day's regular pay at the option of the Employer.

(d) If a legal holiday falls on an Employee's regularly scheduled day off, the Employee shall receive an additional day's regular pay or a day off with regular pay within thirty (30) days of the holiday.

(e) If a legal holiday falls during an Employee's vacation, at the option of the Employer the vacation shall be extended by one (I) day, or the Employee shall receive an extra day's regular pay or a day off with regular pay. In making the determination, the Employer will take into consideration the Employee's expressed preference.

(f) The day on which a holiday is legally celebrated<sup>17</sup> shall be the day on which holiday premium pay is paid to those Employees who work on that day, except that Christmas shall be legally celebrated on December 25th, New Year's Day shall be legally celebrated on January 1st, and Dr. Martin Luther King's birthday on the day that it is celebrated nationally.

(g) If an Employee is absent the scheduled work day before and/or the scheduled work day after a paid legal holiday or day in lieu thereof, the Employer may demand proof of illness. The Employer may deny pay for such holiday if such proof is requested and not furnished.

4. Employees shall be entitled to the number of "free days" with pay set forth in Stipulation IV hereunto annexed. Free days shall be scheduled in advance

<sup>17</sup> The term "legally celebrated" shall refer to Public Holidays as defined in the New York General Construction Law, Section 24, as amended.

and with the approval of the Employer. Once scheduled, free days shall not be canceled except in an emergency. Free days shall not be designated by the Employer. Free days shall be pro-rated, one for each three (3) months of employment during a year if four (4) free days are scheduled; one for each six (6) months of employment during a year if two (2) free days are scheduled. The Employer shall retain the same rights to require work on the free days scheduled as on holidays.

5. Employees will be entitled to time off with pay to vote at city, state or federal elections, in accordance with New York State Law.

Employees of the Employer working at hospitals listed in Exhibit D under affiliation contracts shall receive the same number of holidays as Employees of the non-affiliation Employer, and "heat days" or time off equivalent as received by other similar employees, employed by the City of New York at such institutions. In no case shall the total number of holidays be less than those received by similar employees employed by the City of New York at such affiliated institutions.

# ARTICLE XVI Vacations

1. Employees shall be entitled to accrued vacations each year with pay as follows:

(a) For Employees in technical and professional job classifications, except MSW Social Workers:

Period of Continuous Employment	Amount of Paid Vacation
Less than 6 months	None
6 months but less than l year	2 weeks
1 year or more	4 weeks

(b) For MSW Social Workers:

Amount of Paid Vacation
None
11 days
22 days

(c) All Employees working at Employers listed in Exhibit D under affiliation contracts shall receive the same schedule of vacation as received by other similar employees employed by the City of New York at such institutions, except for MSW Social Workers who shall receive the vacation above provided or the vacation provided to similar employees employed by the City of New York, whichever is greater. (d) For all other Employees:

Period of Continuous Employment	Amount of Paid Vacation
Less than 6 months	None
6 months but less than 1 year	1 week
l year but less than 5 years	2 weeks
5 years or more	4 weeks

(e) The foregoing vacation schedules for all classifications of Employees shall be modified as follows:

Effective 7/1/91 - five (5) weeks vacation after twenty-five (25) years.

2. Vacation schedules shall be established taking into account the wishes of the Employees and the needs of the Employer. Where there is a conflict in choice of vacation time among Employees, classification seniority shall prevail.

The vacation eligibility year shall be as heretofore. Each Employee's anniversary date shall be used for vacation purposes.

4. No part of an Employee's scheduled vacation may be charged to sick leave. Vacations shall be taken each year and may not be accrued from year to year and Employees will not be compensated for vacation time not taken.

5. Vacation pay shall be based upon the Employee's regular pay.

6. An Employee shall be paid his/her vacation pay before starting his/her vacation, provided such vacation is scheduled at least four (4) weeks in advance. An Employee may request that the Employer defer vacation pay.

7. Absences due to established illness, maternity leave or injury not exceeding five (5) weeks shall be considered as time worked in determining the amount of vacation pay for Employees with more than one (1) and up to and including but not exceeding five (5) years of service. For Employees with service beyond five (5) years, the period shall be thirteen (13) weeks. If such absence extends into an Employee's scheduled vacation period, the vacation shall be postponed and another period assigned. If disability due to illness, maternity or injury begins after an Employee commences his/her vacation, the original vacation shall remain in effect. Substantial proof of such illness, maternity or injury must be provided by the Employee upon return to work after any absence caused by such illness, maternity or injury.

Hours of vacation pay for each week of vacation to which an Employee may be entitled as above defined shall be computed on the basis of the average number of hours per week actually worked as above defined, including premium hours, during the twelve (12) calendar months immediately preceding the Employee's vacation.

All involuntary absences as herein limited which exceed the aforesaid five (5) or thirteen (13) weeks period shall not be deemed nor considered as time worked in computing vacation pay and vacation pay for such Employees shall be pro-rated by relating the number of weeks actually worked during the vacation eligibility year with the number of days or weeks such Employee would have been contractually entitled to had he/she worked the entire vacation eligibility year.

All voluntary absences shall not be deemed nor considered as time worked in the computation of vacation pay. Where an Employee has been voluntarily absent, his/her vacation pay shall be pro-rated on a percentage basis, i.e., the period of time actually worked as that period relates to the period of vacation pay due him/her.

An Employee who has quit or who has been discharged or who has lost his/ her seniority pursuant to the terms of Article IX, and who has not received his/ her vacation from work with pay to which he/she is entitled, shall receive a vacation allowance, the amount of which is to be calculated in accordance with the last preceding paragraph.

## ARTICLE XVII Sick Leave

1. Employees, after thirty (30) days employment, shall be entitled to paid sick leave eamed at the rate of one (1) day for each month of employment, retroactive to date of hire, up to a maximum of twelve (12) days per year. Employees, after one (1) or more years of employment with the Employer, shall be entitled to a total of twelve (12) additional days ofsick leave as of the beginning of his/ her second and each subsequent year of employment, provided that at no time will an Employee be entitled to accumulate more than sixty (60) working days of sick leave during any one (1) year, including the days earned or to be earned in the current sick leave year.

2. Pay for any day of sick leave shall be at the Employee's regular pay.

3. To be eligible for benefits under this Article, an Employee who is absent due to illness or injury must notify his/her supervisor at least one (1) hour before the start of his/her regularly scheduled work day, unless proper excuse is presented for the Employee's inability to call. The Employer may require proof of illness hereunder.

4. Employees who have been on sickleave may be required to be examined by the Employer's Health Service physician before being permitted to return to duty.

5. If an Employee resigns or is dismissed or laid off and has exceeded his/ her allowable sick leave, the excess sick leave paid shall be deducted from any moneys due him/her from the Employer at the time of resignation, layoff, or dismissal.

6. After an Employee has been sick or disabled for a continuous period of more than seven (7) days and is entitled to receive disability payments from the 1199SEIU National Benefit Fund for Health and Human Service Employees, the Employer shall pay sick leave pay to which an Employee is entitled in accordance with the following schedule for each day of continuous sickness or disability exceeding seven (7) days, as above provided, up to the maximum amount accumulated under paragraph 1 above:

Average v pay		Percent of weekly pay from sick pay <sup>18</sup>
		F
Low	<u>High</u>	
\$ 322	\$ 349	30%
\$ 350	\$ 374	36%
\$ 375	\$ 399	40%
\$ 400	\$ 424	44%
\$ 425	\$449	47%
\$ 450	\$474	46%
\$475	\$ 499	48%
\$ 500	\$ 524	51%
\$ 525	\$ 549	53%
\$ 550	\$ 574	55%
\$ 575	\$ 599	57%
\$ 600	\$ 624	53%
\$ 625	\$ 649	55%
\$ 650	\$674	57%
\$ 675	\$ 699	59%
\$ 700	\$724	60%
\$ 725	\$ 749	61%
\$ 750	\$774	59%
\$ 775	\$ 799	60%
\$ 800	\$ 824	61%
\$ 825	\$ 849.	62%
\$ 850	\$ 874	64%
\$ 875	\$ 899	65%
\$ 900	\$ 924	62%
\$ 925	\$ 949	63%
\$ 950	\$ 974	64%
\$ 975	\$ 999	65%
\$ 1,000	\$ 1,024	66%
\$ 1,025	\$ 1,049	67%
\$ 1,050	\$ 1,074	64%
\$1,075	\$ 1,099	65%
\$ 1,100	\$ 1,124	66%
\$ 1,125	\$ 1,149	67%
\$ 1,150	\$ 1,174	67%
\$1,175	\$1,199	68%
\$ 1,200	\$1,224	68%
\$ 1,225	\$1,249	69%
\$ 1,250	\$ 1,274	69%
\$ 1,275	\$ 1,299	70%
\$ 1,300	\$ 1,324	70%

18 Percentage based on low rate in each range.

\$ 1,325	\$ 1,349	71%
\$ 1,350	\$ 1,374	71%
\$ 1,375	\$ 1,399	72%
\$ 1,400	\$ 1,424	73%
\$ 1,425	\$ 1,449	73%
\$ 1,450	\$ 1,474	73%
\$1,475	\$ 1,499	74%
\$1,500	\$ 1,524	74%
\$1,525	\$ 1,549	75%
\$ 1,550	\$ 1,574	75%
\$ 1,575	\$ 1,599	76%
\$ 1,600	\$ 1,624	76%
\$ 1,625	\$ 1,649	76%
\$ 1,650	\$ 1,674	77%
\$ 1,675	\$ 1,699	77%
\$ 1,700	\$ 1,724	77%
\$ 1,725	\$ 1,749	78%
\$ 1,750	\$ 1,774	78%
\$ 1,775	\$ 1,799	78%
\$ 1,800	\$ 1,824	79%
\$ 1,825	\$ 1,849	79%
\$ 1,850	\$ 1,874	79%
\$ 1,875	\$ 1,899	79%
\$ 1,900	\$ 1,924	80%
\$ 1,925	\$1,949	80%
\$ 1,950	\$ 1,974	80%
\$ 1,975	\$ 1,999	81%
\$ 2,000	\$ 2,024	81%
\$ 2,025	\$ 2,049	81%
\$ 2,050	\$ 2,074	81%
\$ 2,075	\$ 2,099	81%
\$ 2,100	\$ 2,124	82%
\$ 2,125	\$ 2,149	82%
\$ 2,150	\$ 2,174	82%
\$ 2,175	\$ 2,199	82%
\$ 2,200	\$ 2,224	83%
\$ 2,225	\$ 2,249	83%

7. With respect to days of absence for which the Employee is entitled to salary continuation payments from Worker's Compensation, the Employer shall pay sick leave pay to which an Employee is entitled in an amount equal to the difference between the amount to which the Employee is entitled from Worker's Compensation, and the daily amount to which the Employee would otherwise be entitled if Worker's Compensation did not apply.

#### 8. Family Illness<sup>19</sup>

An Employee shall be entitled to use up to three (3) days of accrued sick leave when necessary for family illnesses. Such absences shall be deducted from the Employee's three (3) day family illness bank. The Employer shall have the option to require the Employee to provide reasonable documentation of the illness. For purposes of this paragraph 8, the term "family" shall mean: parent, spouse, child, brother, sister or grandparent, and the term "child" shall mean the Employee's own dependent child, foster child for whom he/she has legal foster care responsibility, or a child for whom the Employee has overall parental responsibility on an established basis and who is living in the household of the Employee.

In case of emergencies due to family illness, the Employee shall have the right, with one (1) hour advance notice to the Employee's supervisor, or sooner if approved by the supervisor, to leave the workplace due to said illness.

#### ARTICLE XVIII Paid Leave

Employees, after their first thirty (30) days of employment, shall be entitled to paid leave as follows:

1. An Employee shall be paid at his/her regular pay for three (3) working days' absence in the event of the death of his/her parent, spouse, child, brother, sister, grandparent or life partner.<sup>20</sup> Such three (3) days must be taken consecutively within a reasonable time of the day of death or day of the funeral and may not be split or postponed.

2. An Employee shall be paid at his/her regular pay for three (3) working days' absence in the event of his/her marriage; such three (3) days must be taken consecutively.

3. An Employee shall be paid at his regular pay for one (1) working day's absence when his wife has a baby.

4. All Employees who have completed their probationary period and who are called (not volunteered) to serve as jurors will receive their regular pay less their pay as juror for each work day while on jury duty, which shall not include "on-call" jury time when Employees are able to be at work. The receipt of a subpoena or the notice to report for jury duty must be reported immediately to the Human Resources Office of the Employer and the Employer may request that

<sup>19</sup> Under the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Act, and the New York State Paid Leave Law, Employees working in the five boroughs of New York City, and in New York State, respectively, can use paid sick leave for family illness to care for a family member as defined above, and also a child for whom the Employee is a legal ward, child of an Employee standing in loco parentis, grandchild, domestic partner, child or parent of an Employee's spouse or domestic partner, and sibling (including a half, adopted or step sibling). \*Also, under the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Act, and the New York State Paid Leave Law, Employees working in the five boroughs of New York City, and in New York State, respectively, can use paid sick leave for safe time when the Employee or a family member, has been the victim of a family offense matter, sexual offense, stalking or human trafficking. See Side Letter regarding the NYC Earned Safe and Sick Time Act and New York State Paid Leave Law. (p. 189).

<sup>20</sup> This provision shall not apply to an institution which has a religious objection.

the Employee be excused or exempted from such jury duty if, in the opinion of the Employer, the Employee's services are essential at the time of proposed jury service.

## ARTICLE XIX Unpaid Leave

Employees shall be eligible for unpaid leave in accordance with the following:

1. Maternity Leave. Pregnant Employees will be eligible for maternity leave. Maternity leave will be granted for a period not to exceed nine (9) months or the length of physical disability, whichever is greater. However, Employees exposed to radiation who desire to take maternity leave and Employees whose pregnancy requires them to take maternity leave prior to the sixth month of pregnancy will be granted maternity leave for a period of twelve (12) months or the length of physical disability, whichever is greater. The father or mother of a legally adopted or biological child shall receive the same unpaid leave now provided to biological mothers.

2. Military Leave. Leaves of absence for the performance of duty with the U.S. Armed Forces or with a Reserve component thereof shall be granted in accordance with applicable law.

3. Union Business. A leave of absence for a period not to exceed three (3) years shall be granted to Employees with one (1) or more years of bargaining unit seniority in order to accept a full-time position with the Union, provided such leaves will not interfere with the operation of the Employer. Employees must reapply each year.

4. Illness or Injury. Employees shall be entitled to leaves of absence for illness or injury for up to two (2) years or length of service, whichever is less. Employees must provide doctor's certification.

5. Other Leaves.

(a) Leaves of absence without pay for other reasons will not be unreasonably denied by the Employer.

(b) Employees with one (1) or more years of service shall be entitled to a nine (9) week unpaid leave in a calendar year for serious illness of a family member (parent, spouse, child, brother, sister or grandparent).<sup>21</sup> The Employer shall have the option to require the Employee to provide reasonable documentation of the illness.

(c) Once granted, a leave of absence granted for participation as a full-time student in a program sponsored by the League/1199SEIU Training and Upgrading Fund shall be given for the duration of the program, not to exceed the lesser of four (4) years or the length of an Employee's continuous employment.

6. While on an unpaid leave of absence, an Employee shall not be entitled to

<sup>21</sup> Employees may have other rights under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and this provision is not meant to interfere with the rights and obligations of the Employee and the Employer under FMLA; it is understood that periods of unpaid leave under this provision run concurrently with any eligible FMLA leave.

earn holiday pay nor to accrue sick leave time or seniority, except as provided in Article IX (Seniority). When an Employee returns to work following an involuntary leave of absence, he/she shall be reinstated to his/her former position with seniority. An Employee who returns to work from a voluntary leave of absence will be reinstated to his/her former job or another position within the same classification. As a condition of reinstatement following a leave of absence for illness, the Employer may require the Employee to receive the approval of the Employer's Health Service.

7. Professional Conferences. Professional workers shall be entitled to attend professional conferences related to their work on a reasonable and non-discriminatory basis to the extent that funds are made available for such purposes within each department in each Employer. Absences pursuant to this provision are subject to the discretion of the department head concerned.

### ARTICLE XX Past Practices

1. The specific past practices of each Employer are those set forth in Stipulation III, which is annexed hereto, which was arrived at pursuant to the provisions of the last paragraph of Article XVIII of the 1974-1976 collective bargaining agreement.

2. Employees hired on or after July 1, 1974 or who are transferred into a bargaining unit job on or after such date shall not be entitled to receive greater benefits than are provided by the 1199 NBF.

## ARTICLEXXI Severance Pay

Employees with one (1) or more years of bargaining unit seniority, who are permanently laid off, or who are temporarily laid off<sup>22</sup> in excess of seven (7) days, shall receive severance pay at the rate of one (1) weeks pay for each year of bargaining unit seniority, pro-rated, up to a maximum of four (4) weeks pay, at his/her regular pay in effect at the time of such layoff, provided that the amount of severance pay shall not exceed the regular pay the Employee would have earned during the period of the layoff.

# ARTICLE XXII League/ 1199SEIU Training and Upgrading Fund

1. The parties shall continue planning for and training adequate health personnel for Employers covered by this Agreement through the League/1199SEIU Training and Upgrading Fund ("TUF").

The contribution to the TUF shall be an amount equal to one-half percent (.5%) of the gross payroll of the Employees for the preceding month exclusive

<sup>22</sup> As used in this paragraph, the term temporarily laid off does not include a layoff arising out of a labor dispute at the Employer. Severance pay for temporary layoffs shall be effective November 1, 1986.
of amounts earned by the Employees during the first two (2) months following the beginning of their employment.

Contributions so received by the Trustees shall be used to study Employer manpower needs, including shortages in entry level jobs, upgraded positions and credential jobs; to develop career ladders, and to subsidize Employees in training and, when necessary, the costs of training in areas of manpower shortages.

The Trustees will be requested to seek grants from outside sources including the State and Federal governments for training to reduce the negative impact arising from layoffs or potential layoffs.

The Trustees of the TUF, in addition to the moneys received from Employers, shall attempt to secure such additional funds as may be available from public or other private sources. In addition, the Trustees shall seek community cooperation in such programs.

2. The Trustees of the TUF shall be composed of an equal number of representatives designated by the Union and by the League.

3. The Trustees of the TUF shall develop programs to provide Employees who are laid off or who are potentially affected by layoff with retraining for lateral and/or upgrading opportunities. The purpose of such programs shall be to minimize the effect of actual or potential layoffs and may include stipends to supplement unemployment compensation, severance pay, etc. as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Trustees. All matters concerning the particulars of such programs including, among others, questions of eligibility, limitations, duration and amount, shall be determined by the Trustees.

4. The League and the Union will request that the Trustees consider ways to expand the number and location of conferences, workshops and seminars which may be attended particularly by professional Employees in order for them to keep abreast of developments in their fields.

5. The Employer will make a good faith effort to adjust schedules so that Employees can take training courses.

6. The Employer will make a good faith effort to make space available for training.

7. A committee made up of representatives of the Union, the League, and the Training and Upgrading Fund ("TUF") will be established within 120 days of the ratification of the agreement to study and make recommendations to the parties regarding how to increase the rate of hire of graduates of TUF programs, including RNs, at League institutions.

#### ARTICLE XXIII Benefit Fund

1. The Employer shall continue to contribute to the 1199SEIU National Benefit Fund for Health and Human Service Employees ("NBF") at the Required Contribution Rate ("RCR") as specified in Article XXIII, paragraph 5(c) below, exclusive of amounts earned by the Employees during the first two (2) months following the beginning of their employment. Such payments shall be used by the Trustees of the NBF for the purpose of providing the Employees with social benefits, e.g., medical benefits, disability benefits, death benefits and hospital benefits as the Trustees of the NBF may from time to time determine.

2. (a) It is agreed that the NBF will provide disability benefits for the Employees covered by this Agreement, in accordance with the requirements of the New York State Disability Benefits Law. In view of the assumption of this obligation by the NBF, the Employeer agrees not to make any deductions from the covered Employees' wages on account of disability benefits. The NBF will certify the assumption of this obligation in connection with disability benefits to the appropriate State agency and to the Employer.

(b) It is agreed that the NBF will provide family leave ("PFL") benefits for the Employees covered by this Agreement from current contributions. The NBF shall comply with the requirements of Section 358-3.1 of the New York State Paid Family Leave Benefits Law. In view of the assumption of this obligation by the NBF, the Employer agrees not to make any deductions from the covered Employees' wages on account of PFL benefits. The NBF will adopt plan rules related to PFL benefits and certify the assumption of this obligation to the appropriate State agency.

3. The Trustees shall continue to provide NBF enrollment cards to the Employers in accordance with its prior practice.

4. The Union and the League hereby direct the Trustees to implement the cost containment measures set forth in Exhibit E.

5. The Union and the League shall appoint a committee that will develop a program to provide the best possible health care and health benefits.

(a) In designing this program, the Union and the League agree to be guided by the following objectives. The NBF will:

(i) Promote health and prevent disease;

(ii) Provide comprehensive health benefits in a cost-effective manner, and when fully operational, at no costs to covered Employees and their eligible dependents;

(iii) Provide improved access to high quality health care providers participating

in the Plan;

(iv) Seek to eliminate and/or eliminate all Employee out-of-pocket cost through maximizing the availability of services from member institutions and affiliated, participating providers (including but not limited to physicians, dentists and mental health providers);

(v) Permit Employees and their eligible dependents to exercise choice of providers;

(vi) Seek ways through management of quality, utilization and price to restrain the growth in cost while maintaining the scope and improving the quality of services.

(b) To achieve these objectives the Union and the League direct the

NBF Trustees to develop a comprehensive health care service network organized around a core of accessible, high quality primary care providers in accordance with the substantive provisions contained in the agreement between the League and 1199 dated June 28, 1994.

(c) (i) Effective October 1, 2021, each Employer, other than nursing homes, shall contribute the RCR which shall be a monthly Flat Rate as determined by the Fund actuaries, as set forth in the Actuary's December 13, 2021 NBF Contribution Projection letter ("NBF Flat Rate Methodology), which is hereby incorporated as if fully set forth herein, derived from the following schedule:

#### For League Employers Other than Nursing Homes:

		WC II/III
Effective Date	WCI (PMPY)	(% of Gross Wages)
October 1, 2021	\$19,772	41.36%
October 1, 2022	\$21,316	43.13%
October 1, 2023	\$22,926	44.83%

(ii) Effective October 1, 2021, each Nursing Home Employer shall contribute the RCR which shall be a monthly Flat Rate as determined by the Fund actuaries as provided in the NBF Flat Rate Methodology, derived from the following schedule:

		WC II/III
Effective Dates	<u>WCI (PMPY</u> )	(% of Gross Wages)*
October 1, 2021	\$17,625	41.36%
October 1, 2022	\$18,954	43.13%
October 1, 2023	\$20,346	44.83%

\* League Nursing Home payments are based upon gross payroll minus overtime for Employees in wage classes II and III.

(iii) The Fund administration, together with the actuaries, shall develop a practicable contribution methodology, subject to the approval of the Trustees that effectuates the above schedules.

(iv) Effective December 1, 2021 and each twelve (12) months thereafter the rates shall be adjusted, as determined by the Fund actuary, to the level required to maintain all existing benefits including those improved in this Agreement and a minimum one (1) month surplus (defined as a surplus equal to one (1) month's contributions) through the expiration of the contract.

(d) NBF contributions of Employers who receive grants as a result of the September 23, 2021 MOA shall be adjusted to reflect those funds (no net increase or decrease in contributions otherwise due).

(e) The League and its member institutions agree:

(i) To expand the NBF's preferred provider program, the League

will make maximum effort to encourage its member institutions to recruit affiliated physicians, mental health providers, dentists and other providers to accept NBF reimbursement as payment in full for medical, dental and all ancillary services.

(ii) To designate appropriate top management with authority to implement this program with the NBF.

(iii) To sponsor and conduct at the work place, with the NBF, health promotion/disease prevention programs which may include hypertension testing and treatment, breast cancer screening, nutrition, smoking cessation and other wellness programs.

(f) The Cost Savings Committee ("Committee"), consisting of the President of the Union and the President of the League, that was established under the 2004-2008 CBA shall continue according to its current mandate. The functions of the Committee include establishing a baseline for measurement, setting benchmarks and milestones, measuring the results of and monitoring the effect of the savings program referred to in this Agreement. The Committee shall also seek additional ways to improve the cost efficiency of the Benefit Fund.

Effective May 1, 2005, and every twelve (12) months thereafter, a consultant retained by the Committee shall determine if the anticipated savings are being achieved. In the event of a shortfall, the President of the League and the President of the Union shall decide whether to direct a diversion from the PF to the NBF to make up such shortfall.

In addition, the Committee shall review and make recommendations to streamline the Funds' collection procedures in Article XXV of the CBA.

(g) Benefit Contribution Diversions. Suspensions of contributions to and diversions of contributions to or from the Benefit Fund shall be as set forth in Attachment 1 to Exhibit E of this Agreement. (See p. 102.)

#### ARTICLE XXIV Pension

1. (a) Employers shall continue to contribute each month to the 1199SEIU Health Care Employees Pension Fund ("PF") in an amount equal to eleven point three percent (11.30%) of gross payroll of the Employees for the preceding month exclusive of amounts earned by the Employees for the first two (2) months following the beginning of their employment.

(b)

(i) Pension Modifications: The following modifications shall be made to the benefits provided to PF beneficiaries:

Effective January 1, 2019, the eligibility requirements for the unreduced early retirement benefit shall be modified to age 62.5 and 25 years of service, from age 62 and 20 years of service, except all employees who are at least age 59.5 by December 31, 2018 shall be subject to the 62/20 eligibility requirements.)

Effective January 2, 2019, the 6% early retirement reduction factor shall be increased to 9%, except all employees are at least age 59.5 by December 31, 2018 shall be subject to the 6% reduction factor.

Effective October 1, 2018, there will be a 12-month waiting period from date of hire for service credit when calculating an employee's retirement benefit (i.e., new hires will not receive credited service for their first 12 months of employment). This will not affect vesting credit or employer contributions.

(ii) Retiree Bonus: Each Retiree and Beneficiary of the PF, including Alternate Payees and Qualified Pre-Retirement Spousal Annuity payees, in pay status on December 1, 2021, shall receive a one-time bonus equal to three (3%) percent of their annual pension benefit.

(c) The parties shall direct the PF trustees to extend amortization bases as set forth in the side letter dated November 30, 2021.

(d)The parties shall direct the PF to perform an annual Pension Verification Program (PVP) for 50% of pensioners, beneficiaries of current pensioners, and vested inactives.

(e) Such payments shall be used by the Trustees of the PF for the purpose of providing Pension or Retirement benefits for the Employees as the Trustees of the said PF may from time to time determine.

(f) Upon the request of either party, the PF actuary will review the wage and earnings assumptions and the contribution rate. If he/she concludes that any change is advisable, he/she will make appropriate recommendations which shall be referred to the President of the Union and the President of the League. In the event of a dispute, resolution shall be by the CIPC process, but shall not be subject to arbitration.

(g) The Credited Future Service benefit calculation formula for Participants who commence participation on or after August 1, 2009 will be 1.60% of ten-year final average pay, multiplied by Years of Credited Future Service, except that the current 1.85% formula and five year final pay average shall apply to Participants who receive Credited Past Service Benefits as provided for in Exhibit H.

(h) Pension Contribution Diversions. Suspensions of contributions to and diversions of contributions to or from the Pension Fund shall be as set forth in Attachment 1 to Exhibit E of this Agreement. (See p. 102.)

2. Such PF at all times shall take whatever action is necessary to secure and retain approval of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service as a qualified pension fund.

3. The Employer shall not withdraw from the Social Security Program.

#### ARTICLE XXV Enforcement of Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and XLII (the Funds)

1. The Employer shall remit the contributions required under Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and XLII to the Funds on a monthly basis, based upon the previous month's payroll or Benefit Fund flat rate, as determined by the Fund's actuaries. Payments shall be due no later than thirty (30) days following the payroll month on which they are based. By way of example, an August contribution shall be based on the payroll for the month of July and shall be made no later than the 30th day of August. The Employer shall submit regular monthly reports with its contributions in such form as may be necessary for the sound and efficient administration of the Funds and/or to enable the Funds to comply with the requirements of Federal and applicable State law and for the collection of payments due pursuant to Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXX-VII and XLII of this Agreement.

2. The Employer agrees to make available to the Funds such records of Employees as classifications, names, social security numbers, days worked, and accounts of payroll and/or wages paid which the Funds may require in connection with the sound and efficient operation of the Funds or that may be so required in order to determine the eligibility of Employees for Fund benefits, and to permit Accountants for the Funds to audit such records of the Employer. It is the agreement of the League, the Union and the Funds to implement electronic transmission of contributions and reports and to streamline reporting requirements. The League, the Union and the Funds will meet to discuss the most practicable implementation program to achieve this objective. Electronic transmission of contributions and reports shall be as set forth in the side letter attached to this Agreement. (See p. 129.)

3. If a payment or payments are not made in compliance with paragraph 1 of this Article XXV, the Employer shall, from and after the due date thereof, and until full payment of arrears is made, pay interest on such arrears at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum permitted by law, whichever is less. In addition, there shall be prompt arbitration thereof before the Impartial Arbitrator designated under this Article. The Arbitrator is hereby empowered to:

(a) direct the remedying of such violations up to the date of hearing that have not been cured;

(b) direct that there shall be no further violations of such provision(s) of these Articles;

(c) direct that the following amounts, being the reasonable costs and expenses in connection with each Fund arbitration proceeding, be paid to the Fund(s) by the Employer:

(i) for an uncontested proceeding, the lesser of ten percent (10%) of the amount found due to each Fund or five hundred dollars (\$500) to each Fund involved.

(ii) for a contested proceeding, the lesser of twenty percent (20%)

of the amount found due to each Fund or one thousand dollars (\$1,000) to each Fund involved.

(d) In the event that an Employer fails to make payment of contributions as required by Articles IXA, XXII, XXII, XXIV, XXXVII and/or XLII, the Arbitrator shall also have the power to require the properly authorized agent of the Employer to sign a Confession of Judgment in the amount of the Award including interest, costs and expenses as hereinabove provided within ten (10) days from the issuance of the Award.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in cases where an Employer has voluntarily agreed to a verification of the amounts contributed to a Fund through an inspection of the payroll records of its Employees by a Certified Public Accountant retained by the Funds, the Employer shall not be obligated to make retroactive interest payments or payment of costs and expenses pursuant to paragraph 3(c) of this Article XXV where the Employer proves to the satisfaction of the Arbitrator designated under this Article that the principal amounts at issue were not contributed because of a genuine oversight by the Employer. In such a case, interest upon the principal amounts determined by the Certified Public Accountant retained by the Fund shall be due the Fund at the rate specified in the immediately preceding paragraph from and after the earlier of the following dates: (1) the date of the Award of the Arbitrator designated under this Article; or (2) thirty (30) days following receipt of a written request for payment from the Fund which sets forth the amount claimed, and the basis upon which it has been determined.

5. Alan R. Viani is hereby designated as the Impartial Arbitrator to hear and determine any disputes which may arise between the parties with regard to payment of contributions and/or interest under Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and/or XLII and the enforcement thereof under Article XXV. Such arbitration shall be heard no later than ten (10) days after written request for arbitration is submitted to the Arbitrator. The Award of the Arbitrator shall be issued within five (5) days thereafter. In the event of a vacancy in this position for whatever cause, the parties shall expedite the selection of an arbitrator to fill the vacancy. If the parties are unable to agree, such disputes shall be handled in accordance with Article XXXII until such time as the parties do agree on a replacement.

6. In the event that the attorneys for the Fund(s) or the Union are required to move in court for confirmation of the Award or to oppose a stay and/or motion to vacate or set aside the Award in whole or in part, reasonable attorney's fees shall be imposed by the Court, if the Award is confirmed or the stay denied. Service of notices, papers, petitions, summonses or other process to enforce or confirm awards or judgments with respect to the collection of contributions to the Fund may be by certified or registered mail.

7. In the event that the Trustees of the Fund(s) have terminated benefit coverage or pension credits to Employee(s) because the Employer has failed to comply with the contribution requirements of Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and/or XLII, then the Employer shall be directly liable to the

affected Employee(s) for benefits to which the Employees would othetwise be entitled under the Funds; the amount of any benefits directly paid by the Employer pursuant to this paragraph may not be credited or off-set by the Employer against the amounts due the Fund(s) under Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and/or XLII, it being understood that the Employer shall continue to be obligated to make contributions to the Fund(s) in accordance with Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXIV, XXXVII and/or XLII. However, in the event that the Employer pays all past due contributions, interest, costs and expenses as provided in this Article, it shall be entitled to a credit equal to sixty-five percent (65%) of the actual audited benefits paid directly, but shall in addition be liable for the costs of auditing such direct payments in the amount of fifteen percent (15%) of such amount.

8. Each of the Funds shall be held and administered under the terms and provisions of an Agreement and Declaration of Trust, and any amendments thereof, which provides for equal representation by the Union and the Employers contributing to that Fund and that any dispute whatsoever that may arise or deadlock that may develop among or between said Trustees shall be submitted to arbitration before an Arbitrator or Umpire, except as may be otherwise provided for in said Agreement and Declaration of Trust, and his/ her decision shall be final and binding. Such Trust Agreement shall provide for bloc voting.

9. An independent audit of each Fund shall be made annually and a statement of the results thereof shall be furnished to the Employer.

10. The League and the Union agree that on request by the Union, they will execute an agreement prospectively reducing the contribution rate to the PF and simultaneously increasing the contribution rate to the NBF and/or the TUF. The total amount of contributions redirected to the NBF and/or TUF shall be in the same amount as the reduction in contributions to the PF.

11. The Employer agrees that the provisions of Articles IXA, XXII, XXIII, XXII, XXIV, XXV, XXXVII and XLII, will continue in full force and effect in the event of any change in the name, composition or structure of any or all of the Funds or the creation of any successor fund which assumes the responsibility to provide the same or similar benefits to the Employees covered by this Agreement, which change or changes are consented to by a majority of the Union Trustees and a majority of the Employer Trustees designated by the League or by operation of law. In the latter event, all payment and other obligations referred to herein will be to the successor fund.

#### ARTICLE XXVI Uniforms

1. The Employer shall provide, launder and maintain any uniforms which it requires the Employees to wear, except where an amount of money is allocated for such purposes as set forth below.

2. There shall be paid the following uniform allowance:

To Licensed Practical Nurses	\$225 per year
To Dieticians	\$225 per year

3. In cases where an Employee purchases, launders or maintains required uniforms, an appropriate allowance shall be negotiated.

#### ARTICLE XXVII Management Rights

1. Except as in this Agreement otherwise provided, the Employer retains the exclusive right to hire, direct and schedule the working force; to plan, direct and to control operations, to discontinue, subject to the provisions of paragraph 3 of this Article, or reorganize or combine any department or branch of operations with any consequent reduction or other changes in the working force; to hire and lay off Employees; to promulgate rules and regulations; to introduce new or improved methods or facilities regardless of whether or not the same cause a reduction in the working force and in all respects to carry out, in addition, the ordinary and customary functions of management. None of these rights shall be exercised in a capricious or arbitrary manner.

2. The Union, on behalf of the Employees, agrees to cooperate with the Employer to attain and maintain full efficiency and maximum patient care and the Employer agrees to receive and consider constructive suggestions submitted by the Union toward these objectives.

#### 3. Subcontracting.

(1) Employers who are presently subcontracting all or any part of their present services of whatever nature or description to other employers who pay the economic equivalent of the total compensation package provided for in this Agreement, including wages, benefits and other labor costs, may continue to do so without restriction.

(2) Employers who are now subcontracting all or any part of their present services to other Employers who however, do not pay the economic equivalent of the total compensation package provided for in this Agreement, including wages, benefits and other labor costs, may continue to do so without restriction provided that the total amount of such services presently so subcontracted shall remain at the current existing level. In the event, however, that the present level<sup>23</sup> of such

<sup>23</sup> The term "present level" when used in this Article XXVII refers to the date specified in the Cahn Award.

subcontracted services shall, at any time in the future, be increased by a figure in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the present total amount of such subcontracted services, then and in that event the parties shall attempt to negotiate a solution concerning such increase. Partial increases in the level of such subcontracted services are not to be considered until the totality of such increases reach or exceed the aforesaid twenty percent (20%) figure. Failure to arrive at an adjustment within twenty (20) days after such increase, the matter shall be submitted to an impartial arbitrator, whose function it shall be to determine (a) the ability or inability of the Employer to accommodate itself (because of a manpower shortage or any other legitimate reason) to the increased services without the need to subcontract to an employer which does not pay the economic equivalent of the total compensation package, including wages, benefits and other labor costs, provided for in this Agreement; (b) the health, safety and welfare of the Employer's patients who might be affected by the alleged inability of the Employer to accommodate itself to the required increase in services. This factor (b) shall be deemed and considered as the prime objective; (c) the purpose and function of the subcontracted work must be given first consideration and not the nature of the job duties or skills of the individual Employees.

(3) In the event that two or more Employers covered by a collective bargaining agreement with the Union shall at any time in the future desire to combine for the purpose of creating a centralized agency to perform services of any kind, nature or description theretofore required by the Employer participating in such centralized agency, the transfer of such services to such centralized agency shall not be deemed nor considered as subcontracting provided that the services so performed by the centralized agency shall be performed by members of the Union and that such centralized agency enter into a collective bargaining agreement with the Union, which shall contain the same terms and conditions as are presently contained in the current Collective Bargaining Agreement, or as such terms and conditions shall be amended by any subsequent Collective Bargaining Agreement.

(4) Except insofar as it is limited by item (2) hereof, no Employer shall hereafter subcontract to any profit or non-profit organization any of its (a) service and/or maintenance work, (b) clerical and/or office work, (c) licensed practical nurse work of any kind, nature or description. Employers who are presently sub-contracting any part of the above listed work may continue to do so but in the event, however, that the level of such presently sub-contracted services shall, at any time in the future, be increased by a figure in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the total amount of such presently subcontracted services, then and in that event the procedures for adjustment and the criteria outlined in Section (2) hereof shall become applicable. The itemiza-

tion of (a), (b) and (c) above listed shall be deemed to include but shall not be limited to kitchen operations, laundry services, dietary service, housekeeping services, day-to-day service and maintenance work having to do with upkeep functions which are routine or frequently recurring rather than unusual or infrequent, janitorial work, porter work, clerical, office accounting work, etc.

(5) Except insofar as it is limited by items (2) and (4) hereof, any Employer which presently subcontracts for the preparation and purchase of kosher or other specialized foods may continue to do so. In the event an Employer shall be required to increase such presently subcontracted services by a figure in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the present total amount of such subcontracted services, then the procedures outlined in Section (2) hereof shall become applicable.

(6) In the event of any emergency such as fire, epidemic, power failure, machine breakdown, war, major catastrophe and the like, any Employer may subcontract part or all of any of its services for the duration of the emergency. This itemization shall not be deemed nor construed as being limited solely to the above listed emergencies.

(7) Any Employer may, if it desires, subcontract any and all technical and/or laboratory services which, in the Employer's opinion and judgment, it cannot properly, adequately nor fully perform so as to protect the health, safety and welfare of its patients. In the event, however, that the Union shall claim an abuse of such judgment then the procedures for adjustment of that claim shall be resolved in accordance with the method and tests set forth in item (2) hereof. This section shall not be deemed nor considered as applying to those Employees who may be attached to the laboratory or technical staff and classified as laboratory or technical Employees, but who are performing maintenance, porter, cleaning or upkeep services for the laboratory and/or technical department.

(8) Any Employer may subcontract any and all diagnostic and/or specialized medical services which would improve its diagnostic abilities and/or specialized medical services involving the health and welfare of its patients whenever such member is unequipped, because of a manpower shortage or absence of appropriate mechanical, electrical or electronic equipment to provide its patients with such care. If, at any time in the future, any one or more of these elements are substantially reduced or the member acquires the appropriate mechanical, electric of whether or not such member shall thereafter itself perform such services shall be submitted to negotiation, and failing adjustment, the procedures and tests outlined in Section (2) hereof shall become applicable.

(9) The parties agree to appoint a joint committee to study subcontracting.

# 4. Monitoring and Enforcement of Recognition and Subcontracting Provisions.

(a) The Employer shall provide the Union with semi-annual reports every January 2nd and July 1st (or, if those dates fall on holiday weekends, the first workday thereafter) in Excel format, including name, date of hire and job title, for all non-union positions below supervisor which were created since July 1, 1984 in departments where bargaining unit work is being performed. Such report will include non-supervisory clerical Employees, Employees in such titles as Assistant Supervisor, Coordinator, Lead Worker, Analyst, Technical Supervisor, Administrative Assistant, Supervisory Assistant and any other non-supervisory positions in the department.

In addition, the Employer will provide a count of the number of supervisory staff who supervise bargaining unit positions by department (in the Nursing Department, RN and titles above RN shall not be included).

(b) The Employer shall provide the Union with semi-annual staffing/ payroll reports on the dates referenced in subsection (a) above, by department, which shall include name, Social Security number, date of hire, salary and hours worked, for all bargaining unit members including full-time and part-time Employees, as well as one-fifth (1/5) or less part-timers, temporary, or contingent workers, etc.

(c) Upon request, but no more frequently than semi-annually, the Employer will provide a report of all utilization of agency personnel covering bargaining unit vacancies, temporary positions or emergency leaves and all bargaining unit vacancies by department for which the Employer is recruiting, including date the vacancy began and how the vacancy is being covered. Such report will be submitted in a mutually agreed upon format.

(d) The reports required in excel format on the dates referenced in subsection (a) above shall include job descriptions for all positions including non-union positions as stated in subsection (a) above and any job description which has been changed from the last reporting period.

(e) The Employer will provide an annual report of all sub-contracting identifying subcontractor, nature and volume of work performed in those departments included in the bargaining unit and the time period during which such subcontracting took place in that year.

(f) The above reports shall be submitted in a mutually agreed format which may include a Lotus format.

(g) The Employer shall not be required to file duplicates of any information previously provided as part of the informational request for the 1998 negotiations.

(h) Submission of this information shall not be deemed an admission or agreement that the Union represents any of the non-union positions. Criteria which shall determine whether a position is in the bargaining unit include but are not limited to if the Employee performs bargaining unit work and if these duties include legitimate supervisory functions.

(i) The Employer agrees to meet with the Union upon request to discuss the contents of said reports. If disputes arise about whether the Employee in subsection (a) above should be covered by this Agreement or, if work is being subcontracted in violation of the subcontracting clause or, if the recognition clause is being violated, such disputes shall be submitted to the expedited mediation and arbitration procedure set forth in Article XXXIA and XXXII or to CIPC under its procedures.

#### ARTICLE XXVIII Resignation

1. An Employee who resigns shall give the Employer advance notice equal to the initial annual vacation entitlement for his/her job classification.

2. An Employee who gives notice of resignation, as provided above, or whose employment is terminated, shall be entitled to receive payment for unused vacation time accrued on the effective date of the resignation or termination. If notice is not given as provided above, an Employee shall not be entitled to such payment, provided it was possible for the Employee to have given such notice.

#### ARTICLE XXIX Discharge and Penalties

1. The Employer shall have the right to discharge, suspend or discipline any Employee for cause.

2. The Employer will notify the Union in writing of any discharge or suspension within forty eight (48) hours from the time of discharge or suspension. If the Union desires to contest the discharge or suspension, it shall give written notice thereof to the Employer within five (5) working days, but no later than ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of notice of discharge or suspension. In such event, the dispute shall be submitted and determined under the grievance and arbitration procedure hereinafter set forth, however commencing at Step 3 of the grievance machinery.

If the Union notice of contest is given from six (6) days to ten (10) working days after receipt of notice of discharge, the days beyond five (5) days shall be deemed waived insofar as back pay is concerned.

3. If the discharge of an Employee results from conduct relating to a patient and the patient does not appear at the arbitration, the arbitrator shall not consider the failure of the patient to appear as prejudicial.

4. The term "patient" for the purpose of this Agreement shall include those seeking admission and those seeking care or treatment in clinics or emergency rooms, as well as those already admitted.

5. All time limits herein specified shall be deemed exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.

#### ARTICLE XXX No Strike or Lockout

1. No Employee shall engage in any strike, sit-down, sit-in, slow-down, cessation or stoppage or interruption of work, boycott, or other interference with the operations of the Employer.

2. The Union, its officers, agents, representatives and members, shall not in any way, directly or indirectly, authorize, assist, encourage, participate in or sanction any strike, sit-down, sit-in, slow-down, cessation or stoppage or interruption of work, boycott, or other interference with the operations of the Employer, or ratify, condone or lend support to any such conduct or action.

3. In addition to any other liability, remedy or right provided by applicable law or statute, should a strike, sit-down, sit-in, slow-down, cessation or stoppage or interruption of work, boycott, or other interference with the operations of the Employer occur, the Union, within twenty-four (24) hours of a request by the Employer, shall:

(a) Publicly disavow such action by the Employees.

(b) Advise the Employer in writing that such action by Employees has not been called or sanctioned by the Union.

(c) Notify Employees of its disapproval of such action and instruct such Employees to cease such action and return to work immediately.(d) Post notices at Union Bulletin Boards advising that it disapproves such action, and instructing Employees to return to work immediate-

ly.

4. The Employer agrees that it will not lock out Employees during the term of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XXXI Grievance Procedure

1. A grievance shall be defined as a dispute or complaint arising between the parties hereto under or out of this Agreement or the interpretation, application, performance, termination, or any alleged breach thereof, and shall be processed and disposed of in the following manner;

Step 1. Within a reasonable time (except as provided in Article XXIX), an Employee having a grievance and/or his/her Union delegate or other representative shall take it up with his/her immediate supervisor. The Employer shall give its answer to the Employee and/or his/her Union delegate or other representative within five (5) working days after the presentation of the grievance in Step 1.

Step 2. If the grievance is not settled in Step 1, the grievance may, within five (5) working days after the answer in Step 1, be presented in Step 2. When grievances are presented in Step 2, they shall be reduced

to writing, signed by the grievant and his/her Union representative, and presented to the grievant's department head or his/her designee. A grievance so presented in Step 2 shall be answered by the Employer in writing within five (5) working days after its presentation.

Step 3. If the grievance is not settled in Step 2, the grievance may, within five (5) working days after the answer in Step 2, be presented in Step 3. A grievance at this step will be presented in writing to the Personnel Director or Administrator of the Employer, or his/her designee. A grievance meeting will be scheduled for a mutually agreeable date and time during normal business hours promptly following the receipt by either party of a written request by the other for such grievance meeting as follows:

(a) for disciplinary grievances involving discharges or suspensions within fifteen (15) working days; (b) for other grievances twenty-five (25) working days.

If the parties cannot agree on a date and time for a grievance meeting within this period, then each side will offer in writing three (3) dates and times (during normal business hours) from which the other side will pick one. From the two (2) dates so selected one will be chosen by the parties on alternating grievances provided such date is not more than fifteen (15) working days or twenty-five (25) working days from the date of the request for a grievance meeting depending on the type of grievance. Notwithstanding the above, each side will be entitled to one (1) adjournment of this date by written request delivered to the other party before the scheduled date, in which event a new date will be scheduled within fifteen (15) or twenty-five (25) working days of the initial scheduled date depending on the type of grievance. Selection of an adjourned date shall be according to the same procedure used to schedule the original date. The Employer shall use its best efforts to render its written decision within five (5) days after the third step grievance meeting; in no event will its written decision be rendered more than ten (10) days following such meeting.

Failure of either party to appear and fully present its case at the grievance meeting on the scheduled date and time or of the Employer to render its decision within the time limit set forth above shall result in a default by such party and the grievance shall be deemed granted by the Employer, or waived by the Union as the case may be, but solely with respect to the particular grievance (i.e., the deemed grant or waiver will not bind or be a precedent in other cases). In cases involving violence, theft, patient abuse, substance abuse on premises, or serious misconduct of equivalent level, the default may be cured within ten (10) days of default notification (i) by either party by appearance and full presentation of its case at a third step grievance meeting, or (ii) where the decision. This paragraph shall not apply to a grievance arising from the issuance of disciplinary warnings where no other dis-

ciplinary action (e.g. termination or suspension, etc.) is involved.

In the event that the number of grievance meetings requested is beyond the ability of the Employer to schedule within the prescribed time limits, the Union and the Employer shall attempt to resolve the problem by mutual agreement. Should they fail to reach agreement within five (5) working days, Martin F. Scheinman shall resolve the issue of determining if there is a bona fide overload and the procedure that should apply in such case.

The above time limits and sanctions shall apply to grievances presented at Step 3 on or after April 16, 1993.

Failure on the part of the Employer to answer a grievance at any step shall not be deemed acquiescence thereto (except as provided above with respect to third step grievances), and the Union may proceed to the next step.

All third step decisions will be mailed to the Organizer and Area Director in care of the Union Headquarters (498 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10018) and a copy given to the delegate who handled the case.

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, a grievance concerning a discharge or suspension may be presented initially at Step 3 in the first instance, within the time limit specified in this Article XXXI, paragraph 1.

Without waiving its statutory rights, a grievance on behalf of the Employer may be presented initially at Step 3 by notice in writing addressed to the Union at its offices.

2. All time limits herein specified shall be deemed to be exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.

3. Any disposition of a grievance from which no appeal is taken within the time limits specified herein shall be deemed resolved and shall not thereafter be considered subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

4. A grievance which affects a substantial number or class of Employees, and which the Employer representative designated in Steps 1 and 2 lacks authority to settle, may initially be presented at Step 3 by the Union representative.

#### ARTICLE XXXIA Mediation

1. It is the intention of the parties that the mediation process provided for below will be available to assist in the disposition of disciplinary disputes and cases of contract application concerning fact oriented issues, but not to disputes involving contract interpretations which have League-wide ramifications. The latter will be presented to the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee (CIPC) under Article XXXIB.

2. Grievance mediation (effective for grievances presented at Step 3 on or

after November 1, 1992)

(a) Upon the request of either party a grievance not resolved at the third step shall be submitted to mediation within ten (10) working days after the completion of Step 3 of the grievance procedure.

(b) The parties shall utilize the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service ("FMCS") to administer the mediation procedure under this Agreement. If the volume of mediation exceeds the scheduling capability of FMCS or FMCS is otherwise unable to provide the necessary service, the parties shall establish a list of ten (10) mediators who will be assigned on a rotating basis. The parties shall continue to investigate other mediation services. In an effort to create an atmosphere which allows the parties to communicate efficiently with each other, mediation will be held at the Employer's premises provided that there is no disruption of the Employer's normal operations nor threat of disruption of such operations during the mediation process.

(c) The parties may present up to five (5) grievances per mediation session. Wherever possible, each side shall present its case within thirty (30) minutes.

Each party will designate a spokesperson among those present (no outside lawyers or house counsel).

(d) Cost of mediation is to be borne equally by the parties.

(e) The mediators will attempt to assist the parties to resolve each grievance on mutually agreeable terms. Any recommendation by the mediator will be made at the time of the meeting. No recommendation by the mediator shall be in writing (except as the parties may agree) and no positions, testimony or statement by any party, his/her representative, the mediator or witness shall be used in any future arbitration proceeding or for any other purpose.

(f) All currently outstanding arbitrations involving disciplinary disputes and cases of contract application concerning fact oriented issues, in which no hearing has yet been held, at the request of either party, shall be submitted to mediation within one hundred twenty (120) days of the effective date of this provision. The referral to mediation will not delay any scheduled arbitration hearing unless the parties mutually agree to such delay.

#### ARTICLE XXXIB

#### **Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee**

1. A Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee ("CIPC") shall be created under this Agreement consisting of the President of the Union and the President of the League, who shall each appoint one other member. Their appointments for the term of this contract are Daniel J. Ratner, Esq. and Daniel F. Murphy, Esq.

The function of CIPC will be to mediate and attempt to resolve disputes that may arise under this Agreement in areas specifically set forth herein which will have major policy implications, and to ensure the successful achievement of the goals of the 1199 Employment, Training and Job Security Program (see paragraph 3 below).

In the absence of a resolution by the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee, the issue shall be submitted to the General Counsel of 1199, who shall hold the Basil Paterson, Esq. Chair, and Daniel F. Murphy, Esq.

Upon their failure to agree, the unresolved issue shall be submitted to an arbitrator selected by them. Matters over which CIPC has jurisdiction under this Agreement shall be subject to the aforementioned arbitration process unless expressly stated to the contrary.

To expedite its assignments and to deal with routine matters, the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee may establish procedures to delegate responsibilities as it deems appropriate.

2. A grievance, as defined in Article XXXI (Grievance Procedure), which has not been resolved thereunder and which is subject to the jurisdiction of CIPC may be referred to CIPC for resolution by the Employer, Union or League, provided the Union or Employer as the case may be, either (a) has filed a timely<sup>24</sup> demand for arbitration under Article XXXII, or (b) refers the grievance to CIPC within thirty (30) working days of completion of Step 3 of the grievance procedure. CIPC shall have authority to resolve:

(a) Disputes involving the following: scope of the recognition clause; subcontracting; compliance with lay-off provisions; Job Security Fund and/or Joint Employment Service issues; notice requirements; and to impose penalties if Employers fail to call in available positions or fail to provide other required information or notices.

(b) Disputes arising from employment security provisions and Articles II (Union Security), VI (Joint Employment Service), VIII (Temporary Employees), VIIIA (Vacancies and Emergency Vacancies), IX (Seniority), IXA (Employment Security and Job Security Fund), IXB (Consolidation of Departments and Mergers), X(8) (new job rates and titles), (except disputes concerning the content of restructured or newly created jobs) and all disputes involving the interpretation or the application of this Agreement regarding part-timers.

(c) Grievances involving contract interpretation questions with potential League-wide ramifications;

(d) Other disputes as determined by the parties.

3. In addition, but separate from above, the Contract Interpretation and Policy Committee shall:

(a) oversee implementation and coordination of the 1199 Joint Employment Service, Training and Upgrading Fund, and Job Security Fund, and Labor Management Initiatives Fund (collectively the "Employment, Training and Job Security Program" or "ETJSP") (See Article XLII).

<sup>24</sup> Where a party contests the issue of timeliness of a demand for arbitration under Article XXXII with respect to a matter referred to CIPC and otherwise subject to its jurisdiction, the CIPC arbitrator designated to hear the matter shall have jurisdiction to decide the timeliness issue.

(b) Develop ideas to promote quality of work life, including the use of full-time instead of part-time bargaining unit Employees, improve working conditions, workload issues and increasing the skills and value of health care Employees and all related issues.

(c) Review arbitration procedures.

(d) Administer any diversions to the Small funds as determined by CIPC and reflected in Attachment 1 to Exhibit E (p. 102) and disputes under this paragraph (d) shall not be subject to arbitration.

#### ARTICLE XXXII Arbitration

1. A grievance, as defined in Article XXXI (Grievance Procedure), which has not been resolved thereunder may, within thirty (30) working days after completion of Step 3 of the grievance procedure, be referred for arbitration by the Employer or the Union to an arbitrator selected in accordance with the procedures of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration shall be conducted under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules then prevailing of the American Arbitration.

2. The fees and expenses of the American Arbitration Association and the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties.

3. The award of an arbitrator hereunder shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Employer, the Union and the Employees.

4. The arbitrator shall have jurisdiction only over disputes arising out of grievances, as defined in paragraph 1 of Article XXXI, and he/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify in any way any of the terms of this Agreement.

5. All grievances contesting a discharge referred to arbitration after the execution of this Agreement shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures of the American Arbitration Association under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules then prevailing; the single panel of arbitrators shall be abolished.

6. The American Arbitration Association will produce one list of eleven (11) names of arbitrators, seven (7) of whom are members of the National Academy of Arbitrators, and all of whom have dates available to hear cases within thirty (30) working days of selection. The parties will alternately strike names until one remains who shall be the arbitrator. The time period for selecting the arbitrator shall be seven (7) business days. The Employer and the Union shall strike the first name on an alternating basis.

7. The arbitration hearing shall be held within thirty (30) working days of appointment of the arbitrator or within thirty (30) working days of completion of the mediation procedure if it has been requested, whichever is later. Neither side shall be entitled to more than one (1) adjournment of that date, unless there is mutual consent. The adjourned date must be within thirty (30) working days of the postponed hearing date.

8. If the parties agree, the arbitrator shall hear more than one case in a day.

9. No briefs shall be submitted in disciplinary cases heard in one day. The parties agree in principle - and the arbitrators will be instructed - that briefing should be avoided or limited in all cases unless complexity of the issues demand briefing. In such situations, the parties must agree on the filing of briefs or obtain approval from the arbitrator to file briefs. Briefs, if permitted, are to be filed within two (2) weeks of hearing.

10. Arbitrators' decisions are to be rendered within two (2) weeks. However, in disciplinary cases, awards shall be issued within forty-eight (48) hours with an opinion to follow.

11. Arbitrators are to be instructed to issue succinct decisions in all cases, attempting, wherever possible, to limit study and writing time to one-half (1/2) day.

12. The parties shall designate a panel of six (6) arbitrators who shall hear cases arising under Article X (Wages and Minimums) paragraph 8 of the Agreement.

13. Exhibit F hereto shall apply with respect to arbitrations of residual classifications.

14. Voluntary Arbitration Project:

In order to reduce the delay and cost of arbitrations, the parties agree to establish a pilot project by May 31, 2005, unless extended by CIPC, which shall apply only to discipline cases. A Committee shall be appointed by the parties, consisting of equal numbers (see c, below), which shall establish appropriate rules and procedures, which shall include the following provisions:

(a) Employers may join the program on a voluntary basis.

(b) An administrator shall be appointed and his or her salary and all administrative expenses will be paid by the LMI Fund.

(c) A group of arbitrators shall be selected by Marc Z. Kramer, G. Gresham, General Counsel of 1199 and Daniel F. Murphy, Esq. Fixed dates each month shall be set aside by said arbitrators to hear such grievances.

(d) It is the intention of the Union and the League and the Employers who participate to have these cases heard and decided on an expedited basis. If possible, hearings shall be concluded in one (1) day, except where the parties or the arbitrator decide an additional day or days is required. In no event shall the Union or an Employer be deprived of the opportunity to present pertinent testimony or other evidence which it deems necessary for the Arbitrator to render an appropriate award. The Arbitrator is empowered to decide any disputes concerning this issue.

(e) Employers who agree to participate in this program shall appoint senior representatives who will join George Gresham, Marc Z. Kramer, General Counsel of 1199 and Daniel Murphy in administering this program. For each such appointment, the Union shall appoint a counterpart representative from its staff.

(f) Once the rules have been established and arbitrators selected, other (non-League) employers which contribute to the LMI Fund may join the program.

#### ARTICLE XXXIII Effect of Legislation - Separability

It is understood and agreed that all agreements herein are subject to all applicable laws now or hereafter in effect; and to the lawful regulations, rulings and orders of regulatory commissions or agencies having jurisdiction. If any provision of this Agreement is in contravention of the laws or regulations of the United States or of the State of New York, such provision shall be superseded by the appropriate provision of such law or regulation, so long as same is in force and effect; but all other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

#### ARTICLE XXXIV Individual Stipulations

No agreement between the Employer and the Union which provides for an addition to or modification of this Agreement, including the stipulations between each Employer and the Union to be annexed hereto, shall be effective until a copy thereof shall have been countersigned on behalf of the League.

The League will help facilitate the signing of the stipulations.

#### ARTICLE XXXV Supersedes MOA

This Agreement supersedes the 2014-2018 1199/League Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA"), the Memorandum of Agreement dated July 16, 2018 ("2018 MOA"), and the Memorandum of Agreement dated September 23, 2021, except for those provisions preserving prior local agreements and stipulations between 1199 and the individual Employers, which remain in full force and effect, unless expressly modified during the course of these negotiations and incorporated in this Agreement.

All terms and conditions in the prior collective bargaining agreements covering the new institutions and/or bargaining units of Employees, including former 144 institutions/units, former AVNH institutions, and others that were not covered by the 1998-2001, 2001-2005, 2004-2008, 2007-2011, 2009-2015 or 2014-2018 1199/League collective bargaining agreements, shall remain in full force and effect and shall be deemed local agreements to this Agreement, unless expressly modified during the course of these negotiations and incorporated into this Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the extent to which the terms of the League Multi-Employer Contract will apply to former Local 721 Bargaining Units at Medisys facilities and New York Downtown Hospital, and at Village Nursing Home shall be in accordance with their respective MOA's with the Union.

#### ARTICLE XXXVI Negotiation of Local Issues

In those instances where either the Employer or the Union has raised issues for local negotiation during the course of these negotiations ("local issues"), the Employer and the Union shall continue to bargain over local issues. The execution of this Agreement shall be without prejudice to the rights or remedies of either party with respect to such local negotiations; the grievance and arbitration provisions and the no-strike clause shall not apply to disputes over local issues.

#### ARTICLE XXXVII Child Care

The Employer shall continue to contribute to the 1199SEIU/Employer Child Care Fund ("CCF") at a rate of one-half percent (.5%). All Child Care funds shall be commingled under terms approved by the Trustees.

#### ARTICLE XXXVIII Housing

The League agrees to support efforts to assist 1199 members in obtaining quality, affordable rental and ownership of housing. As such, the League and the Union will establish a joint committee to study members' housing needs and work to develop programs and projects which meet these needs.

#### ARTICLE XXXIX Health and Safety Create a Safe and Healthy Workplace

1. The Employer, the Union, and the individual Employee shall cooperate in encouraging the maintenance of a safe and healthy work place. The Employer shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, including recently adopted OSHA pathogen standards. The Union shall agree to cooperate in encouraging such rules as are necessary to comply with such laws.

2. The Employer shall provide safety and health training for all Employees on work time. Employees shall receive annually an updated training session. The Union Health and Safety Department will work with the Employer on course content and determining the appropriate number of hours of training.

3. A Safety and Health Committee composed of an equal number of Union and the Employer representatives shall be formed to implement this Article. The Safety and Health Committee shall cooperate to investigate, identify and remove conditions which are hazardous to an Employee's safety and health. Depending on the size of the institution the Union representatives will vary from three (3) to six (6). Said committee may meet monthly. It is agreed that the Union's safety and health committee, and the Union representatives to the joint committee, act hereunder exclusively in an advisory capacity and that the Union, Union safety and health committees, and their officers, Employees and agents shall not be liable for any work-connected injuries, disabilities or disease which may be incurred by Employees.

4. Employee members of the Union-Management Occupational Safety and Health Committee will be paid at their regular rate of pay for conducting inspections, or performing any other function designated by the Safety and Health Committee. Furthermore, an Employee who accompanies a Federal, State or local occupational safety and health inspector on an inspection tour will be paid at his/her regular rate of pay for this time.

5. In the event that any Employee shall be exposed to any communicable disease, the Employer agrees to promptly review proper procedures to be followed by Employees exposed to such communicable diseases.

6. Where an Employee comes in contact with blood and other body fluids as a result of his/her job duties, the Employer will provide Hepatitis B vaccine to the Employee at no cost to the Employee.

#### ARTICLE XL

#### Local/Institution Labor Management Committees

The parties support the establishment of Local/Institution Labor/Management Committees to explore the issues surrounding the employment of 1199 Employees in those institutions. Those issues may include:

(a) The creation of new job titles.

(b) The creation of institution-based job groupings, job combinations

and part-time/full-time jobs.

The Local Labor/Management Committees may by mutual agreement request funds or support for training and facilitation from the LMI Fund (Article XLII).

We support the establishment of such committees.

#### ARTICLE XL(A) Professional/Technical Practice Committees

1. There shall be a Professional/Technical Practice Committee ("PTPC") consisting of eight (8) members, including: four (4) Employees from professional and technical classifications chosen by the Union and four (4) management representatives, including a department director for the Employer or his or her designated representative.

2. The PTPC shall meet at appropriate intervals as determined by the committee members, but in no event less frequently than four (4) times per year.

3. The purpose of the PTPC will be to improve communications, facilitate discussion and make recommendations concerning professional practice issues, including the development of career ladders, that arise from time to time.

4. The recommendations of the PTPC shall be made to the appropriate department director or other Employer representative.

#### ARTICLE XLI Leon J. Davis/Martin Cherkasky Quality Care Committee

The health care workers of 1199 and the leadership of the League are committed to providing every patient at every institution with the best care we can.

Our health care system is changing. Every day we're faced with new problems that require new treatments, new methods, and new technologies.

While the direction of much of this change is uncharted and unknown, there is certainty that change will come. And with this there will be transformations in the care people receive and the character of the work that we do.

This Agreement represents a milestone in our relationship as Union and Management. In the interests of our patients, we have arrived at a mutually acceptable Agreement in the spirit of compromise and conciliation.

As people with a common cause, we seek to broaden this relationship. We are looking for new ways to care for our patients, our families, and our community.

In this spirit we are creating the Leon J. Davis/Martin Cherkasky Committee in honor of the distinguished founding Presidents of our respective organizations. It will be an open-ended forum for worker/management dialogue and interaction.

The Committee has no fixed agenda. It will deal with both short and long term issues confronting health care workers and the health care system. The issues can be as immediate as how to deal with sub-contracting and as visionary as jointly describing our best ideas for a new health system for the country.

The Committee will be composed of Union and League representatives from rank-and-file Union members to Chief Executive Officers.

Nothing herein is subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of the Agreement unless the matter is grievable and arbitrable under another provision of the Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XLII LMI Fund

1. The Union and the League have established the 1199SEIU Hospital League Health Care Industry Labor Management Initiative, Inc. ("LMI Fund"), a Labor-Management Cooperation Act corporation which, consistent with its certificate of incorporation, shall create and operate a Labor Management Planning Program and a Joint Employment Service (See Article VI).

(a) The Labor Management Planning Program ("LMPP") shall:

(i) collect information on job trends and emerging workforce skills, including new job classifications, which affect Union members and the health care industry in general,

(ii) provide training, facilitation, and funding for training and fa-

cilitation to the members on the Local Institution-based Labor/Management Committees and Subcommittees and CIPC,

(iii) provide information and support to CIPC,

(iv) provide administrative support to the CIPC in connection with the fulfillment of the CIPC's goals under this Agreement.

(b) The Joint Employment Service shall:

(i) provide job placement and referral services (without a fee) to Employers and to individuals seeking employment in the health care industry.

(ii) assist Employers by recruiting and testing applicants for jobs in the health care industry.

(iii) maintain a computerized bank of prospective employees in the health care industry.

2. For the contract period October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2024, the LMI Fund shall be financed by a diversion of contributions which would otherwise be due and owing to other Funds in an amount to be agreed upon by the League and the Union, as provided in a side letter to this Agreement, together with such other amounts as may be required under the terms of any supplemental agreements between 1199 and the League.

#### ARTICLE XLIII Effective Dates and Duration

1. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for the period commencing October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2024.

2. The League and the Union agree to jointly enter into discussions relative to a renewal of this Agreement no later than the ninetieth (90th) day immediately preceding the termination date of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Union and the League have executed this Agreement this 23rd day of September,  $2021.^{25}$ 

1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

By:

George Gresham, President

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK

Mark Z. Kramer, President

<sup>25</sup> This Agreement incorporates the provisions of the Memorandum of Agreement dated September 23, 2021.

EXHIBITS SCHEDULES STIPULATIONS AND SIDE LETTERS

#### EXHIBIT A CHECK-OFF AUTHORIZATION

#### **DUES CHECK-OFF AUTHORIZATION**

TO

You are hereby authorized and directed to deduct an initiation fee from my wages or salary as required by 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East as a condition of my membership; and in addition thereto, to deduct my membership dues from my wages or salary; and in addition thereto, to deduct each month an amount equal to monthly membership dues to be applied to past unpaid dues until the entire amount of unpaid past dues has been deducted and paid; and to remit all such deductions to 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East, 498 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10018, no later than the tenth of each month immediately following the date of deduction or pursuant to the date provided in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

This deduction is a voluntary act on my part and shall be irrevocable for a period of one (1) year or until the termination date of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, whichever is sooner, and shall, however, renew itself from year to year unless I give written notice of the revocation of this authorization addressed to the 1199/SEIU Dues and Membership Department at 498 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10018.

Signature:	Date:	
Print Name:		
Social Security No:/	/	
Address:		
City/State/Zip Code:		
Date given to employer:		

#### EXHIBIT B 1199 SEIU FEDERAL CREDIT UNION CHECK-OFF AUTHORIZATION

1199 SEIU FEDERAL CREDIT U	NION PAY	ROLL DEDUCTION	AUTHORIZATION
. Last b	lamo	First Namo	Initial
Check appropriate transaction: New Chang		Effective with the pay period beginning on	NO EAY YEAR
I authorize this amount to be withheld	from my	pay:	
by my employer each pay period until further n Credit Union. If I leave my employer while the er to deduct any final amount of my pay, comm or benefits as may be required by the Credit Un	re is a balan issions and	ce due the Credit Union, 1 other compensation and/o	authorize my employ- r separation allowance
X Signature		Date:	
Employer Name:			Dept;
Employer Address:			alan (1997)
	Street Ac		
City/Town	Sta	le Z	ip
EMP	LOYERS	COPY	

99

#### EXHIBIT C POLITICAL ACTION FUND CHECK-OFF AUTHORIZATION

We want to build a country that works for everyone—an America for All—where all of us have an equal opportunity for a better future.

# JOIN PAC

Political Action Fund contributions help give us the strength we need to fight for what we deserve and for our America For All priorities. The Fund allows us to advocate for our communities by enabling us to play a major role in electing candidates who stand with us on the issues that matter. Together we have been able to achieve major wins that protect healthcare jobs and advance laws promoting fairness and dignity in our communities. Your contribution helps us continue to improve conditions for you—our members—and for the labor movement as a whole.

## I COMMIT TO BUILDING AN AMERICA FOR ALL!

I hereby authorize 11935EU United Heathicare Workers East to list liss payoi decloton form on my behalt with my employe to which declose 100 months of Simpler menth act toward that amount to the 11995UP efficient Actors Frand, des Benadth Jennice, New José nei Tri 1000 understanding that (1) The signing of this subvictation tommand the manifer of these volumbly contributions are not conditions of my employment by my employee or adjusted of the subvictation of the subvictation without say reprise) (5) The monthly combined on the augustein, and may orbitical purpose, instantiate of the subvictation of the subvictation of the subvictation of the without say reprise), (5) The monthly combined on the subvictation of the subvictation of the subvictation of the subjection of decloratings from 11905EU or my Employer it resolves for policial busine policie importaneov. (5) My contribution is subject to the imits and prohibitions of the Fiderial Biotich Campagin, AL.

Indexe sector company Act. Combuctors be the 11969EU Political Action Fund are not debuctible as chartable contributions for federal income tax purpose. Federal law requires us to do our best efforts to collect and report the reme, maing address, acoustion and name of employer of includuus whose contributions exceed \$200 in a cakindar year. This authorization shall terrain it full forces and effect unit worked by min it writing to the 11999EU Political Action Department at 498 Sworth Acence, 24° floor. W/N 10018.



By preciding my cell phone number, landerstand that 11995BU may send me automated calls and/w text messages on my cell phone on a periodi bans. 11995BU will mean charge for alerts, but carrier message and data rater may apply. Text STOP to 30644 to step receiving messages.

#### TAPE SHUT HERE FILL OUT THIS CARD, FOLD IT IN HALF AND TAPE IT SHUT TO PROTECT YOUR INFORMATION. THEN HAND IN OR JUST DROP IT IN THE MAIL!

EXHIBIT D MUNICIPAL AFFILIATES

#### CITY HOSPITAL CENTER AT ELMHURST

#### **BELLEVUE HOSPITAL**

#### **GOUVERNEUR HEALTH SERVICES**

#### **QUEENS HOSPITAL CENTER**

#### CUMBERLAND DIAGNOSTIC TREATMENT CENTER

#### WOODHULL MEDICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

#### EXHIBIT E FUND ISSUES

October 1, 2021

Mr. George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter is delivered simultaneously with the execution of the MOA between the League and the Union covering the period October 1, 2021-September 30, 2024, and has the same force and effect as if set forth therein.

#### NBF Cost Savings Initiatives

This sets forth a list of cost savings initiatives identified during the course of negotiations that, if aggressively and effectively implemented, should achieve the cost savings commitments in the MOA. Moreover, the Union and the League have agreed that the Trustees and the Executive Director shall aggressively seek additional ways to reduce the cost of providing benefits while maintaining the integrity of the benefits received by the Union members.

As directed in the MOA, effective October 1, 2021 the NBF Plan shall be amended as follows: Cost reduction modifications and other initiatives shall be implemented by the Trustees that reduce cost by a total of \$280 million for the duration of the bargaining period with an annualized savings rate of \$93.33 million as of October 1, 2021. The yearly cost reductions shall approximate the following amounts:

Period	<u>Amount</u>
10/1/2021-9/30/2022	\$93.33 million
10/1/2022-9/30/2023	\$93.33 million
10/1/2023-9/30/2024	\$93.33 million

In addition, the NBF Care and Value Improvement ("Committee") established under the League Multi-Employer CBA shall continue and shall meet quarterly to review progress. If following a January or July meeting the Employer Trustees reasonably believe that the Fund has not implemented modifications and initiatives sufficient to produce the foregoing approximate savings, or there is a disagreement over adoption of a modification or initiative, the dispute shall be resolved according to the CIPC process, but shall not be subject to arbitration.

As it is the intention of the parties to maintain and improve the NBF's

programs, these and other adjustments are needed to preserve the resources of the NBF to provide its comprehensive health coverage in the face of rising health care costs. Thus, without limiting the potential cost savings approaches the Trustees and Executive Director should pursue, except that the initiatives/ reductions will not include co-pays, premiums, deductibles, or co-insurance, they are directed to implement appropriate savings which may include the following programs, policies and plan changes.

#### **Pharmacy:**

<u>Clinical/Outcomes Management</u> ESI Medical Benefit Management Dose-optimization Prior Authorization Rules Step Therapy Programs Value Based Plan Design POL Enhancements Expansion of 90-day solution Payment Reform/Negotiations Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM) RFP ESI Early Pricing Discounts - 26 monthly credits Market Check Additional Discounts Proton Pump Inhibitors Generic Dispensing Rate Specialty Programs Quantity Duration Rates Exclusions Exclude Use of Vimovo and Duexis Exclude Use of Oral Organic ED Agents Exclude Use of Cold and Cough Therapy Exclude Use of Cosmetic Drugs Other **Emblem Savings** Humana EGWP +Wrap ESI EGWP + Wrap Suffolk County Emblem MAPD

#### Hospital and Medical:

<u>Clinical/Outcomes Management/Utilization Management (UM)</u> Molecular Genetic Lab Testing Prior Authorization Care Allies Enhanced Inpatient UM MedReview Re-admission Program Radiology Care to Care Enhanced UM Radiology Care to Care Nuclear Cardiology UM Laboratory and Radiology Privileging of Procedures by Provider Specialty Enhanced Medical Management Network Management

Durable Medical Equipment Preferred Network & Reduced Non-Par Fees Laboratory and Radiology Fee Schedule Laboratory and Radiology Non-Par Fee Schedule Laboratory and Radiology Preferred Provider Leased Out-of-Area Network

### Other:

Dependent Eligibility Verification Project Coordination of Benefits

#### Fund Diversions

- 1. The periods during which all Fund diversions provided for in this Agreement shall take place are set forth in Attachment 1 to this letter, provided, however, that CIPC shall have authority to change the dates of all Fund diversions based upon the cash flow needs of the Funds receiving such diversions.
- 2. Up to \$135 million dollars will be made available from NBF diversions to the TUF, JSF, CCF, LMI, Healthcare Education Project (HEP) and the Contract Administrator/Delegate Training Program. The final amount needed to maintain the programs under applicable criteria will be calculated by Fund staff and approved by the parties. A schedule of diversions will be developed to be approved by CIPC. Disputes at CIPC under this paragraph shall not be subject to arbitration.

#### Medical Reimbursement Schedule

At the request of the Executive Director of the NBF, the President of the Union and the President of the League shall meet to consider the necessity and viability of improving the medical reimbursement schedule. The factors that they shall consider may include, but are not limited to, the need for such increases, the excess of projected savings over the target set forth in this Exhibit E (if any), and the availability of Pension Fund diversion dollars. If they do not reach agreement, the matter shall not be arbitrable, however, the medical reimbursement schedule shall be increased by the value of the projected savings in excess of the target set forth in this Exhibit E.

Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Mark Z. Kramer, President

AGREED: 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

-lege St-

George Gresham, President

#### ATTACHMENT 1 TO SIDE LETTER FUND DIVERSIONS

#### Attachment I: FUND DIVERSIONS October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2024

This schedule sets forth when Fund diversions shall take place, unless CIPC datermines that diversion period(s) for specified diversion(s) should be changed based on cash needs of the Fund(s)

Diverting Fund (From)	Receiving Fund (To)	Diversion Period	Line #	Sept 2021 Amount
NBF (credit)	CA/DT for period 10/1/21-3/31/23 (18 mos)	April-23	1a	\$8,750,000
NBF (credit)	CA/DT for period 4/1/23-9/30/24 (18 mos)	September-24	1b	\$9,750,000
	Contract Admin/Delegate Training Total			\$18,500,000
NBF	LMI - YMP	August-22	Za	\$1,000,000
NBF	LMI - YMP	August-23	2b	\$1,000,000
NBF	LMI - YMP	August-24	2c	\$1,000,000
	LMI - YMP Total		2	\$3,000,000
NBF	Labor Management Initiative (LMI)	January-22	3a	\$8,000,000
NBF	Labor Management Initiative (LMI)	January-23	3b	\$9,000,000
JSF	Labor Management Initiative (LMI)	Feb -Nov 23	3c	\$7,500,000
JSF	Labor Management Initiative (LMI)	Feb -Nov 24	3d	\$7,000,000
	Labor Management Initiative (LMI) Total		3	\$31,500,000
NBF	LMI - HEP	January-22	4a	\$20,000,000
NBF	LMI - HEP	January-23	4b	\$4,000,000
NBF	LMI - HEP	January-24	4c	\$4,200,000
CCF	LMI - HEP	Feb-Aug 2023	4d	\$6,500,000
CCF	LMI - HEP	Jan-May 2024	4e	\$5,000,000
	LMI HEP Total		4	\$39,700,000
N8F	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	January-22	5a	\$15,000,000
JSF	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	Feb -Nov 22	5b	\$10,000,000
NBF	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	January-23	5c	\$23,000,000
JSF	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	Feb -Nov 23	5d	\$2,500,000
CCF	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	June-Aug 2024	5e	\$2,500,000
NBF	Training & Upgrading Fund (TUF)	January-24	5f	\$23,000,000
	Training & Upgreding Fund (TUP) Total	and the second second	5	\$76,000,000
No. NBP State	CIPC Discretionary	TO BO STROM	1. 6 M	\$10,300,000
	Grand Total NBF Diversions less YMP		7	\$135,000,000

#### EXHIBIT F RESIDUAL JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

The following shall apply during the term of this Agreement:

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth in subparagraph (f) below, where the Union seeks arbitration of a grievance asserting that a professional, service, maintenance, clerical or technical job classification at an Employer is improperly excluded from its existing represented unit at that Employer, the claim shall be submitted to an Arbitrator as set forth below.

(b) The Presidents of the League and the Union (the "Presidents") shall jointly select a standing panel of not less than five (5) Arbitrators to hear disputes arising under this Exhibit F.<sup>26</sup> Members of the panel shall serve for terms limited to two (2) years unless their terms are renewed by mutual agreement of the Presidents. Absent such agreement, or if a vacancy arises on the panel, the Presidents shall jointly select replacement and/or successor Arbitrator(s).

(c) When a grievance described in subparagraph (a) above has not been resolved under the grievance procedure in Article XXXI, the Union and the Employer shall jointly select an Arbitrator from the panel. If the Employer and the Union cannot agree on the Arbitrator, they shall select the Arbitrator by alternately striking Arbitrators from the panel list. A coin toss will determine who strikes first from the list of Arbitrators. The Union and the Employer shall equally share the cost and expenses of the arbitration proceeding.

(d) The Arbitrator shall determine if the job classification should be included in an existing unit applying NLRA law, including but not limited to a history of exclusion of the job classification at issue at the Employer, as well as relevant principles of contract law.

(e) The Union and the Employer shall expedite the arbitration process by defining the relevant issues and agreeing to exchange available relevant information prior to the hearing.

(f) This arbitration procedure shall not apply to:

(i) guards;

(ii) any job classification that is excluded from coverage by this Agreement pursuant to Article I, paragraph 1 (b);

(iii) any professional job classification that is not within a profession already represented by the Union at the Employer;

(iv) any job classification that has been excluded from representation by an express written agreement between the Union and the Employer;

(v) any job classification that is unrepresented as a result of a prior election at the Employer, or as a result of an express exclusion in a prior determination of the NLRB, the SLRB, or any other governmental body;

(vi) job classifications at locations or facilities where the Union

<sup>26</sup> As of May 6, 2015, the following arbitrators were jointly selected for two (2) year terms:, Daniel Brent, Richard Adelman, Homer LaRue and Bonnie Siber Weinstock.

does not already represent the bargaining unit to which such titles are alleged to belong; or

(vii) any current arbitration proceeding(s) between the Union and an Employer relating to one or more residual job classification(s).

(g) The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify in any way any of the terms of this Exhibit F. The Arbitrator's decision under this Exhibit F shall be deemed final and binding by the parties to the proceeding, and neither party shall resort to the National Labor Relations Board for review of the issues covered by the award. Neither party to the proceeding shall challenge such award on the ground that the arbitral forum was improper for resolving the Union's grievance, unless the arbitration is precluded by the terms of subparagraph (f) above.

(h) Nothing in this Exhibit F shall be deemed to modify or supersede any other provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the provisions of paragraph 2 of Article I.
## EXHIBIT G QCC LANGUAGE APPLICABLE TO NURSING HOME EMPLOYERS THAT PARTICIPATE IN THE QCC

1199SEIU and the League of Independent Nursing Homes agree that the Quality Care Community (formerly known as Quality Care Committee, changed by QCC Steering Committee to better reflect the work) be recognized as a permanent committee.

## 1. Committee recognizes:

- A. Person-centered quality care services improves the quality of care and life of residents and staff.
- B. Quality of care builds on the quality of our workforce who are dedicated and committed to their work.
- C. Innovative models of care will advance the cause of person-centered quality care.
- D. Long-term reform at the state and federal levels is integral to the success of a value driven system of care and the joint work of QCC.
- E. Nursing homes are subject to a highly regulated government program requiring a commitment to compliance.

## 2. Committee Objectives:

- A. To advance the cause of person-centered quality care and the reform of the nursing home field.
- B. To support the ongoing work of the QCC. The QCC has started a movement toward culture change that is unprecedented.
- C. To support and initiate innovative and new models of care in each facility, including but not limited to:
  - \* New style living units that are organized around community and neighborhood settings.
  - \* New skills sets and job titles to facilitate changes and improved performance for the organization and continue to enhance the satisfaction of residents and workers.
  - \* New models of care that would include flexibility of non-traditional schedules based on resident needs and employee needs.
  - \* New technology that would increase the effectiveness and efficiency of our workplace.

## New Models of Person Centered Care ("NMPCC"):

In order to facilitate these next steps in the person-centered culture change, the QCC and its Oversight Committee will need to consider and review new recommendations, facility by facility, and authorize "NMPCC" Pilot Projects. These new models of care will explore new innovative concepts, as described above, which will ben-

efit the person-centered quality care, the economic well-being of each facility and enhance the satisfaction of workers. Facility specific QCC Committees will agree to work within this new "framework" to meet the new objectives set forth.

The parties agree that the primary goal is to improve the quality of care for our residents. Therefore, the parties also agree to develop, facilitate and support the following initiatives to achieve the goal.

Framework: Quality Care requires exploring:

- 1) A flexible workforce: use of non-traditional schedules.
- 2) Improved performance of Institutions: Meeting federal quality measurement standards.
- 3) A skilled workforce: New job descriptions; new career paths; training opportunities.
- 4) New approaches to organizing the daily work: New style living units organizing around community living including family style and neighborhood settings; implementing new technology.
- 5) Fully utilizing existing/new labor-management committees to review standards of care and practices.

i. Utilize best practices in development of standards of care.

ii. The parties agree to provide an allocation of \$1 million (in addition to the amount allocated in the 2004-2008 CBA) from the LMI to fund the work of the QCC. Effective July 22, 2009, funding for the work of the QCC shall be in the amount of \$350,000 per year for each year of the Agreement as part of the LMI funding.

- 6) Areas of Potential Innovation
  - Career ladders
  - \* Scheduling
  - \* New job roles and responsibilities
  - \* Work rules
  - \* Technology
  - \* Training
  - \* Job security
  - \* Rewards and recognition
  - D. To work constructively to resolve conflict, pursue mutually compatible objectives, and share a commitment to the person-centered quality care and the economic well being of each facility and employee.
  - E. To enhance changes to the organization of work that enhances the satisfaction of residents and workers.
  - F. To study and review nursing care practices, including job assignments and duties of bargaining unit members, in Nursing Homes leading to recommendations to the League and 1199 Nursing Home Division leadership in nursing care practices, including staffing, with the goal of providing appropriate care for each resi-

dent in accordance with New York State standards. This committee shall also consider professional and technical practice issues.

3. Project Structure, Roles & Responsibilities

A. Quality Care Committee ("QCC") consisting of one nursing home department bargaining unit member and one management representative from each League nursing home chosen by each of the respective parties will:

- 1) Prepare a mission, vision and values statement that will guide the work of the QCC over the term of this contract.
- 2) Prepare an agenda and timelines for its activities through 2011.
- 3) Screen and select expert(s) to conduct research.
- 4) Assist in gathering of resident care data, including current staffing patterns and job descriptions at each of the Association homes.
- 5) Review and evaluate data collected.
- 6) Develop recommendations to the League and 1199 leadership.
- 7) Use interest-based problem solving as basis for discussions.
- 8) Provide regular updates to the leadership of League and 1199 of progress.
- 9) Maintain records of their meetings.
- 10) Meet one date per month or as determined by the Committee.
- 11) In order to expedite the work of the QCC, subcommittees may be established to study different facets of this issue. Subcommittees may be formed as needed.

Three subcommittees are recognized and will address such items as:

- 1) Program Committee:
  - a. Approaches to expanding and deepening the innovations developed through the NMPCC pilots;
  - b. Referencing and/or incorporating, where appropriate, relevant public and private guidelines on person centered care.
- 2) Data and Measurement Committee:
  - a. Evaluation of the work of the QCC homes;
  - b. Measurement and monitoring of the progress of the QCC homes;
  - c. Defining "success".
- 3) Contract Language Committee:
  - a. Ensuring flexibility to effectuate change while providing protections for employees and the Union in a rapidly changing environment;
  - b. Determining what safeguards are necessary;
  - c. Considering mechanisms to be used to resolve disagreements between the parties;
  - d. Making recommendations concerning the timeframe and structure for addressing these and other issues regarding the work of QCC homes.

Each Committee shall consist of an equal number of Union and Employer

representatives to be appointed by the co-chairs of the QCC Steering Committee.

- B. Quality Care Committee Oversight Committee consisting of two
- (2) union and two (2) management leadership representatives will:
- 1) Oversee this effort, including finalizing the process.
- 2) Identify and clear up any roadblocks.
- 3) Represent committee between meetings as needed.
- 4) Advise and direct the consultants (from the Labor Management Project and any additional external experts).
- 5) Monitor the budget.
- 6) Review the recommendations of the QCC and determine how to proceed to effectuate those recommendations that are agreed upon.
- 7) Will meet monthly or as determined by the Committee.
- C. Labor Management Project staff will:
- 1) Facilitate meetings of the Quality Care Committee, Oversight Committee.
- 2) Provide orientation and training, as required, for the committees on the interest based problem solving process.
- 3) Report to the Oversight Committee.

D. Research Consultant(s) Expert(s) will [list to be completed by the QCC]:

- 1) Identify standards in nursing home nursing care practices.
- 2) Assist the committee in analyzing the data gathered.
- 3) Assist the Committee in preparing a report on data and analysis to present to League and 1199 leadership.

E. The "Contract Language" and "Data and Measurement" Sub-Committees of the QCC Committee shall jointly develop a process and timeline for evaluating and, if appropriate and mutually agreed upon, expanding the QCC Homes' pilot projects. Unless extended by mutual agreement, the "Contract Language" and "Data and Measurement" Sub-committees shall make a joint recommendation to the QCC Steering Committee concerning a process and timeframe for expanding the work of the QCC Homes' pilot projects by February 28, 2010.

- F. Boundaries: The parties recognize that:
- Some of the recommendations may be outside the control of the Nursing Home Administrators and will suggest legislative intervention.
- 2) There are a combination of factors that influence nursing practices and staffing such as resident acuity, technology; different types

of care, unit size and geography, qualifications of staff, standards of practice, staff mix, productivity, nature of resident care provided and financial resources.

4. Nothing contained herein shall be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

#### EXHIBIT H

The following changes in the benefits provided under the terms of the 1199SEIU Health Care Employees Pension Plan shall apply:

(a) The Credited Future Service benefit calculation formula for Participants who commence participation on or after August 1, 2009 will be 1.60% of ten-year final average pay, multiplied by Years of Credited Future Service, except that the current 1.85% formula and five year final pay average shall apply to Participants who receive Credited Past Service Benefits under the following provision;

(b) There will be no Credited Past Service Benefit for newly organized units covered by collective bargaining agreements which are executed on or after August 1, 2009, except that the current Credited Past Service Benefit shall apply to the following bargaining units if an agreement providing for contributions at the rates in the Preferred Schedule is executed on or before December 1, 2009:

Institution Name	<u>Unit Type</u>	<u>Unit Size</u>
BI Medical Center	Nurse Practitioners	50
U Brookdale	HIV Counselors	9
Brookdale	Pro	16
Ferncliff Nursing Home	RNs and LPNs	30
MMC	Service	10
Mount Vernon Hospital (Sound Shore)	Clerical	216
New York Downtown Hospital	BOC	37
Mt. Vernon Hospital	Professionals	70
NS Plainview	Pharmacists & Pharm Techs	20
Nyack Hospital	Techs	3
Richmond U. Medical Center	Pro	14
Silvercrest RN	RNs	27
Southampton Hospital	RNs	200
Southside	Service	8
St. Johns Riverside/Cochran School of Nursing	residual clerical	6
St. Johns Riverside	Clerical	20
Syosset Hosptial	Pro	8
Vassar Brothers Medical Center	Pharm techs/assts	24
Visiting Nursing Services	Clerical	28

#### **SCHEDULE A**

## MEMBER INSTITUTIONS OF THE LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK, A MULTI-EMPLOYER BARGAINING UNIT, COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT

ARAMARK ARCH CARE Carmel Richmond Healthcare and Rehabilitation Center Ferncliff Nursing Home Co., Inc. Mary Manning Walsh Home Providence Rest Nursing Home and Rehabilitation Center St. Vincent DePaul Residence Terence Cardinal Cooke Health Care Center BON SECOURS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL **BRONXCARE HEALTH SYSTEM** BRONXCARE SPECIAL CARE CENTER BROOKDALE HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER Schulman & Schachne Institute for Nursing & Rehabilitation Arlene and David Schlang Pavilion THE BROOKLYN HOSPITAL CENTER CABRINI OF WESTCHESTER COHEN'S CHILDREN MEDICAL CENTER EGER HEALTH CARE & REHABILITATION CENTER Eger Harbor House, Inc. EPISCOPAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC. St. John's Episcopal Hospital South Shore Episcopal Health Services South Shore Billing FLUSHING HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER GOOD SAMARITAN HOSPITAL INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER ISABELLA GERIATRIC CENTER JAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER Jamaica Hospital DTC Jamaica Hospital Nursing Horne KINGSBROOK JEWISH MEDICAL CENTER Rutland Nursing Home, Inc. LENOX HILL HOSPITAL LONG ISLAND JEWISH FOREST HILLS LONG ISLAND JEWISH MEDICAL CENTER LONG ISLAND JEWISH VALLEY STREAM MAIMONIDES MEDICAL CENTER MANHATTAN EYE EAR & THROAT HOSPITAL MIHS Menorah Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing Care Adult Day Health Center MONTEFIORE HEALTH SYSTEM

MONTEFIORE MOUNT VERNON HOSPITAL MONTEFIORE NEW ROCHELLE MONTEFIORE SCHAEFFER EXTENDED CARE FACILITY MONTEFIORE MEDICAL CENTER Jack D. Weiler Hospital on the Einstein Campus Montefiore Wakefield Campus Montefiore Westchester Square Moses Campus MOUNT SINAI HEALTH SYSTEM THE MOUNT SINAI HOSPITAL Mount Sinai Hospital Mount Sinai Queens BETH ISRAEL MEDICAL CENTER Mount Sinai Beth Israel Mount Sinai Brooklyn ST. LUKE'S ROOSEVELT HOSPITAL CENTER Mount Sinai Morningside Mount Sinai West NEW YORK EYE & EAR INFIRMARY OF MOUNT SINAI QUEENS HOSPITAL CENTER (Affiliation) ELMHURST HOSPITAL CENTER (Affiliation) THE NEW JEWISH HOME Manhattan Division Sarah Neuman Nursing Home NEW YORK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL OF BROOKLYN, INC. NEW YORK MEDICAL COLLEGE/VALHALLA NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN BROOKLYN METHODIST HOSPITAL NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN/LOWER MANHATTAN HOSPITAL NORTHWELL HEALTH, AMBULATORY SERVICES NYU LANGONE HEALTH SYSTEM NYU Langone Tisch/Kimmel Pavilion NYU Langone Orthopedic Hospital NYU Langone Hospital Brooklyn Sunset Park Family Health Council at NYU Langone Coler Carter (Affiliation) Bellevue Hospital (Affiliation) Gouverneur Diagnostic Treatment Center (Affiliation) Woodhull Medical and Mental Health Center (Affiliation) Cumberland Diagnostic and Treatment Center (Affiliation) PARKER JEWISH INSTITUTE FOR HEALTH CARE AND REHABILITATION PLAINVIEW HOSPITAL **REBEKAH REHAB & EXTENDED CARE CENTER** RICHMOND UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER

RIVERSIDE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, INC. St. John's Riverside Hospital Andrus Pavilion **Dobbs Ferry Pavilion** Park Care Pavilion SBH HEALTH SYSTEM SILVERCREST CENTER FOR NURSING AND REHABILITATION SOUTH SHORE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL ST. MARY'S CENTER INC. ST. PATRICK'S HOME ST. VINCENT CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER STATEN ISLAND UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL Staten Island University Hospital - North Site Staten Island University Hospital - South Site STONY BROOK EASTERN LONG ISLAND HOSPITAL PEO STONY BROOK SOUTHAMPTON HOSPITAL PEO SYOSSET HOSPITAL UNION COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER UNITED HEBREW OF NEW ROCHELLE VILLAGECARE VillageCare Rehabilitation & Nursing Center WYCKOFF HEIGHTS MEDICAL CENTER ZUCKER HILLSIDE HOSPITAL

## SCHEDULE B NEW LEAGUE MEMBERS AND EXISTING MEMBER INSTITUTIONS WITH COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS WHO JOINED SINCE JULY 16, 2018

MID-HUDSON VALLEY STAFFCO, LLC

NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN LAWRENCE HOSPITAL

NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN QUEENS HOSPITAL

NYU LANGONE HOSPITAL LONG ISLAND

THE LONG ISLAND HOME dba SOUTH OAKS HOSPITAL

## SCHEDULE C LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK 1199 RN INSTITUTIONS AND AFFILIATES

BETH ISRAEL MEDICAL CENTER Mount Sinai Beth Israel Mount Sinai Brooklyn BON SECOURS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL BROOKDALE HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER Schulman & Schachne Institute for Nursing & Rehab Arlene and David Schlang Pavilion EPISCOPAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC. St. John's Episcopal Hospital South Shore GOOD SAMARITAN HOSPITAL JAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER Jamaica Hospital Nursing Home LONG ISLAND JEWISH FOREST HILLS MID-HUDSON VALLEY STAFFCO, LLC MONTEFIORE MEDICAL CENTER Montefiore Wakefield Campus THE MOUNT SINAI HOSPITAL Mount Sinai Queens NEW YORK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL OF BROOKLYN NEWYORK-PRESBYTERIAN QUEENS HOSPITAL NYU LANGONE HEALTH SYSTEM NYU Langone Orthopedic Hospital RIVERSIDE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, INC. St. John's Riverside Hospital Park Care Pavilion SBH HEALTH SYSTEM SOUTH SHORE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL THE LONG ISLAND HOME dba SOUTH OAKS HOSPITAL STONY BROOK EASTERN LONG ISLAND HOSPITAL PEO STONY BROOK SOUTHAMPTON PEO

#### DATED: OCTOBER 1, 2021

Attached hereto and made part of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties hereto, effective the 23rd day of September, 2021 are four stipulations which are referred to respectively in Articles I, X and XI, XV and XX of the 2021-2024 Collective Bargaining Agreement between 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East, and the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York as agent for and on behalf of each of its member institutions whose names appear on Schedule A & B of the contract, of which latter association the undersigned Employer is a member referred to on Schedule A & B. These stipulations set forth respectively are applicable to the undersigned Employer, the bargaining unit(s) represented by the Union, the Employer Minimum Rates and Hours of Work, Past Practices, and the holidays and free days. The undersigned Employer agrees that these stipulations shall be in full force and effect for the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Union and the undersigned Employer.

(Employer)

By:

1199SEIU UNITED HEALTHCARE WORKERS EAST

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITAL AND HOMES OF NEW YORK

# **STIPULATION I**

The bargaining unit(s) covered by 1199 in

\_\_\_\_\_ referred to in Article I

\_\_\_\_\_ of the Collective Bargaining

Agreement between 1199 and the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York are:

## STIPULATION II MINIMUM RATES AND HOURS OF WORK UNIFORM JOB TITLES & RATES NON-UNIFORM JOB TITLES & RATES

# **STIPULATION III**

HOSPITAL:

PAST PRACTICES

The past practices referred to in Article XX are:

# **STIPULATION IV**

HOSPITAL:

HOLIDAYS

Legal Holidays:

Other Holidays or Free Days:

#### SIDE LETTER RE: CIPC

October 1, 2021 Mr. Marc Z. Kramer, President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street, Room 1530 New York, NY 10019

Dear Mr. Kramer:

If the financial assumptions underlying the Agreement prove to be substantially insufficient and there is a significant adverse impact on the Employers, then the issue can be submitted to CIPC without the issue being subject to arbitration.

Very truly yours,

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

AGREED:

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Marc Z. Kramer, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: 144 MINIMUMS

October 1, 2021

Marc Z. Kramer, President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 W. 57th Street New York, NY 10019

Re: <u>144 Minimums</u>

Dear Marc:

This will confirm our agreement that the parties shall establish a committee to explore ways of raising 144 minimums and experience steps to the comparable levels of the League uniform classification rates. The parties may seek the assistance of the Labor-Management project in the LMI Fund to assist in its deliberations.

Very truly yours,

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

AGREED:

Marc Z. Kramer, President

## SIDE LETTER RE: ALTERNATIVES TO LAYOFFS

October 1, 2021

Mr. George Gresham President 1199SEW United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: Alternatives to Layoffs

Dear George:

This is to confirm that you and I will meet at your request to discuss programs that may be developed as "Alternatives to Layoffs".

Sincerly,

Kramer, President

123

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NON-DISCRIMINATION

October 1, 2021

Mr. George Gresham President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: Non-discrimination language

Dear George:

This will confirm our agreement that Article IV(1) of the Collective Bargaining Agreement has been amended by adding the phrase "sexual orientation". This amendment will not be applicable to an institution which has a religious objection.

Sincerely,

Mark Z. Kramer, President

AGREED:

Je i

George Gresham, President

### SIDE LETTER RE: NBF CONTRIBUTION RATE AND NPF BENEFITS

October 1, 2021

Mr. George Gresham President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: <u>NBF Contribution Rate and NPF Benefits</u>

Dear George:

This is to confirm our agreement that if, during the life of this Agreement, the actuary to the National Benefit Fund recommends that the contribution rate be increased, you and I will meet to discuss that issue.

This is also to confirm that the Pension Fund shall be amended to provide that during the life of this Agreement and/or while the Pension Fund is in critical status any legally permissible improvements in benefits may only be made by mutual agreement of 1199 and the League.

Please sign on the line provided below and return a copy to me.

Very truly yours,

Mark Z. Kramer, President

AGREED:

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: PENSION CONTRIBUTION AND TEF FUNDING

October 1, 2021

Marc Z. Kramer, President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street New York, NY 10019

Re: Pension Contribution and ETJSP Funding

Dear Marc:

This letter is delivered simultaneously with the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between 1199 and the League, commencing October 1, 2021, and has the same force and effect as if set forth in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Full Funding: For the duration of this Agreement, the Employer's contribution obligation to the Pension Fund ("PF") for any Plan Year shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage amount of gross wages set forth in Article XXIV or (2) the contribution amount set by the Pension Fund Trustees based upon the Pension Fund Actuary's determination of each Employer's allocated portion of the Pension Fund's full funding limitation. In the event the Plan Actuary determines that amounts to be contributed to the PF would be in excess of the contribution limitation, the disposition of the Pension contributions that would otherwise be made shall be referred to CIPC for its consideration in accordance with the following understandings. When amounts have been contributed which the Plan Actuary determines to be in excess of the contribution limitation, such excess amounts shall be returned to the Employer consistent with paragraph 403(c)(2) of ERISA. The Trust Agreement will be amended, if needed, to authorize Trustee action in this regard. It is agreed that any amount of money for PF contributions that are returned to the Employer by reason of this paragraph or which are withheld because the contribution limitation would be exceeded (as confirmed by the Plan Actuary) shall be diverted to another of the 1199/League Funds as determined by CIPC.

For each Plan Year the PF Actuary shall evaluate and report to the League and the Union the contribution limitation as follows: (a) in December, the amount for the Plan Year commencing January 1 of the year following shall be estimated, and (b) in June, the amount for that Plan Year shall be finalized and reported. Employment Training and Job Security Program ("ETJSP") Funding: The Employers shall not be responsible for any further funding of the LMI Fund, Training and Upgrading Fund or the Job Security Fund (collectively "ETJSP") during the term of this Agreement other than as set forth at Article IXA (B) (4) (JSF), Article XXII (1) (TUF) and Article XXIV (l)(c) (Pension Contribution Diversion) or as determined by CIPC pursuant to Paragraph 1 above.

If this letter correctly sets forth our agreement, please sign where indicated below and return a signed copy to me.

Very truly yours,

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

AGREED:

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Marc Z. Kramer, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: MATERNITY LEAVE

Dated: March 30, 1990

Mr. Dennis Rivera President Local 1199, Drug, Hospital and Health Care Employees Union, RWDSU 310 West 43rd Street New York, N.Y. 10036

Dear Mr. Rivera:

This letter is delivered to you simultaneously with the execution of the master Collective Bargaining Agreement between the League and Local 1199. Its purpose is to set forth the basis of the agreement of the parties with respect to the modification of the maternity leave provision (Article XIX, paragraph 1).

During the negotiations which led to the renewal of the 1982 agreement, the Union sought removal of the maternity leave provisions which require pregnant Employees to notify the Employer of the expected date of delivery and the date they wish to stop work by the end of the third month of pregnancy and, by the end of the sixth month of pregnancy, to provide a physician's statement certifying the expected date of delivery and the Employee's physical ability to continue working up to the last day of work requested by the Employee. These proposals were made on the ground that continuation of such requirements violated the law.

In settling upon the terms of the renewal agreement, the parties agreed to revise the maternity leave provision to conform with the law. Subsequently, the parties disagreed as to whether the foregoing provisions are legally permissible.

In view of the foregoing, and to expedite execution of a renewal agreement, we have agreed to remove these provisions from the contract with the express understanding that the Employers reserve the right to continue such policies except in the event that such may be finally determined by an arbitrator or court to violate the law.

If the foregoing correctly sets forth our agreement, please indicate your agreement thereto by signing the enclosed copies of this letter agreement in the place indicated.

Very truly yours,

AGREED: LOCAL 1199, DRUG, HOSPITAL AND HEALTH UNION, RWDSU

Jece St

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK

## SIDE LETTER RE: ELECTRONIC DUES TRANSMISSION, ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS AND CONTRACT AND BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM

October 1, 2021

Marc Z. Kramer, President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street New York, NY 10019

Re: <u>Electronic Dues Transmission;</u> <u>Electronic Transfers:</u> <u>Contract and Benefits Administration Program</u>

Dear Mr. Kramer:

This letter is delivered to you simultaneously with the execution of the collective bargaining agreement, and sets forth certain agreements reached by the parties.

#### Electronic Dues Transmission and Reporting

It is the agreement of the League and the Union to implement electronic transmission of dues remittances and reports and to streamline reporting requirement. The League and the Union will meet to discuss the most practicable implementation program to achieve this objective.

#### Electronic Transfers

It is agreed that any Employer that does not presently have the technological ability to electronically transfer contributions and reports shall make their best efforts to comply with the provisions of Section 6(A)(7) of the May 7, 2004 MOA concerning the electronic transfer of Fund contributions and related information. Any disputes about the ability of an Employer to comply with the electronic transfer provisions of the May 7, 2004 MOA shall be referred to the Collections Committee for resolution without recourse to arbitration.

It is also agreed that the League will seek the cooperation of the institutions listed in "Schedule B" and covered by our agreement to do electronic fund transfers for credit union contributions.

## Contract and Benefits Administration Program

The Contract Administrators Program shall be extended for the period October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2024, and shall not exceed \$16.9 million. The program will continue under the same terms and conditions as described in the July 30, 2002 agreement and 2001-2005, 2004- 2008, 2007-2011, 2009-2015, and 2014-2018 League multi-employer CBA side letters, and subsequent written agreements adjusted to reflect the duration of this Agreement, increased pay and the \$7.3 million available from the 2011-2015 contract period to reimburse Employers. Funding shall be as determined by CIPC.

This program shall not apply following the end of the term of this Agreement, unless extended by mutual agreement of the League and the Union.

Very truly yours,

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

AGREED:

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Marc Z. Kramer, President

### SIDE LETTER TO MOA DATED OCTOBER 1, 2018 RE: ENHANCED QUALITY & PERFORMANCE INITIATIVES ("COMMITTEE")

To: Mr. George Gresham and Maria Casteneda

From: Mr. Marc Z. Kramer

Re: Enhanced Quality & Performance Initiatives ("Committee")

Without limiting any individual employer's management rights under this Agreement and in support of continued cooperation between the parties to improve quality and performance, the League and the Union shall promptly appoint an equal number of members to the Committee which shall meet within thirty (30) days following ratification of this Agreement to establish a framework, objectives, benchmarks and time frame for developing and implementing quality, performance and revenue enhancement provisions and initiatives at each Employer (LMI to facilitate the work of the Committee and the local initiatives- RNLMI will also facilitate and RNs shall be represented where initiatives include the work of RNs).

Existing local programs shall only be modified by mutual agreement at the local level.

Disputes arising concerning this provision shall be resolved pursuant to the CIPC process, but shall not be subject to arbitration.

League of Voluntary Hosptials and Homes of New York

AGREED:

George Gresham, President

Very truly yours,

Mark Z. Kramer

#### SIDE LETTER TO MOA DATED SEPTEMBER 23, 2021 RE: NURSING HOMES

To: Mr. George Gresham and Maria Casteneda

From: Mr. Marc Z. Kramer

1. The League's proposal on excluding overtime hours from National Benefit Fund ("NBF") contributions is acceptable.

2. a. League homes employing members with multiple jobs, on which contributions are made to the NBF and/or Greater New York Benefit Fund ("GNYBF") will receive a credit from the NBF equal to the amount of contributions in excess of those required for the highest wage class for which that member is already eligible, whether the NBF or GNYBF.

b. Parties will establish an electronic exchange to facilitate this process and allow members with full-time benefits to seek additional work at League nursing homes and create additional savings.

3. If a Home is experiencing substantial economic hardship, it may petition CIPC for permission to have up to five (5) employees for paid time-off relief who will receive all collective bargaining agreement pay and benefits, except the Horne will not be obligated to make health and small funds contributions or accrue paid time off benefits.

In addition, a Home may petition CIPC for additional relief from the provisions of this Agreement. To obtain relief, the Home must demonstrate a substantial decline in the ratio of its operating revenue to its cost under this Agreement at the time it is executed resulting in its financial condition being so poor that it will have to substantially reduce the quantity, or skill mix, of 1199 Bargaining Unit work hours per resident day causing reduced service to its residents.

League of Voluntary Hosptials and Homes of New York

Very truly yours,

Mark Z. Kramer, President

AGREED:

George Gresham, President

### ATTACHMENT A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Agreement between the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York (the "League"), as agent on behalf of each of its member institutions whose names appear on Schedule A annexed hereto and made a part hereof (each of which is hereinafter designated as the "Employer"), and 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East (the "Union"), acting on behalf of its members who are employed by said Employers.

WHEREAS, the League and the Union are committed to working together to maintain and improve the ability of the Employers to provide quality health care through joint labor management efforts; to insure appropriate funding and resources for health care through joint legislative work; and to insure that there is affordable health care and access to health care for the residents of the State of New York through continuing to fund initiatives, and other joint ventures; and

<u>WHEREAS</u>, the League and the Union recognize that labor strife will have a disruptive influence on their ability to engage in the foregoing efforts;

NOW, THEREFORE, the League and the Union agree that Article I (Recognition) and Article XXXII (Arbitration) of the collective bargaining agreement between them shall be modified as set forth in the attachment hereto.

Dated: October 1, 2021 New York, New York

1199SEIU UNITED HEALTHCARE WORKERS EAST

By:

George Gresham, President

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK

By:

Mark Z. Kramer, President

## ATTACHMENT A UNION ORGANIZING RIGHTS

Subject to the limitations set forth in subparagraph (e) below, the following shall apply when the Union seeks to organize (i) an unrepresented unit of employees of the Employer; (ii) a job classification of employees of the Employer excluded from the arbitration procedure in Exhibit F of the CBA by operation of subparagraph (f)(iii)-(v) thereof, (iii) a job classification of employees of the Employer that an Arbitrator designated pursuant to Exhibit F of the CBA has found to be properly excluded from a represented unit; or (iv) a job classification of employees of the Employer that is listed as excluded in Stipulation I between the Union and such Employer.

(a) <u>Notice</u>. The Union shall serve written notice on the Employer when it commences organizing at the Employer. The notice shall identify the unit(s) or job classification(s) of the Employer's employees that the Union is seeking to represent.

(b) <u>Rules of Conduct</u>. The rules of conduct set forth in this subparagraph (b) shall apply as follows:

(i) <u>Duration and Applicability</u>. These rules of conduct shall apply only with respect to the employees in the unit(s) or job classification(s) identified in the notice required by subparagraph (a) above; shall apply beginning on the date when the Union provides said notice; and shall continue only until the earliest of the following dates:

(A) if the Union has not filed a petition for an election under subparagraphs (b)(iv) and (c) below, the date when the Union notifies the Employer that it is no longer seeking to represent the unit(s) or job classification(s) identified in said notice, or the date when the sixty (60) day period for filing such a petition elapses under subparagraph (b)(iv) below;

(B) the date when the Union withdraws its petition for such an election;

or

(C) the date of such an election.

(ii) <u>Joint Statement</u>. Within seventy-two (72) hours after the Employer's receipt of the foregoing notice from the Union, the Employer shall post a statement jointly signed by the Union and the Employer, the substance of which shall be as set forth in Exhibit A attached here-to and made a part hereof, addressed to the employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s).

(iii) <u>Access</u>. As soon as practicable, but no more than four (4) working days after the Employer receives the notice required by subparagraph (a) above, the Employer shall allow access to the employee cafeteria and a suitable meeting room to be agreed upon by the Union and the Employer, for Union officers, organizers and delegates to meet with employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s). (A) The number of Union officers, organizers and delegates meeting in the employee cafeteria at any one time shall be limited to the extent necessary so as to not interfere with the operations of the Employer.

(B) The aforesaid meeting room shall be available to the Union's officers, organizers and delegates at reasonable times; shall be located away from patient care areas; and, to the extent feasible, shall not be located near supervisory or management offices. Employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s) shall be permitted access to the meeting room during their non-working time.

(C) The Union's access under this subparagraph (b)(iii) shall be suspended when another labor organization affiliated with the AFL-CIO commences organizing employees in one or more of the unit(s) or classification(s) identified in the Union's notice under subparagraph (a) above. Such suspension shall remain in effect until the other labor organization ceases its organizing, with or without a determination under Article XXI of the AFL-CIO Constitution ("Organizing Responsibility Procedures") that the Union has the exclusive right to seek to represent the employees at issue. The Union's access shall terminate if it is determined that the other labor organization has such exclusive right. There shall be no suspension of access if the Employer encouraged or supported the other labor organization to seek representation of the employees at issue.

(D) Nothing contained in this subparagraph (b)(iii) shall be deemed a waiver of any right of access for organizing purposes that may be available to the Union under the NLRA.

(iv) <u>Petition for Election, Preclusion and Tolling</u>. The Union shall file its petition for an election with the NLRB, with the showing of interest required by the NLRB, within sixty (60) days after serving the notice required by subparagraph (a) above.

(A) If the Union does not file its petition within the specified time period, or if the Union files a petition and then withdraws it, the Union shall be precluded for a period of one (1) year from seeking to represent any employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s). The one (1) year period shall begin from the earliest of the following dates: if no petition has been filed, the date when the Union notifies the Employer that it is no longer seeking to represent the identified unit(s) or classification(s), or the date when the sixty (60) day filing period elapses; or the date when the Union withdraws a petition that it has filed within the sixty (60) day period.

(B) The time period for the Union to file its petition with the NLRB under this subparagraph (b)(iv) shall be tolled if another labor organization affiliated with the AFL-CIO commences organizing employees in one or more of the unit(s) or classification(s) identified in the Union's notice under subparagraph (a) above, provided that the Union has initiated a proceeding under Article XXI of the AFL-CIO Constitution ("Organizing Responsibility Procedures") to determine whether the Union or the other labor organization has the exclusive right to organize the employees at issue. Such tolling shall be effective when the AFL-CIO takes jurisdiction over the dispute between the Union and the other labor organization, and shall continue until the AFL-CIO renders a determination in such an Article XXI proceeding awarding such exclusive right to the Union. If it is determined that the other labor organization has such exclusive right, then the provisions of this Attachment A shall no longer be applicable to the Union's organizing of employees identified in the Union's notice under subparagraph (a) above. There shall be no tolling if the Union encouraged or supported the other labor organization to seek representation of the employees at issue.

(v) <u>Employee Freedom of Choice</u>. Employees have the right to choose whether or not to be represented by the Union in a secret ballot election, and to make that decision in an atmosphere free of harassment, coercion, intimidation, promises or threats by either the Employer or the Union.

(vi) <u>No Disruption or Interference</u>. All organizational activities subject to these provisions, including but not limited to the Union's activities in the employee cafeteria and in the meeting room pursuant to subparagraph (b)(iii) above, shall be carried out in a manner so as to not disrupt patient care or otherwise interfere with the operations of the Employer.

(vii) Speech Standard.

(A) The Employer's campaign (oral and written) shall be factual, and shall not disparage either the motive or mission of the Union and the SEIU and/or their representatives (e.g., officers and organizers). The Employer shall not tell its employees to vote against representation by the Union. The Employer may convey its position fairly, may advise employees that each of them must make his/her own decision, and may provide employees with factual information to support an informed decision. Subject to the foregoing, the Employer retains the right to communicate its opinion to employees about unionization.

(B) The Union's organizing campaign (oral and written) shall be factual, and shall not disparage either the motive or mission of the Employer and, where applicable, its sponsor or parent organization, and/or their representatives (e.g., officers, managers and supervisors). The Union may convey its position fairly, and may provide employees with factual information to support an informed decision. Subject to the foregoing, the Union retains the right to communicate its opinion to employees about unionization.

(viii) <u>Campaign Materials</u>. Neither the Union nor the Employer shall publish, distribute or disseminate any campaign flyers, leaflets, letters, memoranda, notices, other written materials, or any audio,

video or electronic media (e.g., messages for publication via the internet or on the Union's or the Employer's website) relating to the campaign without the prior approval of the other's special representative designated for resolving disputes pursuant to subparagraph (d) below. The Arbitrator's authority with respect to any dispute concerning a proposed communication shall be limited to determining whether and how the content of the proposed communication is inconsistent with these rules of conduct, and prohibiting its issuance to the extent that it is inconsistent.

(ix) <u>Mandatory Employer Meetings and Union Contacts with</u> <u>Employees</u>.

(A) The Employer shall not hold any mandatory oneon-one or group meetings with employees, a subject of which is representation by the Union. The Employer shall not initiate one-on-one conversations with employees on the subject of representation by the Union. This shall not prohibit the Employer from responding to questions concerning unionization raised by employees at a mandatory meeting called for other purposes.

(B) The Union's representatives (e.g., officers, organizers and delegates) shall not discourage employees from attending voluntary group meetings called by the Employer to discuss unionization, or otherwise interfere with the Employer's right to hold such meetings. The Union's representatives shall respect the request of any employee who does not wish to engage in a discussion or accept literature.

(x) <u>Correction of Inaccuracies</u>. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting either the Union's or the Employer's right to correct any inaccurate statements made by the other during the period covered by these rules of conduct, provided that the corrections are made in a manner consistent with the speech standard in subparagraph (b)(vii) above.

(xi) <u>Use of Consultants and Other Third Parties</u>. Neither the Union nor an Employer shall use consultants or other representatives or surrogates to engage in activities inconsistent with these rules of conduct.

(xii) <u>Employee Groups</u>. The Employer shall not sponsor or encourage any group of employees who advocate a vote against union representation.

(c) <u>Election Procedure</u>. Elections pursuant to this Attachment A shall be conducted by secret ballot supervised by the National Labor Relations Board, and be governed by the Board's Rules and Regulations, Series 8, as amended, and the procedures outlined below:

(i) Any election petition filed by the Union with the NLRB shall be for a collective bargaining unit that conforms to the Board's rule on "Appropriate Units in the Health Care Industry," 29 C.F.R. § 103.30 (other than a unit of registered nurses, physicians, or guards), unless the NLRB finds a non-conforming unit to be appropriate under 29 C.F.R. § 103.30(b) or (c). However, the Union may petition for an election among employees in a job classification that is residual to an existing unit and for whom the Union does not have the right to seek representation pursuant to Exhibit F of the CBA. If a majority of the ballots cast by employees in the residual job classification is cast for representation by the Union, it is understood that said job classification shall be added to the existing bargaining unit to which it is residual.

(ii) When the Union petitions to represent employees in a job classification that is residual to an existing bargaining unit, and there are no issues of voter eligibility (i.e., questions of supervisory, managerial or confidential employee status), then the Union and Employer shall enter into a consent election agreement (under 29 C.F.R. § 102.62(a)) providing for an election within forty-two (42) days after the filing of the petition, and at a time and place to be determined by the parties and approved by the Regional Director, whose determination(s) on any pre- or post election issue(s) shall be final.

(iii) When the Union petitions to represent a unit of employees that conforms to one of the specific bargaining units enumerated in 29 C.F.R § 103.30, and there are no issues of voter eligibility, nor any issues of unit composition (i.e., job classification) affecting ten percent (10%) or more of the employees in the petitioned-for unit, then the Union and Employer shall enter into a stipulated election agreement (under 29 C.F.R. § 102.62(b)) providing for an election within forty-two (42) days after the filing of the petition, and at a time and place to be determined by the parties and approved by the Regional Director. Employees in any disputed job classification shall vote in said election subject to challenge, with ultimate disposition of the issue deferred until after the election, provided that they do not meet or exceed the ten percent (10%) limitation referred to above. Unit composition issues decided by the Regional Director shall not be subject to review by the Board unless both parties agree, except where they involve determinative challenged ballots. The foregoing shall not affect a party's right to request review on any other issue decided by the Regional Director.

(iv) When issues exist as to the scope of the appropriate bargaining unit and/or voter eligibility and/or as to unit composition affecting ten percent (10%) or more of the employees in the petitioned-for unit, then all such issues shall be decided by the Regional Director/ Board on the basis of a record made at a hearing held prior to the conduct of any election. The Employer and Union agree to exercise best efforts to avoid such issues in the interest of expediting the resolution of questions concerning representation under this procedure and nothing herein shall preclude the Employer and Union from stipulating to an election in a non-conforming unit. In the event that a pre-election hearing is necessary to resolve unit or other issues raised by the Employer, the Employer will provide the Union with an alphabetical list of the names and last known addresses of the employees in the petitioned-for unit at the commencement of the hearing.

(d) Enforcement/Arbitrator.

(i) As soon as practicable after service of the notice required by subparagraph (a) above, the Union and the Employer shall (A) each designate a special representative responsible for compliance and dispute resolution with respect to the rules of conduct set forth in subparagraph (b) above; and (B) select an Arbitrator from the panel established pursuant to paragraph (b) of Exhibit F of the CBA, who shall be authorized to resolve disputes in accordance with this subparagraph (d). If the Employer alleges that the Union failed to comply with the notice requirements of subparagraph (a) above, then an Arbitrator shall be selected at the time that such claim is asserted. The Union and the Employer shall equally share the costs and expenses of the Arbitrator.

(ii) Within twenty-four (24) hours after the special representatives of the Union and the Employer have been designated, they shall hold an initial conference among themselves to discuss the provisions of this Attachment A and begin identifying and seeking to resolve issues relating to their application (e.g., designation of a suitable meeting room under subparagraph (b)(iii) above).

(iii) If the Union and the Employer deem it necessary, after the foregoing meeting of the special representatives, the Arbitrator shall hold an initial conference with them to discuss the provisions of this Attachment A.

(iv) Except as set forth in this subparagraph (d), the Arbitrator shall have sole authority to hear any case and award an appropriate remedy concerning any dispute between the Union and the Employer relating to the interpretation or application of the rules of conduct set forth in subparagraph (b) above; any claim that either party breached said rules of conduct; and/or any claim that the Union failed to comply with the notice requirements of subparagraph (a) above. In addition:

(A) In cases where the Employer allegedly has discharged, disciplined or retaliated against an employee, the Arbitrator shall only have the authority to determine whether the Employer acted in reprisal for the employee's protected conceited activity in violation of the NLRA and, if the claim is found to have merit, to award a remedy available under the NLRA.

(B) In cases where it is alleged that either the Union or the Employer has violated the rules of conduct set forth in sub-paragraph (b) above to such an extent that the violation(s) affected the outcome of the election, and the Arbitrator so finds, then the party violating the rules of conduct shall join in a stipulation setting aside the results of the election and providing for a re-run election by the NLRB, provided that the objecting party has filed timely objections with the NLRB. However, if the Arbitrator does not find that the alleged violation(s) of the rules of conduct affected the outcome of the election, then the objecting party shall withdraw its objections filed with the NLRB.

(C) In no event shall the Arbitrator have authority to compel recognition of the Union or issue a bargaining order.

(v) The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify in any way any of the terms of this Attachment A.

(vi) Disputes between the Union and the Employer shall first be addressed by their special representatives. If the special representatives are unable to resolve the dispute, then they shall submit the issue to the Arbitrator within twenty-four (24) hours after the dispute first arose. The Arbitrator shall issue a determination within the next seventy-two (72) hours in any disagreement arising during the first thirty (30) days following service of the Union's notice pursuant to subparagraph (a) above. Thereafter, the Arbitrator shall issue a determination within twenty-four (24) hours. If necessary to meet these time limitations, the Arbitrator may direct the parties to submit their evidence and any position statements by facsimile, and may hear testimony via telephone.

The foregoing time limitations shall not apply in cases described in subparagraph (d)(iv)(A) and (B) above.

(vii) The Arbitrator's decision shall be deemed final and binding by the parties to the proceeding. Should the Union or the Employer decide to challenge the Arbitrator's decision in court, both shall comply with the decision unless and until a court issues an order staying or vacating the decision.

(e) <u>Limitations</u>. The provisions of subparagraphs (a) through (d) above shall not apply:

(i) with respect to a specifically identified unit or classification listed as excluded in Article I, paragraph I (b) of this Agreement;

(ii) with respect to any unit that would be inappropriate for collective bargaining or representation by the Union under the NLRA;

(iii) to the Employer in its conduct toward any labor organization other than the Union;

(iv) to the Employer in its conduct toward the Union and any labor organization not affiliated with the AFL-CIO when both have commenced organizing any employees of the Employer in one or more unit(s) or classification(s), in which event said provisions also shall not apply to the Union;

(v) to the Employer in its conduct toward the Union and any labor organization affiliated with the AFL-CIO when both have commenced organizing employees of the Employer in one or more unit(s) or classification(s), and: (A) a determination is made under Article XXI of the AFL-CIO Constitution that neither the Union nor the other labor organization has exclusive organizing rights with respect to the employees at issue; or

(B) the Union is determined to have exclusive organizing rights under Article XXI of the AFL-CIO Constitution with respect to the employees at issue, but the other labor organization continues to organize such employees; or

(C) the other labor organization is determined to have exclusive organizing rights under Article XXI of the AFL-CIO Constitution with respect to the employees at issue.

(vi) at Employer locations or facilities where the Union does not already represent employees; or

(vii) following the end of the term of this Agreement, unless such provisions are extended by mutual agreement of the League and the Union.

(f) <u>No Change to Other Provisions</u>. Except as specifically provided otherwise, nothing contained in this Attachment A shall be deemed to modify or supersede any other provision of this Agreement.

(g) <u>Subsequent Agreements</u>. Nothing in this Attachment A shall preclude an Employer from agreeing with the Union to an alternate method, for determining whether a majority of the Employer's employees wish to be represented by the Union.

## EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT A

#### [Employer Letterhead]

#### To [Unit or Classification] Employees of [Employer]:

1199SEIU is seeking to represent you [if applicable, insert location] for purposes of collective bargaining. [Employer] and 1199 have jointly prepared this letter and the accompanying information sheet in the shared belief that you should understand the nature of the relationship between [Employer] and 1199, your rights under the circumstances and the process that will be followed as the Union seeks to gain your support.

[Employer] is a member of the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York, which, together with its members, is committed to working with 1199 to maintain and improve the ability of hospitals to provide quality health care through joint labor-management efforts; to ensure appropriate funding and resources for health care and access to health care for the residents of the State of New York through continuing to fund initiatives, and other joint ventures.

The League and its members, including [**Employer**], also recognize that labor strife has a disruptive effect on these joint efforts. Accordingly, [**Employer**] and 1199 have agreed to the additional procedures and rules of conduct described in the accompanying information sheet in order to help you make an informed decision on this important issue in an atmosphere that supports your freedom of choice.

The Employer and the Union have agreed that any communications about organizing will be factual and that each of us will not disparage the other's motive, mission or representatives. The (**insert name of employer**) has agreed that it will not tell employees to vote against representation by the Union. The Employer and the Union have agreed that each of us may convey its position fairly and may provide employees with factual information to support an informed decision. Subject to the foregoing rules, the Employer and the Union retain the right to communicate their opinions about unionization to the employees.

Employees have the right to choose whether or not to be represented by the Union in a secret ballot election, and to make that decision in an atmosphere free of harassment, coercion, intimidation, promises or threats by either the Employer or the Union.

We encourage you to read the attached Rules of Conduct and information sheet as they contain impoltant information about your rights.

Sincerely yours,	Sincerely yours,
[NAME & TITLE]	George Gresham, President
[EMPLOYER]	1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

#### EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT A (CONTINUED) INFORMATION SHEET

Under federal law, whether the [Unit or Classification] employees shall be represented by 1199 will be determined by a secret-ballot election conducted by the National Labor Relations Board ("NLRB"), an agency of the U.S. government. Before the NLRB will conduct an election, 1199 must demonstrate that at least 30% of the employees in [Either: (i) each of the foregoing employee groups, or (ii) the foregoing employee group] desire union representation.

1199 is or will be asking employees to sign authorization cards as a way to demonstrate such support, and the NLRB will not conduct an election unless the Union has a sufficient number of signed cards. Prior to the election, the NLRB will determine which employees are eligible to vote; however, the majority of those who actually vote will determine the result of the election. In other words, 50% + 1 of the employees who actually cast ballots will determine whether or not 1199 shall represent all of the employees in [Either: (i) each of the foregoing employee groups, or (ii) the foregoing employee group].

Each employee has the right to participate or refrain from participating in union activities, including the right to sign or not to sign union authorization cards. [Employer] and 1199 support the freedom of workers to join a union, as well as their right to choose not to do so. [Employer] and 1199 agree that, when employees are making such an important decision, it is essential that they have access to accurate and factual information about the organization that is seeking to represent them, and about what it means to be represented by a union.

Employees have the right to distribute literature concerning support for or opposition to union representation **on non-working time**, in non-working **areas** such as break rooms, cafeterias, parking lots, smoking areas and other places outside the hospital.

Employees have the right on non-working time to solicit each other in support of or opposition to the union except in patient care areas. The term "solicit" means verbal communications and includes solicitation to sign union authorization cards. The term "patient care areas" includes areas such as operating rooms, treatment rooms, patient rooms, patient lounges and immediately adjacent corridors.

Provided that it does not interfere with their work or with patient care, employees may talk about whether or not they want to be represented by a union and workplace issues including wage rates, disciplinary system, employer policies and rules and working conditions in a non-patient care area under the same terms applicable to any other private conversation between employees.
### **ORGANIZING RULES OF CONDUCT**

**Freedom of Choice.** Employees have the right to choose whether or not to be represented by the Union in a secret ballot election, and to make that decision in an atmosphere free of harassment, coercion, intimidation, promises or threats by either the Employer or the Union.

Access. The Employer shall allow access to the employee cafeteria and a suitable meeting room for Union officers, organizers and delegates to meet with employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s). The number of Union officers, organizers and delegates meeting in the employee cafeteria at any one time shall be limited to the extent necessary so as to not interfere with the operations of the Employer. Employees in the identified unit(s) or classification(s) shall be permitted access to the meeting room during their non-working time.

**No Disruption or Interference.** All organizational activities by the Union, including but not limited to the Union's activities in the employee cafeteria and in the meeting room, shall be carried out in a manner so as to not disrupt patient care or otherwise interfere with the operations of the Employer.

### Speech Standard.

(a) The Employer's campaign (oral and written) shall be factual, and shall not disparage either the motive or mission of the Union and the SEIU and/or their representatives (e.g., officers and organizers). The Employer shall not tell its employees to vote against representation by the Union. The Employer may convey its position fairly, may advise employees that each of them must make his/her own decision, and may provide employees with factual information to support an informed decision. Subject to the foregoing, the Employer retains the right to communicate its opinion to employees about unionization.

(b) The Union's organizing campaign (oral and written) shall be factual, and shall not disparage either the motive or mission of the Employer and, where applicable, its sponsor or parent organization, and/or their representatives (e.g., officers, managers and supervisors). The Union may convey its position fairly, and may provide employees with factual information to support an informed decision. Subject to the foregoing, the Union retains the right to communicate its opinion to employees about unionization.

#### Mandatory Employer Meetings and Union Contacts with Employees.

(a) The Employer shall not hold any mandatory one-on-one or group meetings with employees, a subject of which is representation by the Union. The Employer shall not initiate one-on-one conversations with employees on the subject of representation by the Union. However, this prohibition

- shall not apply in social settings, in cafeterias available to employees, in non-work areas and/or on non-work time and when employees are off duty,
- nor shall it prohibit the Employer from responding to questions concerning unionization raised by employees at a mandatory meeting called for other purposes.

b. The Union's representatives (e.g., officers, organizers and delegates) shall not discourage employees from attending voluntary group meetings called by the Employer to discuss unionization, or otherwise interfere with the Employer's right to hold such meetings. The Union's representatives shall respect the request of any employee who does not wish to engage in a discussion or accept literature.

**Election Procedure.** Elections will be conducted by secret ballot supervised by the National Labor Relations Board and governed by the Board's rules and regulations.

### SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A

October 1, 2021

Mr. Marc Z. Kramer President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street, Suite 1530 New York, New York 10019

Dear Marc:

This letter is delivered simultaneously with the execution of the collective bargaining agreement between 1199 and the League ("CBA"), commencing October 1, 2021 and has the same force and effect as if set forth in the CBA.

This confirms that the Employer's agreement that it will not initiate oneon-one conversations with employees on the subject of representation by the Union as provided in Subsection (b)(ix)(A) of Attachment A shall not apply

(a) in social settings;

(b) in cafeterias available to employees;

(c) in non-work areas and/or on non-work time; and

(d) when employees are off duty.

Very truly yours, 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

George Gresham, President

AGREED:

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Marc Z. Kramer, President

### SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A

October 1, 2021

George Gresham President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Dear George:

This letter is delivered simultaneously with the execution of the collective bargaining agreement between 1199 and the League ("CBA"), commencing October 1, 2021, and has the same force and effect as if set forth in the CBA.

This confirms that the new paragraph 9 of Article I (Attachment A) and the new paragraph 13 of Article XXXII (Exhibit F) of the CBA supersede the existing agreement between the Union and Beth Israel Medical Center concerning the same subject matter as those paragraphs.

Very truly yours,

League of Voluntary Hosptials and Homes of New York

Mark Z. Kramer, President

AGREED:

1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

George Gresham, President

### SIDE LETTER TO ATTACHMENT A

October 1, 2021

Mr. Marc Z. Kramer President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street, Suite 1530 New York, NY 10019

Dear Marc:

This letter is delivered simultaneously with the execution of the collective bargaining agreement between 1199 and the League ("CBA"), commencing October 1, 2021, and has the same force and effect as if set forth in the CBA.

This confirms that, in agreeing to the terms of the new paragraph 9 of Article I (Attachment A) and the new paragraph 13 of Article XXXII (Exhibit F) of the CBA, the parties relied on their own independent understanding of the meaning of those terms. Accordingly, in interpreting and applying said Attachment A and Exhibit F, neither of the parties nor any Employer shall cite or otherwise rely upon:

- any other collectively bargained agreement on the same subject matter, including but not limited to the agreement between Catholic Healthcare West and the SEIU, or any arbitral opinion and award (including but not limited to the Decision and Award of Gerald R. McKay dated June 8, 2001) or court or administrative decision interpreting or applying same; or
- b) any of the proposals and counter-proposals, and any statements and positions concerning same, by the League and the Union in the course of negotiations with respect to said Attachment A and Exhibit F.

In addition, no evidence with respect to the matters described in either (a) or (b) above shall be offered or received in any arbitration or other action or proceeding arising out of a dispute concerning the interpretation or application of said Attachment A and Exhibit F. The arbitrator or other trier of fact in such an action or proceeding shall not consider, cite or otherwise reply upon such evidence.

The League and 1199 further agree that this letter shall be confidential and shall not be released except to members of the League and to other entities having collective bargaining agreements with 1199 that contain the same or substantially similar terms as those set forth in said Attachment A and Exhibit F. The Union, the League and its members, and the aforesaid entities may use this letter in any circumstance to demonstrate that the terms of this letter are being violated.

Very truly yours, 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

By:

George Gresham, President

League Of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

By:

Mark Z. Kramer, President

## ATTACHMENT B Ambulatory and Primary Care Off-Site Agreement

# Preliminary Statement:

1. 1199 recognizes that health care is undergoing substantial changes.

2. These changes will impact the delivery of health care services, from in-patient to outpatient care including ambulatory and primary care delivered at offsite facilities.

3. 1199 membership in hospital-based positions will see services shifted to out-patient care delivered at these off-site facilities.

4. 1199 will play an important and constructive role in this transition, by:

- a. Having a trained work staff ready to assume these jobs;
- b. Working with the Employers to secure adequate funding to facilitate the transition to off-site/out-patient care;
- c. Actively working with management to ensure economic conditions which encourage the best patient care at these facilities;
- d. Working with the Hospitals on a regulatory environment that ensures fair competition from other out-patient facilities.

# Definitions:

5. To facilitate this transition, the Employer<sup>27</sup> and the Union will follow these procedures at off-site/out-patient facilities described below providing ambulatory or primary care under the Employer:

- a. Facilities operating under a Hospital's license (Art. 28);
- b. Facilities with shared services (similar to services provided in the Hospital), including, but not limited to, physicians' offices.

An off-site/out-patient facility shall be defined as a facility that is not on or contiguous to the hospital campus. Free standing EDs (including EDs with holding beds) shall not be deemed to fall under this Ambulatory and Primary Care Off-Site proposal.

## Procedures:

6. Recognizing that these facilities may have lower reimbursement than

<sup>27</sup> For these purposes Employer means a Hospital Employer listed in Schedule A and B (excluding Affiliations).

in-hospital services, that they compete with non-union facilities and that they are not 24/7 operations, employees shall be covered by the League agreement, except as modified with respect to:

- a. Work rules adapted to the particular operations;
- b. Health/pension benefits at a discount from League level.
- c. Upon recognition, the first negotiated wage increase will be the most recent League increase.

To accommodate differences among the Employers in the structure and organization of these facilities, 1199 and the Employers will negotiate the Employer-specific terms locally. The parties will negotiate locally over any proposals regarding health benefits under any existing off-site agreement. Such negotiations will take place within one hundred and twenty (120) days after ratification of this MOA. If agreement cannot be reached about applicability or terms, the matter will be submitted to expedited interest arbitration, it being understood that the interest arbitrator cannot order recognition of the Union at a facility.

7. To expedite this process, the Hospitals will provide the Union with a list of all facilities that fall under the definitions set forth above within one (1) month of ratification and quarterly thereafter.

8. The following recognition procedures shall apply to all facilities covered by this proposal. Employers shall:

- i. Staff the facility, to the fullest extent possible, from the Job Security Fund;
- ii. Promptly provide a list of employees with addresses, phone, title and shift;
- iii. Grant 1199 immediate access to the facility;
- iv. Remain neutral as to 1199 representation;
- v. Grant lawful recognition upon majority status for all employees employed in positions that appropriately fall within the bargaining unit represented by 1199SEIU at the main hospital campus.

9. The parties shall not engage in conduct which undermines these procedures.

10. The parties shall designate a permanent arbitrator to resolve disputes who shall have the same enforcement authority as set forth under the Enforcement/Arbitrator provision of the League Union Organizing Rights Agreement (Attachment A).

11. The Union and the Employer shall honor existing agreements relating to Union recognition or employment at off-site/out-patient facilities, including but not limited to the September 13, 2013 NYUHC representation agreement and the NSLIJ 2006 statement of goals and principles agreements.

12. The terms of this Agreement shall apply with respect to the terms and conditions of employment of employees hired after ratification of this Agreement at existing off-site/outpatient facilities where the League Agreement applies.

#### SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES

October 1, 2021

Marc Z. Kramer President League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York 555 West 57th Street New York, N.Y. 10019

### **Re: Side Letter Concerning Certain League Homes**

Dear Mr. Kramer:

This letter is delivered to you simultaneously with the execution of the 2021-2024 Collective Bargaining Agreement between 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East ("1199" or "Union") and the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York ("League"), concerning the following nursing home Employers: Beth Abraham Health Services, Center for Nursing & Rehabilitation, Eger Health Care and Rehabilitation Center, Isabella Geriatric Center, Jewish Home & Hospital (Manhattan and Bronx Divisions), Parker Jewish Institute For Health Care and Rehabilitation, Rebekah Rehabilitation and Extended Care Center.

This letter confirms that the provisions contained herein are preserved terms and conditions, encompassed under Article XXXV (Supersedes MOA) of this Agreement, and shall continue to apply to the Homes listed above:

1. Minimum Hiring Rates: See Attachment 1.

2. **Pharmacist Industry Credit:** Pharmacists will be credited with one (1) year for each year of hospital or nursing home experience as a Pharmacist, and one (1) year for every two (2) years as a Pharmacist in the retail industry, provided that there has not been a break of three (3) years or more as a Pharmacist.

2. **LPN experience differentials:** Effective May 1, 2002 the following yearly experience rates shall become effective for in-house experience as an LPN on the Employee's appropriate anniversary date:

\$500
\$800
\$1200
\$2000
\$2350
\$3000

The contractual increases do not apply to the experience differentials.

Those Employers who currently provide a better total compensation bene-

fit (base rate plus experience) shall continue to provide the same and shall not be subject to this provision of this side letter.

3. **EOWO for Pharmacists:** The Employer shall have the right to require Pharmacists to work every other weekend.

4. **LPN in charge pay:** When an LPN is designated as "in charge of the Facility" she/he shall receive three (3) hours pay for the shift, in addition to the Employee's regular pay for the shift.

5. Patient Abuse Investigation Language: The Employer shall conduct resident abuse investigations in an expeditious manner. While it is the Union's position that no Employee should be suspended without pay pending the investigation but instead should be maintained in their current position or reassigned to non-resident care duties with pay, in the event the Employer does suspend an Employee pending investigation the parties agree that it shall not do so for more than four (4) days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. In the event the Employer's investigation cannot be completed within four (4) days due to the unavailability of a witness, then the Employer can continue the suspension for up to three (3) additional days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. If the investigation is still not complete, the Employer may request permission to extend the suspension but cannot do so unless permission is granted by the Union. The Employee may utilize any accrued paid time, i.e. vacation days and holidays. In the event the Employer determines that the Employee did not engage in any wrongful act then the Employee shall be fully compensated for all lost wages and any accrued paid time used. This provision shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights under the grievance and arbitration provisions.

6. Safety and Health Committee:

A. The Employer, the Union, and the individual Employee shall cooperate in encouraging the maintenance of a safe and healthy work place. The Employer shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, including recently adopted OSHA pathogen standards. The Union shall agree to cooperate in encouraging such rules as are necessary to comply with such laws.

B. The Employer shall provide a minimum of four (4) hours health and safety training for all Employees on work time.

Employees shall receive annually an updated training session. The Union health and safety department will work with the Employer on course content.

C. The Employer and the Union shall cooperate to investigate, identify and remove conditions which are hazardous to an Employee's safety and health.

D. A Safety and Health Committee composed of three (3) to five (5) Union and three (3) to five (5) Employer representatives shall be formed to implement this Article. It is agreed that the Union's safety and health committee and the Union representatives to the joint committee, act hereunder exclusively in an advisory capacity and that the Union, Union safety and health committees, and their officers, Employees and agents shall not be liable for any work connected injuries, disabilities or disease which may be incurred by Employees.

E. Members of the Union-Management Occupational Safety and Health Committee and members of the Union Occupational Safety and Health Committee will be paid their regular rate of pay for a minimum of four (4) hours per month for attending OSHA committee meetings, conducting inspections, or performing any other function designated by the Committees. Furthermore, an Employee who accompanies a Federal, State or local occupational safety and health inspector on an inspection tour will be paid at his/her regular rate of pay for this time,

F. In the event that any Employee shall be exposed to any communicable disease, the Employer agrees to promptly review proper procedures to be followed by Employees exposed to such communicable diseases.

G. Where an Employee comes in contact with blood and other body fluids as a result of his/her job duties, the Employer will provide Hepatitis B vaccine to the Employee at no cost to the Employee.

If you are in agreement with the forgoing, please sign below.

Very truly yours,

George Gresham, President

Accepted and agreed to: League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

Marc Z. Kramer, President

АТТА	CHMENT "1"	TO SIDE LETT	<b>TER CONCER</b>	ATTACHMENT "1" TO SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES	I LEAGUE HO	MES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Cashier/Dietary	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$755.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	26:777\$	\$802.03
Cook's Helper	\$736.96	\$759.75	\$759.45	\$774.95	\$774.25	\$798.20	\$797.49	\$822.15
Dietary Clerk	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Dietary Worker	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
First Cook	\$910.62	\$938.78	\$938.41	\$957.56	\$956.70	\$986.29	\$985.40	\$1,015.88
Housekeeping Worker	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Laundry Worker I	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Laundry Worker II	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$75S.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	10.777\$	\$802.03
Lead Dietary Worker	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Lead Housekeeper	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Senior Nursing Attendant	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Nursing Attendant	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Pot Washer	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Presser	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$755.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	\$777.97	\$802.03
Second Cook	\$841.15	\$867.17	\$866.82	\$884.51	\$883.72	\$911.05	\$910.23	\$938.38
Sewing Machine Operator	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$755.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	10.777\$	\$802.03
Soiled Laundry Handler	\$708.11	\$730.01	\$729.72	\$744.61	\$743.94	\$766.95	\$766.26	\$789.96
Third Cook/Soecial Order Cook	\$794.88	\$819.46	\$819.13	\$835.85	\$835.10	\$860.93	\$860.16	\$886.76
Ward Clerk	\$711.69	\$733.70	\$733.40	\$748.37	\$747.70	\$770.82	\$770.12	\$793.94
Washer	\$744.73	\$767.76	\$767.46	\$783.12	\$782.41	\$806.61	\$805.89	\$830.81
Waxer Stripper	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$755.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	\$777.97	\$802.03
Ambulance Attendant	\$726.05	\$748.51	\$748.21	\$763.48	\$762.79	\$786.38	\$785.67	\$809.97
Ambulance Driver/Attendant	\$864.35	\$891.08	\$890.72	\$908.90	\$908.08	\$936.17	\$935.33	\$964.26
Emergency Medic:al Technician	\$737.0	\$759.79	\$759.99	\$774.99	\$798.24	\$797.52	\$774.99	\$822.19
carpenter A	\$914.46	\$942.74	\$942.36	\$961.59	\$960.73	\$990.44	\$989.55	\$1,020.15

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Carpenter B	\$841.15	\$867.17	\$866.82	\$884.51	\$883.72	\$911.05	\$910.23	\$938.38
Carpenter's Helper	\$752.40	\$775.67	\$775.36	\$791.18	\$790.47	\$814.92	\$814.19	\$839.37
Central Sterile Technician	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Electrician A	\$941.53	\$970.65	\$970.26	<b>90.06</b> \$	\$989.17	\$1,019.76	\$1,018.84	\$1,050.35
Electrician B	\$868.19	\$895.04	\$894.68	\$912.94	\$912.12	\$940.33	\$939.48	\$968.54
Electrician's Helper	\$752.40	\$775.67	\$775.36	\$791.18	\$790.47	\$814.92	\$814.19	\$839.37
Engineer - two licenses required	\$1,358.64	\$1,400.66	\$1,400.10	\$1,428.67	\$1,427.38	\$1,471.53	\$1,470.21	\$1,515.68
Freman	\$802.60	\$827.42	\$827.09	\$843.97	\$843.21	\$869.29	\$868.51	\$895.37
Groundskeeper	\$726.05	\$748.51	\$748.21	\$763.48	\$762.79	\$786.38	\$785.67	\$809.97
Incinerator Attendant	\$771.40	\$795.26	\$794.95	\$811.17	\$810.44	\$835.51	\$834.76	\$860.58
Lead Carpenter	\$972.36	\$1,002.43	\$1,002.03	\$1,022.48	\$1,021.56	\$1,053.15	\$1,052.20	\$1,084.74
Lead Electrician	\$1,026.41	\$1,058.15	\$1,057.72	\$1,079.31	\$1,078.34	\$1,111.69	\$1,110.69	\$1,145.04
Lead Painter	\$906.75	\$934.79	\$934.42	\$953.49	\$952.63	\$982.09	\$981.20	\$1,011.55
Lead Plumber	\$991.62	\$1,022.29	\$1,021.89	\$1,042.74	\$1,041.80	\$1,074.02	\$1,073.05	\$1,106.24
Maintenance Mechanic	\$868.19	\$895.04	\$894.68	\$912.94	\$912.12	\$940.33	\$939.48	\$968.54
Maintenance Worker	\$767.85	\$791.60	\$791.28	\$807.43	\$806.70	\$831.65	\$830.90	\$856.60
Mason/Plasterer	\$895.16	\$922.85	\$922.48	\$941.31	\$940.46	\$969.55	\$968.68	\$998.64
Morgue Attendant	\$760.09	\$783.60	\$783.28	\$799.27	\$798.55	\$823.25	\$822.51	\$847.95
Motor Vehicle Operator	\$737.00	\$759.79	\$759.49	\$774.99	\$774.29	\$798.24	\$797.52	\$822.19
Painter A	\$833.43	\$859.21	\$858.86	\$876.39	\$875.60	\$902.68	\$901.87	\$929.76
Painter B	\$802.60	\$827.42	\$827.09	\$843.97	\$843.21	\$869.29	\$868.51	\$895.37
Painter's Helper	\$752.40	\$775.67	\$775.36	\$791.18	\$790.47	\$814.92	\$814.19	\$839.37
Plumber A	\$929.93	\$958.69	\$958.30	\$977.86	\$976.98	\$1,007.20	\$1,006.30	\$1,037.42
Plumber B	\$845.06	\$871.20	\$870.85	\$888.62	\$887.82	\$915.28	\$914.46	\$942.74
Plumber's Helper	\$752.40	\$775.67	\$775.36	\$791.18	\$790.47	\$814.92	\$814.19	\$839.37
Stationary Engineer - one license req	\$1,165.29	\$1,201.33	\$1,200.85	\$1,225.36	\$1,224.26	\$1,262.12	\$1,260.98	\$1,299.98
Trades Helper	\$722.46	\$744.80	\$744.51	\$759.70	\$759.02	\$782.49	\$781.78	\$805.96

ATTACHMENT "1" TO SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Accounting Clerk	\$744.74	\$767.77	\$767.47	\$783.13	\$782.42	\$806.62	\$805.90	\$830.82
Accounts Payable/Receivable	\$748.56	\$771.71	\$771.40	\$787.14	\$786.43	\$810.75	\$810.02	\$835.07
Admin/Exec/Secretary III	\$864.36	\$891.09	\$890.73	\$908.91	\$908.09	\$936.18	\$935.34	\$964.27
Admitting Clerk	\$740.77	\$763.68	\$763.37	\$778.95	\$778.25	\$802.32	\$801.60	\$826.39
Cashier (Business Office)	\$748.56	\$771.71	\$771.40	\$787.14	\$786.43	\$810.75	\$810.02	\$835.07
Clerk/Typist	\$718.93	\$741.17	\$740.87	\$755.99	\$755.31	\$778.67	\$777.97	\$802.03
Clerk	\$706.43	\$728.28	\$727.99	\$742.85	\$742.19	\$765.14	\$764.45	\$788.09
Key Punch Operator	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Mailroom Clerk	\$708.11	\$730.01	\$729.72	\$744.61	\$743.94	\$766.95	\$766.26	\$789.96
Medical Records/Coding Clerk	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Payroll Clerk	\$756.26	\$779.65	\$779.34	\$795.24	\$794.53	\$819.10	\$818.36	\$843.67
Receptionist	\$715.32	\$737.44	\$737.15	\$752.19	\$751.52	\$774.76	\$774.06	\$798.00
Registrar	\$729.68	\$752.25	\$751.95	\$767.30	\$766.61	\$790.32	\$789.61	\$814.03
Secretary I	\$767.85	\$791.60	\$791.28	\$807.43	\$806.70	\$831.65	\$830.90	\$856.60
Senior Secretary/Secretary II	\$821.84	\$847.26	\$846.93	\$864.21	\$863.44	\$890.14	\$889.33	\$916.84
Telephone Operator	\$748.56	\$771.71	\$771.40	\$787.14	\$786.43	\$810.75	\$810.02	\$835.07
Typist/Transcriptionist (Medical)	\$767.85	\$791.60	\$791.28	\$807.43	\$806.70	\$831.65	\$830.90	\$856.60
Typist/Transcriptionist	\$756.26	\$779.65	\$779.34	\$795.24	\$794.53	\$819.10	\$818.36	\$843.67
Registered Dictitian (RD)								
0-2 Years	\$1,112.31	\$1,146.71	\$1,146.25	\$1,169.64	\$1,168.59	\$1,204.73	\$1,203.64	\$1,240.87
2-4 Years	\$1,138.77	\$1,173.99	\$1,173.52	\$1,197.47	\$1,196.39	\$1,233.39	\$1,232.28	\$1,270.39
4-10 Years	\$1,165.27	\$1,201.31	\$1,200.83	\$1,225.34	\$1,224.24	\$1,262.10	\$1,260.96	\$1,299.96
10+ Years	\$1,191.75	\$1,228.61	\$1,228.12	\$1,253.18	\$1,252.06	\$1,290.78	\$1, 289.62	\$1,329.50
Cert. Respiratory Therapy Technician	\$891.30	\$918.87	\$918.51	\$937.25	\$936.41	\$965.37	\$964.50	\$994.33

АТТА	ATTACHMENT "1" TO SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES	TO SIDE LETT	ER CONCER	NING CERTAIN	LEAGUE HO	MES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Dental Technician Assistant Certified	\$767.85	\$791.60	\$791.28	\$807.43	\$806.70	\$831.65	\$830.90	\$856.60
Dental Assistant	\$748.56	\$771.71	\$771.40	\$787.14	\$786.43	\$810.75	\$810.02	\$835.07
Dental Hygienist	\$852.69	\$879.06	\$878.71	\$896.64	\$895.83	\$923.54	\$922.71	\$951.25
EEG Technician	\$841.15	\$867.17	\$866.82	\$884.51	\$883.72	\$911.05	\$910.23	\$938.38
EKG Technician	\$779.45	\$803.56	\$803.24	\$819.63	\$818.89	\$844.22	\$843.46	\$869.55
Graduate Dietitian	\$956.94	\$986.54	\$986.14	\$1,006.27	\$1,005.37	\$1,036.46	\$1,035.52	\$1,067.55
Graduate Pharmacist	\$1,154.06	\$1,189.75	\$1,189.28	\$1,213.55	\$1,212.46	\$1,249.96	\$1,248.84	\$1,287.46
Hemodialysis Technician	\$852.69	\$879.06	\$878.71	\$896.64	\$895.83	\$923.54	\$922.71	\$951.25
Histology Technician I	\$871.99	\$898.96	\$898.60	\$916.94	\$916.12	\$944.45	\$943.60	\$972.78
Histology Technician II	\$910.62	\$938.78	\$938.41	\$957.56	\$956.70	\$986.29	\$985.40	\$1,015.88
Infant Care Technician	\$756.26	\$779.65	\$779.34	\$795.24	\$794.53	\$819.10	\$818.36	\$843.67
<b>Clinical Laboratory Technician I</b>								
0-2 Years	\$935.72	\$964.66	\$964.27	\$983.95	\$983.07	\$1,013.47	\$1,012.55	\$1,043.87
2-5 Years	\$949.89	\$979.27	\$978.88	\$998.86	\$997.97	\$1,028.83	\$1,027.90	\$1,059.69
5-10 Years	\$967.54	\$997.46	\$997.06	\$1,017.41	\$1,016.49	\$1,047.93	\$1,046.99	\$1,079.37
10-15 Years	\$994.02	\$1,024.76	\$1,024.35	\$1,045.26	\$1,044.32	\$1,076.62	\$1,075.65	\$1,108.92
15+ Years	\$1,020.48	\$1,052.04	\$1,051.62	\$1,073.08	\$1,072.11	\$1,105.27	\$,1 104.28	\$1,138.43
Clinical Laboratory Technician II								
0-2 Years	\$976.35	\$1,006.55	\$1,006.15	\$1,026.68	\$1,025.76	\$1,057.48	\$1,056.52	\$1,089.20
2-5 Years	\$990.47	\$1,021.10	\$1,020.69	\$1,041.52	\$1,040.59	\$1,072.77	\$1,071.80	\$1,104.95
5-10 Years	\$1,008.14	\$1,039.32	\$1,038.91	\$1,060.11	\$1,059.15	\$1,091.91	\$1,090.93	\$1,124.67
10-15 Years	\$1,034.61	\$1,066.61	\$1,066.18	\$1,087.94	\$1,086.96	\$,1 120.58	\$1,119.57	\$1,154.20
15+Years	\$1,061.08	\$1,093.90	\$1,093.46	\$1,115.78	\$1,114.77	\$1,149.25	\$1,148.22	\$1,183.73
Clinical Laboratory Technician -Merged								
0-2 Years	\$908.74	\$936.85	\$936.48	\$955.59	\$954.73	\$984.26	\$983.38	\$1,013.79

ATTA	ATTACHMENT "1" TO SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES	TO SIDE LETT	TER CONCER	NING CERTAIN	I LEAGUE HO	MES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
2-5 Years	\$922.47 \$939.60 \$965.34 \$991.05	\$951.00 \$968.66 \$995.20 \$1,021.70	\$950.62 \$968.27 \$994.89 \$1,021.29	\$970.02 \$988.03 \$1,015.10 \$1,042.13	\$969.15 \$987.14 \$,1 014.18 \$1,041.19	\$999.12 \$1,017.67 \$,1 045.55 \$1,073.39	\$998.22 \$1,016.75 \$1,044.61 \$1,072.42	\$1,029.09 \$1,048.20 \$1,076.92 \$1,105.59
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 0-2 Years	\$1,024.04 \$1,038.13 \$1,055.80 \$1,082.29 \$1,108.75	\$1,055.71 \$1,070.24 \$1,088.45 \$1,115.76 \$1,1143.04	\$1,055.28 \$1,069.81 \$1,088.02 \$1,115.32 \$1,142.58	\$1,076.82 \$1,091.64 \$1,110.22 \$1,138.08 \$1,165.90	\$1,075.85 \$1,090.66 \$1,109.22 \$1,137.05 \$1,164.85	\$1,109.12 \$1,124.39 \$1,143.53 \$1,172.22 \$1,200.88	\$1,108.12 \$1,123.38 \$1,142.50 \$1,199.80	\$1,142.39 \$1,158.12 \$1,177.84 \$1,207.39 \$1,236.91
Clinical Laboratory Technologist 11 0-2 Years	\$1,099.95 \$1,114.07 \$1,131.74 \$1,158.21 \$1,184.69	\$1,133.97 \$1,148.53 \$1,166.74 \$1,194.03 \$1,221.33	\$1,133.52 \$1,148.07 \$1,166.27 \$1,193.55 \$1,220.84	\$1,156.65 \$1,171.50 \$1,190.07 \$1,217.91 \$1,245.76	\$1,155.61 \$1,170.45 \$1,189.00 \$1,216.82 \$1,246.64	\$1,191.35 \$1,206.65 \$1,225.77 \$1,225.77 \$1,283.13	\$1,190.28 \$1,205.56 \$1,224.66 \$1,221.32 \$1,281.97	\$1,227,09 \$1,242.85 \$,1 262.54 \$1,321.62 \$1,321.62
Clinical Laboratory Technologist -Merged 0-2 Years	\$994.47 \$1,008.21 \$1,025.35 \$1,076.79 \$1,076.79 \$1,230.84 \$1,230.84 \$1,230.84	\$1,025.23 \$1,039.39 \$1,057.06 \$1,110.09 \$787.62 \$1,268.91 \$1,268.91 \$1,010.38	\$1,024.82 \$1,024.82 \$1,038.98 \$1,056.64 \$1,109.64 \$1,109.64 \$1,268.40 \$1,268.40 \$1,009.98	\$1,045.73 \$1,060.18 \$1,078.20 \$1,105.24 \$1,132.29 \$803.37 \$1,294.29 \$1,030.59	\$1,044.79 \$1,059.23 \$1,077.23 \$1,104.25 \$1,131.27 \$802.65 \$1,293.13 \$1,029.66	\$1,077.10 \$1,091.99 \$1,110.55 \$1,188.40 \$1,166.26 \$1,166.26 \$1,166.26 \$1333.12 \$1,333.12 \$1,061.51	\$1,076.13 \$1,091.01 \$1,109.55 \$1,165.21 \$18.6.21 \$1,65.21 \$1,65.21 \$1,331.92 \$1,060.56	\$1,109.41 \$1,124.75 \$1,143.87 \$1,172.55 \$1,201.25 \$1,201.25 \$1,203.36 \$1,093.36

ATTA	CHMENT "1"	TO SIDE LETI	TER CONCER	ATTACHMENT "1" TO SIDE LETTER CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HOMES	I LEAGUE HOI	MES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	<b>Octobe</b>	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Surgical Technologist	\$767.85 \$817.98	\$791.60 \$843.28	\$791.28 \$842.95	\$807.43 \$860.15	\$806.70 \$859.37	\$831.65 \$885.95	\$830.90 \$885.15	\$856.60 \$912.53
Radiation Oncology Therapist 0-2 Years	\$980.04 \$1,061.08 \$929.96 \$1,105.32	\$1,010.35 \$1,093.90 \$958.72 \$1,139.51	\$1,009.95 \$1,093.46 \$958.33 \$1,139.05	\$1,030.56 \$1,115.78 \$977.89 \$1,162.30	\$1,029.64 \$1,114.77 \$977.01 \$1,161.25	\$1,061.48 \$1,149.25 \$1,007.23 \$1,197.17	\$1,060.52 \$1,148.22 \$1,006.33 \$1,196.10	\$1,093.32 \$1,183.73 \$1,037.45 \$1,233.09
Registered Pharmacist 0-2 Years	\$1,818.23 \$1,886.56 \$1,941.25 \$2,050.60	\$1,874.46 \$1,944.91 \$2,001.29 \$2,114.02	\$1,873.71 \$1,944.13 \$2,000.49 \$2,113.17	\$1,911.95 \$1,983.81 \$2,041.32 \$2,156.30	\$1,910.23 \$1,982.02 \$2,039.48 \$2,154.36	\$1,969.31 \$2,043.32 \$2,102.56 \$2,220.99	\$1,967.54 \$2,041.48 \$2,100.67 \$2,218.99	\$2,028.39 \$2,104.62 \$2,165.64 \$2,287.62
Reg. Nuclear Medical Technologist 0-2 Years	\$980.04 \$1,061.08 \$1,111.26	\$1,010.35 \$1,093.90 \$1,145.63	\$1,009.95 \$1,093.46 \$1,145.17	\$1,030.56 \$1,115.78 \$1,168.54	\$1,029.64 \$1,114.77 \$1,167.49	\$1,061.48 \$1,149.25 \$1,203.60	\$1,060.52 \$1,148.22 \$1,202.52	\$1,093.32 \$1,183.73 \$1,239.71
Registered Respiratory Therapist Registered Ultra Sound Technologist Respiratory Therapy Technician	\$1,151.41 \$1,151.41 \$845.06 \$726.05	\$1,187.02 \$1,187.02 \$871.20 \$748.51	\$1,186.54 \$1,186.54 \$870.85 \$748.21	\$1,210.76 \$1,210.76 \$888.62 \$763.48	\$1,209.67 \$1,209.67 \$887.82 \$762.79	\$1,247.08 \$1,247.08 \$915.28 \$786.38	\$1,245.96 \$1,245.96 \$914.46 \$785.67	\$1,284.49 \$1,284.49 \$942.74 \$809.97
Social Work Assistant 0-1 Year 1-2 Years	\$929.05 \$961.74 \$994.63	\$957.78 \$991.48 \$1,025.39	\$957.40 \$991.08 \$1,024.98	\$976.94 \$1,011.31 \$1,045.90	\$976.06 \$1,010.40 \$1,044.96	\$1,006.25 \$1,041.65 \$1,077.28	\$1,005.35 \$1,040.71 \$1,076.31	\$1,036.44 \$1,072.90 \$1,109.60

ALLA	AI IACHMENT "1" TU SIDE LETTEK CONCERNING CERTAIN LEAGUE HUMES					MES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CI ASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
3-4 Years	\$1,027.32	\$1,059.09	\$1,058.66	\$1,080.27	\$1,079.30	\$,1 112.68	\$1,111.68	\$1,146.06
MSW Social Worker 0-1 Year	\$1.133.74	\$1.168.80	\$1.168.34	\$1.192.18	\$1.191.13	\$1.227.95	\$1.226.85	\$1.264.79
1-2 Years	\$1,165.47	\$1,201.52	\$1,201.04	\$1,225.55	\$1,224.45	\$1,262.32	\$1,261.18	\$1,300.19
2-3 teats	\$1.231.24	\$1,269.32	\$1,268.82	\$1,294.71	\$1,233.54	\$1,233,55 \$1,333,55	\$1,237.35 \$1.332.35	\$1,373.56
4-5 Years	\$1,263.79	\$1,302.88	\$1,302.36	\$1,328.94	\$1,327.75	\$1,368.81	\$1,367.57	\$1,409.87
5-6 Years	\$1,296.31	\$1,336.40	\$1,335.87	\$1,363.13	\$1,361.90	\$1,404.02	\$1,402.76	\$1,446.14
6-7 Years	\$1,328.80	\$1,369.90	\$1,369.35 \$1,100.25	\$1,397.30	\$1,396.04	\$1,439.22 24 454 45	\$1,437.93	\$1,482.40
/-8 Years	\$1,361.34 #1_202.00	\$1,403.44 \$1 426.01	\$1,402.88 \$1 425.24	\$1,431.51 ©1 465 65	\$1,430.23 \$1 464.23	\$1,4/4.46 ¢ 1 E00.62	\$1,4/3.13 ** E00.26	\$1,518.69 \$1 554 01
0-3+16415	00'020'1¢	16:004,16	40.004,1¢	CO.CO+, 1¢	00.404,16	70'ENC   '¢	07'00C' 1¢	16:+00,1¢
Senior Social Worker	¢1 /11 00	¢1 ЛЕБ ВБ	¢1 /66 06	¢1 A0A 76	CH 702 42	¢1 500 20	¢1 E77 02	¢1 676 10
0-1 rear 1-2 Years	\$1,411.30 \$1,444.50	\$1.489.18	\$1,433.00 \$1,488.58	\$.1 518.96	\$1,517,59	\$1,564.53	\$1,563,13 \$1,563,13	\$.1 611.47
2-3 Years.	\$1,476.99	\$1,522.67	\$1,522.06	\$1,553.12	\$1,551.72	\$1,599.71	\$1,598.27	\$1,647.70
3-4 Years	\$1,509.51	\$1,556.20	\$1,555.57	\$1,587.32	\$1,585.89	\$1,634.94	\$1,633.47	\$1,683.99
Special Procedure Technician	\$1,169.17	\$1,205.33	\$1,204.85	\$1,229.44	\$1,228.33	\$1,266.32	\$1,265.18	\$,1 304.31
Ultra Sound Technologist	\$1,111.90	\$1,146.29	\$1,145.84	\$1,169.22	\$1,168.17	\$1,204.30	\$1,203.22	\$1,240.43
Radiologic Technologist								
0-2 Years	\$,1 097 .37	\$1,131.31 \$1 1 15 15	\$1,130.86	\$1,153.94 \$1,100.00	\$1,152.90	\$1,188.56 \$1,001,00	\$1,187.49 \$1,000.00	\$1,224.22 \$1,020.01
Z-5 Years 5-10 Vears	\$1,140.24 \$1.101.66	10.07 1,18 \$1 228 52	\$1 728.03	\$1,199.02 \$1 252.00	\$1,197.94 \$1 251 06	\$1,234.99 \$ 1 200.68	\$1,233.88 \$1 280 52	\$,1 2/2.04 \$ 1 320 AD
0-10 rears	\$1.225.95	\$1.263.87	\$1,263.37	\$1.289.15	\$1.287.99	\$1.327.82	\$1.326.62	\$1.367.65
							•	

CLUC CLU ł ē ţ ALLO ATTA

STIPULATION 2A NURSING HOME/NEW HIRE RATES FOR NURSING HOME EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1, 2013
---

**ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES** 

						2		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Cashier/Dietary		\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Cook's Helper		\$827.61	\$827.28	\$844.16	\$843.40	\$869.48	\$868.69	\$895.56
Dietary Clerk		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Dietary Worker		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
First Cook	\$991.98	\$1,022.66	\$1,022.25	\$1,043.11	\$1,042.17	\$1,074.40	\$1,073.43	\$1,106.63
Housekeeping Worker		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Laundry Worker I		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Laundry Worker II		\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Lead Dietary Worker		\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Lead Housekeeper		\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Senior Nursing Attendant		\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Nursing Attendant		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Pot Washer		\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Presser		\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Second Cook	\$916.25	\$944.59	\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
Sewing Machine Operator	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Soiled Laundry Handler	\$771.37	\$795.23	\$794.91	\$811.13	\$810.40	\$835.46	\$834.70	\$860.52
Third Cook/Special Order Cook	\$865.86	\$892.64	\$892.28	\$910.49	\$909.67	\$937.80	\$936.95	\$965.93
Ward Clerk	\$775.26	\$799.24	\$798.92	\$815.22	\$814.49	\$839.68	\$838.92	\$864.87
Washer	\$811.25	\$836.34	\$836.01	\$853.07	\$852.30	\$878.66	\$877.87	\$905.02
Waxer Stripper	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69

1	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	UNIFORM JOI	<b>B TITLES ANI</b>	D UNIFORM M	INIMUM RAT	ES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Ambulance Attendant	\$790.93	\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Ambulance Driver/Attendant	\$941.55	\$970.67	\$970.28	<b>80.066</b> \$	\$989.19	\$1,019.78	\$1,018.86	\$1,050.37
Emergency Medical Technician(EMT)	\$802.81	\$827.64	\$827.31	\$844.19	\$843.43	\$869.52	\$868.74	\$895.61
Carpenter A	\$996.14	\$1,026.95	\$1,026.54	\$1,047.49	\$1,046.54	\$1,078.91	\$1,077.94	\$1,111.28
Carpenter B	\$916.25	\$944.59	\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
Carpenter's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Central Sterile Technician	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Electrician A	\$1,025.64	\$1,057.36	\$1,056.94	\$1,078.51	\$1,077.54	\$,1 110.87	\$1,109.87	\$1,144.20
Electrician B	\$945.74	\$974.99	\$974.60	\$994.49	\$993.59	\$1,024.32	\$1,023.40	\$1,055.05
Electrician's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Engineer - two licenses required	\$1,480.00	\$1,525.77	\$1,525.16	\$1,556.29	\$1,554.89	\$1,602.98	\$1,601.54	\$1,651.07
Freman	\$874.26	\$901.30	\$900.94	\$919.33	\$918.50	\$946.91	\$946.06	\$975.32
Groundskeeper	\$790.93	\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Incinerator Attendant	\$840.31	\$866.30	\$865.96	\$883.63	\$882.84	\$910.14	\$909.32	\$937.44
Lead Carpenter	\$1,059.22	\$1,091.98	\$1,091.54	\$1,113.82	\$1,112.81	\$1,147.23	\$1,146.20	\$1,181.65
Lead Electrician	\$1,118.10	\$1,152.68	\$1,152.22	\$1,175.73	\$1,174.67	\$1,211.00	\$1,209.91	\$1,247.33
Lead Painter	\$987.76	\$1,018.31	\$1,017.91	\$1,038.68	\$1,037.74	\$1,069.84	\$1,068.88	\$1,101.94
Lead Plumber	\$1,080.16	\$1,113.57	\$1,113.12	\$1,135.84	\$1,134.82	\$1,169.92	\$1,168.87	\$1,205.02
Maintenance Mechanic	\$945.74	\$974,99	\$974.60	\$994.49	\$993.59	\$1,024.32	\$1,023.40	\$1,055.05
Maintenance Worker	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Mason/Plasterer	\$975.13	\$1,005.29	\$1,004.89	\$1,025.40	\$1,024.48	\$1,056.16	\$1,055.20	\$1,087.84
Morgue Attendant	\$828.00	\$853.61	\$853.27	\$870.68	\$869.90	\$896.80	\$895.99	\$923.70
Motor Vehicle Operator	\$802.81	\$827.64	\$827.31	\$844.19	\$843.43	\$869.52	\$868.74	\$895.61

	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	UNIFORM JOI	<b>B TITLES ANI</b>	<b>UNIFORM M</b>	INIMUM RAT	ES		
	October 1	er 1, 2020	October 1	r 1, 2021	October 1	ir 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Painter A	\$907.86	\$935.94	\$935.57	\$954.66	\$953.80	\$983.30	\$982.42	\$1,012.80
Painter B	\$874.26	\$901.30	\$900.94	\$919.33	\$918.50	\$946.91	\$946.06	\$975.32
Painter's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Plumber A	\$1,013.01	\$1,044.34	\$1,043.93	\$1,065.23	\$1,064.27	\$1,097.19	\$1,096.21	\$1,130.11
Plumber B	\$920.55	\$949.02	\$948.64	\$968.00	\$967.13	\$997.04	\$996.14	\$1,026.95
Plumber's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Stationary Engineer - one license req	\$1,269.39	\$1,308.65	\$1,308.12	\$1,334.82	\$1,333.61	\$1,374.86	\$1,373.63	\$1,416.11
Trades Helper	\$787.01	\$811.35	\$811.03	\$827.58	\$826.84	\$852.41	\$851.64	\$877.98
Accounting Clerk	\$811.26	\$836.35	\$836.02	\$853.08	\$852.31	\$878.67	\$877.88	\$905.03
Accounts Payable/Receivable	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Admin/Exec/Secretary III	\$941.56	\$970.68	\$970.29	60.066\$	\$989.20	\$1,019.79	\$1,018.87	\$1,050.38
Admitting Clerk	\$806.93	\$831.89	\$831.56	\$848.53	\$847.77	\$873.99	\$873.20	\$900.21
Cashier (Business Office)	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Clerk/Typist	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Clerk	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Key Punch Operator	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Mailroom Clerk	\$771.37	\$795.23	\$794.91	\$811.13	\$810.40	\$835.46	\$834.70	\$860.52
Medical Records/Coding Clerk	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Payroll Clerk	\$823.82	\$849.30	\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05
Receptionist	\$779.23	\$803.33	\$803.01	\$819.40	\$818.66	\$843.98	\$843.22	\$869.30
Registrar	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Secretary I	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Senior Secretary/Secretary II	\$895.27	\$922.96	\$922.59	\$941.42	\$940.57	\$969.66	\$968.79	\$998.75
Telephone Operator	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Typist/Transcriptionist (Medical)	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Typist/Transcriptionist	\$823.82	\$849.30	\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05

4	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	<b>UNIFORM JOE</b>	<b>3 TITLES ANI</b>	D UNIFORM MI	<b>NIMUM RATI</b>	S		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Registered Dietitian (RD)								
0-2 Years	\$1,211.66	\$1,249.13 \$1,249.13	\$1,248.63 \$1,270.00	\$1,274.11 \$1,224.11	\$1,272.96	\$1,312.33 24 0.40 50	\$1,311.15 24 0.0002	\$1,351.70
2-4 Years	\$1,240.50 \$1,269.37	\$1,278.87 \$1,308.63	\$1,278.36 \$1,308.10	\$1,304.45 \$1,334.80	\$1,303.27 \$1,333.59	\$1,343.58 \$1,374.84	\$1,342.37 \$1,373.61	\$1,383.89 \$1,416.09
10+ Years	\$1,298.22	\$1,338.37	\$1,337.84	\$1,365.14	\$1,363.91	\$1,406.09	\$1,404.82	\$1,448.27
Cert. Respiratory Therapy Technician	\$970.93		\$1,000.56	\$1,020.98	\$1,020.06	\$1,051.61	\$1,050.67	\$1,083.16
Dental Technician Assistant Certified	\$836.44		\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Dental Assistant	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Dental Hygienist	\$928.86		\$957.21	\$976.74	\$975.86	\$1,006.04	\$1,005.13	\$1,036.22
EEG Technician	\$916.25		\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
EKG Technician	\$849.09		\$875.00	\$892.86	\$892.06	\$919.65	\$918.82	\$947.24
Graduate Dietitian	\$1,042.42		\$1,074.23	\$1,096.15	\$1,095.16	\$1,129.03	\$1,128.01	\$1,162.90
Graduate Pharmacist	\$1,257.16		\$1,295.52	\$1,321.96	\$1,320.77	\$1,361.62	\$1,360.40	\$1,402.47
Hemodialysis Technician	\$928.86		\$957.21	\$976.74	\$975.86	\$1,006.04	\$1,005.13	\$1,036.22
Histology Technician I	\$949.89		\$978.88	\$998.86	26.799\$	\$1,028.83	\$1,027.90	\$1,059.69
Histology Technician II	\$991.98		\$1,022.25	\$1,043.11	\$1,042.17	\$1,074.40	\$1,073.43	\$1,106.63
Infant Care Technician	\$823.82		\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05
<b>Clinical Laboratory Technician I</b>								
0-2 Years	\$1,019.33	\$1,050.86	\$1,050.44	\$1,071.88	\$1,070.92	\$1,104.04	\$1,103.05	\$1,137.16
2-5 Years	\$1,034.74	\$1,066.74	\$1,066.31	\$1,088.07	\$1,087.09	\$1,120.71	\$1,119.70	\$1,154.33
5-10 Years	\$1,053.98	\$1,086.58	\$1,086.14	\$1,108.31	\$1,107.31	\$1,141.56	\$1,140.54	\$1,175.81
10-15 Years	\$1,082.82	\$1,116.31	\$1,115.87	\$1,138.64	\$1,137.62	\$1,172.80	\$1,171.74	\$1,207.98
15+ Years	\$1,111.64	\$1,146.02	\$1,145.56	\$1,168.94	\$1,167.89	\$1,204.01	\$1,202.93	\$1,240.13

	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	UNIFORM JOE	<b>3 TITLES AND</b>	UNIFORM M	INIMUM RAT	ES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
Clinical Laboratory Technician II 0-2 Years	\$1,063.53 \$1,078.95 \$1,098.20 \$1,108.20 \$1,155.88	\$1,096.42 \$1,112.32 \$1,112.32 \$1,161.89 \$1,191.63	\$1,095.98 \$1,111.88 \$1,131.71 \$1,161.43 \$1,191.15	\$1,118.35 \$1,134.57 \$1,154.81 \$1,154.81 \$1,185.13 \$1,215.46	\$1,117.34 \$1,117.34 \$1,153.75 \$1,163.77 \$1,184.06 \$1,214.36	\$1,151.90 \$1,168.61 \$1,189.45 \$1,220.68 \$1,221.68	\$1,150.87 \$1,167.56 \$1,188.38 \$1,219.58 \$1,250.80	\$1,186.46 \$1,203.57 \$1,225.13 \$1,257.30 \$1,289.48
Clinical Laboratory Technician - Merged 0-2 Years	\$989.90 \$1,004.89 \$1,023.54 \$1,051.57 \$1,079.58	\$1,020.52 \$1,035.97 \$1,035.20 \$1,084.09 \$1,112.97	\$1,020.11 \$1,035.56 \$1,054.77 \$1,083.65 \$1,112.53	\$1,040.93 \$1,056.69 \$1,076.30 \$1,105.77 \$1,135.23	\$1,040.00 \$1,055.74 \$1,075.33 \$1,104.77 \$1,104.77 \$1,134.21	\$1,072.16 \$1,088.39 \$1,108.59 \$1,138.94 \$1,169.29	\$1,071.19 \$1,087.41 \$1,107.59 \$1,168.24	\$1,104.32 \$1,121.04 \$1,141.85 \$1,173.11 \$1,204.37
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I 0-2 Years	\$1,115.53 \$1,130.89 \$1,178.96 \$1,178.96 \$1,207.80	\$1,150.03 \$1,165.87 \$1,185.67 \$1,215.42 \$1,245.15	\$1,149.57 \$1,165.41 \$1,185.19 \$1,214.94 \$1,244.65	\$1,173.03 \$1,189.19 \$1,209.38 \$1,239.73 \$1,270.05	\$1,171.97 \$1,188.12 \$1,208.29 \$1,238.61 \$1,268.91	\$1,208.22 \$1,224.87 \$1,245.66 \$1,246.92 \$1,308.15	\$1,207.14 \$1,223.77 \$1,244.54 \$1,275.77 \$1,306.97	\$1,244.47 \$1,261.62 \$1,283.03 \$1,347.39 \$1,347.39
Clinical Laboratory Technologist II 0-2 Years	\$1,198.19 \$1,213.59 \$1,222.81 \$1,261.66 \$1,200.51	\$,1 235.25 \$1,251.12 \$1,270.94 \$1,300.68 \$1,330.42	\$1,234.76 \$1,250.62 \$1,270.43 \$1,300.16 \$1,329.89	\$1,259.96 \$1,276.14 \$1,296.36 \$1,326.69 \$1,357.03	\$1,258.83 \$1,274.99 \$1,295.19 \$1,325.50 \$1,355.81	\$1,297.76 \$1,314.42 \$1,335.25 \$1,366.49 \$1,397.74	\$1,296.59 \$1,313.23 \$1,334.05 \$1,365.26 \$1,396.48	\$1,336.69 \$1,353.85 \$1,375.31 \$1,407.48 \$1,439.67

	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	UNIFORM JOI	<b>3 TITLES ANI</b>	UNIFORM M	inimum rat	ES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Clinical Laboratory Technologist • Merged								
0-2 Years	\$1,083.30	\$1,116.80	\$1,116.36	\$1,139.14	\$1,138.11	\$1,173.31	\$1,172.25	\$1,208.51
2-5 Years	\$1,098.25	\$1,132.22	\$1,131.76	\$1,154.86	\$1,153.82	\$1,189.51	\$1,188.44	\$1,225.20
5-10 Years	\$1,116.94	\$1,151.48	\$1,151.02	\$1,174.51	\$1,173.46	\$1,209.75	\$1,208.66	\$1,246.04
10-15 Years	\$1,144.95	\$1,180.36	\$1,179.89	\$1,203.97	\$1,202.89	\$1,240.09	\$1,238.97	\$1,277.29
15+ Years	\$1,172.98	\$1,209.26	\$1,208.78	\$1,233.45	\$1,232.34	\$1,270.45	\$1,269.30	\$1,308.56
Laboratory Trainee	\$832.24	\$857.98	\$857.64	\$875.14	\$874.35	\$901.39	\$900.58	\$928.43
Lead Radiologic Technologist	\$1,340.79	\$1,382.26	\$1,381.71	\$1,409.91	\$1,408.64	\$1,452.21	\$1,450.91	\$1,495.78
Licensed Practical Nurse	\$1,067.62	\$1,100.64	\$1,100.20	\$1,122.65	\$1,121.64	\$1,156.33	\$1,155.29	\$1,191.02
Surgical Technologist	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Practical Dietitian	\$891.07	\$918.63	\$918.26	\$937.00	\$936.16	\$965.11	\$964.24	\$994.06
Radiation Oncology Therapist								
0-2 Years	\$1,067.59	\$1,100.61	\$1,100.17	\$1,122.62	\$1,121.61	\$1,156.30	\$1,155.26	\$1,190.99
3+Years	\$1,155.88	\$1,191.63	\$1,191.15	\$1,215.46	\$1,214.36	\$1,251.92	\$1,250.80	\$1,289.48
Reg. Elig. Nuclear Medical Technician	\$1,013.03	\$1,044.36	\$1,043.95	\$1,065.25	\$1,064.29	\$1,097.21	\$1,096.23	\$1,130.13
Registry Elig. Respiratory Therapist	\$1,204.07	\$1,241.31	\$1,240.82	\$1,266.14	\$1,265.00	\$1,304.12	\$1,302.94	\$1,343.24
Registered Pharmacist								
0-2 Years	\$1,980.62	\$2,041.88	\$2,041.07	\$2,082.72	\$2,080.84	\$2,145.20	\$2,143.27	\$2,209.56
3-5 Years	\$2,055.10	\$2,118.66	\$2,117.81	\$2,161.03	\$2,159.08	\$2,225.86	\$2,223.86	\$2,292.64
6-9 Years	\$2,114.67	\$2,180.07	\$2,179.20	\$2,223.67	\$2,221.67	\$2,290.38	\$2,288.32	\$2,359.09
10+ Years	\$2,233.77	\$2,302.86	\$2,301.94	\$2,348.92	\$2,346.81	\$2,419.39	\$2,417 .21	\$2,491.97
Reg. Nuclear Medical Technologist								
0-2 Years	\$1,067.59	\$1,100.61	\$1,100.17	\$1,122.62	\$1,121.61	\$1,156.30	\$1,155.26	\$1,190.99

	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	UNIFORM JOI	<b>B TITLES ANI</b>	D UNIFORM M	INIMUM RATI	ES		
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
2-4 Years	\$1,155.88	\$1,191.63	\$1,191.15	\$1,215.46	\$1,214.36	\$1,251.92	\$1,250.80	\$1,289.48
5+ Years	\$1,210.51	\$1,247.95	\$1,247.45	\$1,272.91	\$1,271.77	\$1,311.10	\$1,309.92	\$1,350.43
Registered Respiratory Therapist		\$1,293.04	\$1,292.52	\$1,318.90	\$1,317.72	\$1,358.47	\$1,357.24	\$1,399.22
Registered Ultra Sound Technologist	\$1,254.25	\$1,293.04	\$1,292.52	\$1,318.90	\$1,317.72	\$1,358.47	\$1,357.24	\$1,399.22
Respiratory Therapy Technician		\$949.02	\$948.64	\$968.00	\$967.13	\$997.04	\$996.14	\$1,026.95
Respiratory Therapy Trainee		\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Social Work Assistant								
0-1 Year	\$1,012.02	\$1,043.32	\$1,042.91	\$1,064.19	\$1,063.24	\$1,096.12	\$1,095.13	\$1,129.00
1-2 Years		\$1,080.02	\$1,079.59	\$1,101.62	\$1,100.63	\$1,134.67	\$1,133.65	\$1,168.71
2-3 Years		\$1,116.99	\$1,116.54	\$1,139.33	\$1,138.30	\$1,173.51	\$1,172.46	\$1,208.72
3-4 Years		\$1,153.68	\$1,153.22	\$1,176.75	\$1,175.69	\$1,212.05	\$1,210.96	\$1,248.41
MSW Social Worker								
0-1 Year		\$1,273.19	\$1,272.68	\$1,298.65	\$1,297.48	\$1,337.61	\$1,336.41	\$1,377.74
1-2 Years		\$1,308.82	\$1,308.30	\$1,335.00	\$1,333.80	\$1,375.05	\$1,373.81	\$1,416.30
2-3 Years		\$1,346.22	\$1,345.68	\$1,373.14	\$1,371.90	\$1,414.33	\$1,413.06	\$1,456.76
3-4 Years		\$1,382.72	\$1,382.16	\$1,410.37	\$1,409.10	\$1,452.68	\$1,451.37	\$1,496.26
4-5 Years		\$1,419.25	\$1,418.69	\$1,447.64	\$1,446.34	\$1,491.07	\$1,489.73	\$1,535.80
5-6 Years	\$1,412.11	\$1,455.78	\$1,455.20	\$1,484.90	\$1,483.57	\$1,529.45	\$1,528.07	\$1,575.33
6-7 Years		\$1,492.27	\$1,491.68	\$1,522.12	\$1,520.75	\$1,567.78	\$1,566.37	\$1,614.81
7-8 Years	\$1,482.94	\$1,528.80	\$1,528.19	\$1,559.38	\$1,557.98	\$1,606.16	\$1,604.71	\$1,654.34
8-9+Years		\$1,565.26	\$1,564.64	\$1,596.57	\$1,595.14	\$1,644.47	\$1,642.99	\$1,693.80
Senior Social Worker								
0-1 Year	\$1,538.10	\$1,585.67	\$1,585.03	\$1,617.38	\$1,615.92	\$1,665.90	\$1,664.40	\$1,715.88
1-2 Years		\$1,622.19	\$1,621.54	\$1,654.63	\$1,653.14	\$1,704.27	\$1,702.74	\$1,755.40
2-3 Years		\$1,658.69	\$1,658.02	\$1,691.86	\$1,690.34	\$1,742.62	\$1,741.05	\$1,794.90

	ALPHABETICAL UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	INIFORM JOE	3 TITLES AND	UNIFORM M	INIMUM RATI	S		
	October	October 1, 2020	Octobei	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
CLASSIFICATION	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate	Hiring Rate	Minimum Rate
3-4 Years Special Procedure Technician	\$1,644.34 \$1,273.61 \$1,211.25	\$1,695.20 \$1,313.00 \$1,248.71	\$1,694.52 \$1,312.47 \$1,248.21	\$1,729.10 \$1,339.26 \$1,273.68	\$1,727.54 \$1,338.06 \$1,272.53	\$1,780.97 \$1,379.44 \$1,311.89	\$1,779.37 \$1,378.20 \$1,310.71	\$1,834.40 \$1,420.82 \$1,351.25
Radiologic Technologist 0-2 Vears	\$1,195.38 \$1,242.09 \$1,298.09 \$1,335.48	\$1,232.35 \$1,280.51 \$1,338.24 \$1,376.78	\$1,231.86 \$1,280.00 \$1,337.70 \$1,376.23	\$1,257.00 \$1,306.12 \$1,365.00 \$1,404.32	\$1,255.87 \$1,304.94 \$1,363.77 \$1,403.06	\$1,294.71 \$1,345.30 \$1,405.95 \$1,446.45	\$1,293.54 \$1,344.09 \$1,404.69 \$1,445.14	\$1,333.55 \$1,385.66 \$1,448.13 \$1,489.84

**UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES** 

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	<b>Octobe</b>	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Central Sterile Technician	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Clerk	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Dietary Clerk	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Dietary Worker	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Housekeeping Worker	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Laundry Worker I	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Nursing Attendant	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Pot Washer	\$769.54	\$793.34	\$793.03	\$809.21	\$808.49	\$833.49	\$832.74	\$858.49
Mailroom Clerk	\$771.37	\$795.23	\$794.91	\$811.13	\$810.40	\$835.46	\$834.70	\$860.52
Soiled Laundry Handler	\$771.37	\$795.23	\$794.91	\$811.13	\$810.40	\$835.46	\$834.70	\$860.52
Ward Clerk	\$775.26	\$799.24	\$798.92	\$815.22	\$814.49	\$839.68	\$838.92	\$864.87
Receptionist	\$779.23	\$803.33	\$803.01	\$819.40	\$818.66	\$843.98	\$843.22	\$869.30
Cashier/Dietary	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Clerk/Typist	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Laundry Worker II	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Presser	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Sewing Machine Operator	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Waxer Stripper	\$783.16	\$807.38	\$807.06	\$823.53	\$822.79	\$848.24	\$847.48	\$873.69
Trades Helper	\$787.01	\$811.35	\$811.03	\$827.58	\$826.84	\$852.41	\$851.64	\$877.98
Ambulance Attendant	\$790.93	\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Groundskeeper	\$790.93	\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Respiratory Therapy Trainee	\$790.93	\$815.39	\$815.07	\$831.70	\$830.95	\$856.65	\$855.88	\$882.35
Key Punch Operator	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75

	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Lead Dietary Worker	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Lead Housekeeper	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Medical Records/Coding Clerk	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Registrar	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Senior Nursing Attendant	\$794.87	\$819.45	\$819.12	\$835.84	\$835.09	\$860.92	\$860.15	\$886.75
Cook's Helper	\$802.78	\$827.61	\$827.28	\$844.16	\$843.40	\$869.48	\$868.69	\$895.56
Emergency Medical Technician(EMT)	\$802.81	\$827.64	\$827.31	\$844.19	\$843.43	\$869.52	\$868.74	\$895.61
Motor Vehicle Operator	\$802.81	\$827.64	\$827.31	\$844.19	\$843.43	\$869.52	\$868.74	\$895.61
Admitting Clerk	\$806.93	\$831.89	\$831.56	\$848.53	\$847.77	\$873.99	\$873.20	\$900.21
Washer	\$811.25	\$836.34	\$836.01	\$853.07	\$852.30	\$878.66	\$877.87	\$905.02
	\$811.26	\$836.35	\$836.02	\$853.08	\$852.31	\$878.67	\$877.88	\$905.03
Accounts Payable/Receivable	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Cashier (Business Office)	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Dental Assistant	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Telephone Operator	\$815.45	\$840.67	\$840.33	\$857.48	\$856.70	\$883.20	\$882.41	\$909.70
Carpenter's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Electrician's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Painter's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Plumber's Helper	\$819.61	\$844.96	\$844.62	\$861.86	\$861.09	\$887.72	\$886.92	\$914.35
Infant Care Technician	\$823.82	\$849.30	\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05
Payroll Clerk	\$823.82	\$849.30	\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05
Typist/Transcriptionist	\$823.82	\$849.30	\$848.96	\$866.29	\$865.51	\$892.28	\$891.48	\$919.05
Morgue Attendant	\$828.00	\$853.61	\$853.27	\$870.68	\$869.90	\$896.80	\$895.99	\$923.70
Laboratory Trainee	\$832.24	\$857.98	\$857.64	\$875.14	\$874.35	\$901.39	\$900.58	\$928.43
Dental Technician Assistant Certified	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Maintenance Worker	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Secretary I	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13

	UNIFORI	M JOB TITLES	AND UNIFOI	UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	RATES			
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Surgical Technologist	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Surgi Typist/Transcriptionist (Medical)	\$836.44	\$862.31	\$861.97	\$879.56	\$878.77	\$905.95	\$905.14	\$933.13
Incinerator Attendant	\$840.31	\$866.30	\$865.96	\$883.63	\$882.84	\$910.14	\$909.32	\$937.44
EKG Technician	\$849.09	\$875.35	\$875.00	\$892.86	\$892.06	\$919.65	\$918.82	\$947.24
Third Cook/Special Order Cook	\$865.86	\$892.64	\$892.28	\$910.49	\$909.67	\$937.80	\$936.95	\$965.93
Freman	\$874.26	\$901.30	\$900.94	\$919.33	\$918.50	\$946.91	\$946.06	\$975.32
Painter B	\$874.26	\$901.30	\$900.94	\$919.33	\$918.50	\$946.91	\$946.06	\$975.32
Practical Dietitian	\$891.07	\$918.63	\$918.26	\$937.00	\$936.16	\$965.11	\$964.24	\$994.06
Senior Secretary/Secretary II	\$895.27	\$922.96	\$922.59	\$941.42	\$940.57	\$969.66	\$968.79	\$998.75
Painter A	\$907.86	\$935.94	\$935.57	\$954.66	\$953.80	\$983.30	\$982.42	\$1,012.80
	\$916.25	\$944.59	\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
EEG Technician	\$916.25	\$944.59	\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
	\$916.25	\$944.59	\$944.21	\$963.48	\$962.61	\$992.38	\$991.49	\$1,022.15
Plumber B	\$920.55	\$949.02	\$948.64	\$968.00	\$967.13	\$997.04	\$996.14	\$1,026.95
Respiratory Therapy Technician	\$920.55	\$949.02	\$948.64	\$968.00	\$967.13	\$997.04	\$996.14	\$1,026.95
Dental Hygienist	\$928.86	\$957.59	\$957.21	\$976.74	\$975.86	\$1,006.04	\$1,005.13	\$1,036.22
Hemodialysis Technician	\$928.86	\$957.59	\$957.21	\$976.74	\$975.86	\$1,006.04	\$1,005.13	\$1,036.22
Ambulance Driver/Attendant	\$941.55	\$970.67	\$970.28	\$990.08	\$989.19	\$1,019.78	\$1,018.86	\$1,050.37
Admin/Exec/Secretary III	\$941.56	\$970.68	\$970.29	60.066\$	\$989.20	\$1,019.79	\$1,018.87	\$1,050.38
Electrician B	\$945.74	\$974.99	\$974.60	\$994.49	\$993.59	\$1,024.32	\$1,023.40	\$1,055.05
Maintenance Mechanic	\$945.74	\$974.99	\$974.60	\$994.49	\$993.59	\$1,024.32	\$1,023.40	\$1,055.05
Histology Technician I	\$949.89	\$979.27	\$978.88	\$998.86	76.796\$	\$1,028.83	\$1,027.90	\$1,059.69
Cert. Respiratory Therapy Technician	\$970.93	\$1,000.96	\$1,000.56	\$1,020.98	\$1,020.06	\$1,051.61	\$1,050.67	\$1,083.16
Mason/Plasterer	\$975.13	\$1,005.29	\$1,004.89	\$1,025.40	\$1,024.48	\$1,056.16	\$1,055.20	\$1,087.84
Lead Painter	\$987.76	\$1,018.31	\$1,017.91	\$1,038.68	\$1,037.74	\$1,069.84	\$1,068.88	\$1,101.94
Clin. Lab. Technician (Merged) 0-2 Years	\$989.90	\$1,020.52	\$1,020.11	\$1,040.93	\$1,040.00	\$1,072.16	\$1,071.19	\$1,104.32
Hrst Cook	\$991.98	\$1,022.66	\$1,022.25	\$1,043.11	\$1,042.17	\$1,074.40	\$1,073.43	\$1,106.63

	UNIFORM	A JOB TITLES	S AND UNIFOI	UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	RATES			
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	October	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Histology Technician II	\$991.98	\$1,022.66	\$1,022.25	\$1,043.11	\$1,042.17	\$1,074.40	\$1,073.43	\$1,106.63
	\$996.14	\$1,026.95	\$1,026.54	\$1,047.49	\$1,046.54	\$1,078.91	\$1,077.94	\$1,111.28
Clin. Lab. Technician (Merged) 2-5 Years	\$1,004.89	\$1,035.97	\$1,035.56	\$1,056.69	\$1,055.74	\$1,088.39	\$1,087.41	\$1,121.04
Soc. Work Asst 0-1 Year	\$1,012.02	\$1,043.32	\$1,042.91	\$1,064.19	\$1,063.24	\$1,096.12	\$1,095.13	\$1,129.00
Plumber A	\$1,013.01	\$1,044.34	\$1,043.93	\$1,065.23	\$1,064.27	\$1,097.19	\$1,096.21	\$1,130.11
Reg. Elig. Nuclear Medical Technician	\$1,013.03	\$1,044.36	\$1,043.95	\$1,065.25	\$1,064.29	\$1,097.21	\$1,096.23	\$1,130.13
Clin. Lab. Technician I 0-2 Years	\$1,019.33	\$1,050.86	\$1,050.44	\$1,071.88	\$1,070.92	\$1,104.04	\$1,103.05	\$1,137.16
Clin. Lab. Technician (Merged) 5-10 Years	\$1,023.54	\$1,055.20	\$1,054.77	\$1,076.30	\$1,075.33	\$1,108.59	\$1,107.59	\$1,141.85
Electrician A	\$1,025.64	\$1,057.36	\$1,056.94	\$1,078.51	\$1,077.54	\$1,110.87	\$1,109.87	\$1,144.20
Clin. Lab. Technician I 2-5 Years	\$1,034.74	\$1,066.74	\$1,066.31	\$1,088.07	\$1,087.09	\$1,120.71	\$1,119.70	\$1,154.33
Graduate Dietitian	\$1,042.42	\$1,074.66	\$1,074.23	\$1,096.15	\$1,095.16	\$1,129.03	\$1,128.01	\$1,162.90
Soc. Work Asst. 1-2 Years	\$1,047 .62	\$1,080.02	\$1,079.59	\$1,101.62	\$1,100.63	\$1,134.67	\$1,133.65	\$1,168.71
Clin. Lab. Technician (Merged) 10-15 Years .	\$1,051.57	\$1,084.09	\$1,083.65	\$1,105.77	\$1,104.77	\$1,138.94	\$1,137.92	\$1,173.11
Clin. Lab. Technician I 5-10 Years	\$1,053.98	\$1,086.58	\$1,086.14	\$1,108.31	\$1,107.31	\$1,141.56	\$1,140.54	\$1,175.81
Lead Carpenter	\$1,059.22	\$1,091.98	\$1,091.54	\$1,113.82	\$1,112.81	\$1,147.23	\$1,146.20	\$1,181.65
Clin. Lab. Technician II 0-2 Years	\$1,063.53	\$1,096.42	\$1,095.98	\$1,118.35	\$1,117.34	\$1,151.90	\$1,150.87	\$1,186.46
Rad. One. Ther. 0-2 Years	\$1,067.59	\$1,100.61	\$1,100.17	\$1,122.62	\$1,121.61	\$1,156.30	\$1,155.26	\$1,190.99
Reg. Nucl. Med. Tech. 0-2 Years	\$1,067.59	\$1,100.61	\$1,100.17	\$1,122.62	\$1,121.61	\$1,156.30	\$1,155.26	\$1,190.99
Licensed Practical Nurse	\$1,067.62	\$1,100.64	\$1,100.20	\$1,122.65	\$1,121.64	\$1,156.33	\$1,155.29	\$1,191.02
Clin. Lab. Technician II 2-5 Years	\$1,078.95	\$1,112.32	\$1,111.88	\$1,134.57	\$1,133.55	\$1,168.61	\$1,167.56	\$1,203.67
Clin. Lab. Technician (Merged) 15+ Years	\$1,079.58	\$1,112.97	\$1,112.53	\$1,135.23	\$1,134.21	\$1,169.29	\$1,168.24	\$1,204.37
	\$1,080.16	\$1,113.57	\$1,113.12	\$1,135.84	\$1,134.82	\$1,169.92	\$1,168.87	\$1,205.02
Clin. Lab. Technician I 10-15 Years	\$1,082.82	\$1,116.31	\$1,115.87	\$1,138.64	\$1,137.62	\$1,172.80	\$1,171.74	\$1,207.98
Clin. Lab. Technol. (Merged) 0-2 Years	\$1,083.30	\$1,116.80	\$1,116.36	\$1,139.14	\$1,138.11	\$1,173.31	\$1,172.25	\$1,208.51
Soc. Work Asst. 2-3 Years	\$1,083.48	\$1,116.99	\$1,116.54	\$1,139.33	\$1,138.30	\$1,173.51	\$1,172.46	\$1,208.72
	\$1,098.20	\$1,132.17	\$1,131.71	\$1,154.81	\$1,153.77	\$1,189.45	\$1,188.38	\$,1,225.13
Clin. Lab. Technol. (Merged) 2-5 Years	\$1,098.25	\$1,132.22	\$1,131.76	\$1,154.86	\$1,153.82	\$1,189.51	\$1,188.44	\$1,225.20

	UNIFORM	A JOB TITLES	AND UNIFO	UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	RATES			
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobe	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Clin. Lab. Technician I 15+ Years	\$1,111.64	\$1,146.02	\$1,145.56	\$1,168.94	\$1,167.89	\$1,204.01	\$1,202.93	\$1,240.13
Clin. lab. Technol. I 0-2 Years	\$1,115.53	\$1,150.03	\$1,149.57	\$1,173.03	\$1,171.97	\$1,208.22	\$1,207.14	\$1,244.47
Clin. Lab. Technol. (Merged) 5-10 Years	\$,1 116.94	\$1,151.48	\$1,151.02	\$1,174.51	\$1,173.46	\$1,209.75	\$1,208.66	\$1,246.04
Lead Electrician	\$1,118.10	\$1,152.68	\$1,152.22	\$1,175.73	\$1,174.67	\$1,211.00	\$1,209.91	\$1,247.33
Soc. Work Asst. 3-4 Years	\$1,119.07	\$1,153.68	\$1,153.22	\$1,176.75	\$1,175.69	\$1,212.05	\$1,210.96	\$1,248.41
Clin. Lab. Technician II 10-15 Years	\$1,127.03	\$1,161.89	\$1,161.43	\$1,185.13	\$1,184.06	\$1,220.68	\$1,219.58	\$1,257.30
Clin. Lab. Technol. I 2-5 Years	\$1,130.89	\$1,165.87	\$1,165.41	\$1,189.19	\$1,188.12	\$1,224.87	\$1,223.77	\$1,261.62
Clin. Lab. Technol. (Merged) 10-15 Years	\$1,144.95	\$1,180.36	\$1,179.89	\$1,203.97	\$1,202.89	\$1,240.09	\$1,238.97	\$1,277.29
Clin. Lab. Technol. I 5-10 Years	\$1,150.10	\$1,185.67	\$1,185.19	\$1,209.38	\$1,208.29	\$1,245.66	\$1,244.54	\$1,283.03
Clin. Lab. Technician II 15+ Years	\$1,155.88	\$1,191.63	\$1,191.15	\$1,215.46	\$1,214.36	\$1,251.92	\$1,250.80	\$1,289.48
Rad. One. Ther. 3+ Years	\$1,155.88	\$1,191.63	\$1,191.15	\$1,215.46	\$1,214.36	\$1,251.92	\$1,250.80	\$1,289.48
Reg. Nucl. Med. Tech. 2-4 Years	\$1,155.88	\$1,191.63	\$1,191.15	\$1,215.46	\$1,214.36	\$1,251.92	\$1,250.80	\$1,289.48
Clin. Lab. Technol. (Merged) 15+ Years	\$1,172.98	\$1,209.26	\$1,208.78	\$1,233.45	\$1,232.34	\$1,270.45	\$1,269.30	\$1,308.56
Clin. Lab. Technol. I 10-15 Years	\$1,178.96	\$1,215.42	\$1,214.94	\$1,239.73	\$1,238.61	\$1,276.92	\$1,275.77	\$1,315.23
Rad. Tech. 0-2 Years	\$1,195.38	\$1,232.35	\$1,231.86	\$1,257.00	\$1,255.87	\$1,294.71	\$1,293.54	\$1,333.55
Clin. Lab. Technol. II 0-2 Years	\$1,198.19	\$1,235.25	\$1,234.76	\$1,259.96	\$1,258.83	\$1,297.76	\$1,296.59	\$1,336.69
Registry Elig. Respiratory Therapist	\$1,204.07	\$1,241.31	\$1,240.82	\$1,266.14	\$1,265.00	\$1,304.12	\$1,302.94	\$1,343.24
Clin. Lab. Technol. I 15+ Years	\$1,207.80	\$1,245.15	\$1,244.65	\$1,270.05	\$1,268.91	\$1,308.15	\$1,306.97	\$1,347.39
Reg. Nucl. Med.Tech. 5+ Years	\$1,210.51	\$1,247.95	\$1,247.45	\$1,272.91	\$1,271.77	\$1,311.10	\$1,309.92	\$1,350.43
Ultra Sound Technologist	\$1,211.25	\$1,248.71	\$1,248.21	\$1,273.68	\$1,272.53	\$1,311.89	\$1,310.71	\$1,351.25
Reg. Dietitian 0-2 Years	\$1,211.66	\$1,249.13	\$1,248.63	\$1,274.11	\$1,272.96	\$1,312.33	\$1,311.15	\$1,351.70
	\$1,213.59	\$1,251.12	\$1,250.62	\$1,276.14	\$1,274.99	\$1,314.42	\$1,313.23	\$1,353.85
Clin. Lab. Technol. II 5-10 Years	\$1,232.81	\$1,270.94	\$1,270.43	\$1,296.36	\$1,295.19	\$1,335.25	\$1,334.05	\$1,375.31
MSW 0-1 Year	\$1,234.99	\$1,273.19	\$1,272.68	\$1,298.65	\$1,297.48	\$1,337.61	\$1,336.41	\$1,377.74
Reg. Dietitian 2-4 Years	\$1,240.50	\$1,278.87	\$1,278.36	\$1,304.45	\$1,303.27	\$1,343.58	\$1,342.37	\$1,383.89
	\$1,242.09	\$1,280.51	\$1,280.00	\$1,306.12	\$1,304.94	\$1,345.30	\$1,344.09	\$1,385.66
Registered Respiratory Therapist	\$1,254.25	\$1,293.04	·\$1,292.52	\$1,318.90	\$1,317.72	\$1,358.47	\$1,357.24	\$1,399.22

	UNIFORN	1 JOB TITLE	S AND UNIFOI	UNIFORM JOB TITLES AND UNIFORM MINIMUM RATES	RATES			
	Octobe	October 1, 2020	Octobe	October 1, 2021	Octobe	October 1, 2022	Octobel	October 1, 2023
	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum	Hiring	Minimum
CLASSIFICATION	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate	Rate
Registered Ultra Sound Technologist	\$1,254.25	\$1,293.04	\$1,292.52	\$1,318.90	\$1,317.72	\$1,358.47	\$1,357.24	\$1,399.22
Graduate Pharmacist	\$1,257.16	\$1,296.04	\$1,295.52	\$1,321.96	\$1,320.77	\$1,361.62	\$1,360.40	\$1,402.47
Clin. Lab. Technol. II 10-15 Years	\$1,261.66	\$1,300.68	\$1,300.16	\$1,326.69	\$1,325.50	\$1,366.49	\$1,365.26	\$1,407.48
Reg. Dietitian 4-10 Years	\$1,269.37	\$1,308.63	\$1,308.10	\$1,334.80	\$1,333.59	\$1,374.84	\$1,373.61	\$1,416.09
	\$1,269.39	\$1,308.65	\$1,308.12	\$1,334.82	\$1,333.61	\$1, 374.86	\$1,373.63	\$1,416.11
MSW 1-2 Years	\$1,269.56	\$1,308.82	\$1,308.30	\$1,335.00	\$1,333.80	\$1,375.05	\$1,373.81	\$1,416.30
Special Procedure Technician	\$1,273.61	\$1,313.00	\$1,312.47	\$1,339.26	\$1,338.06	\$1,379.44	\$1,378.20	\$1,420.82
Clin. Lab. Technol. II 15+ Years	\$1,290.51	\$1,330.42	\$1,329.89	\$1,357.03	\$1,355.81	\$1,397.74	\$1,396.48	\$1,439.67
Rad. Tech. 5-10 Years	\$1,298.09	\$1,338.24	\$1,337.70	\$1,365.00	\$1,363.77	\$1,405.95	\$1,404.69	\$1,448.13
Reg. Dietitian 10+ Years	\$1,298.22	\$1,338.37	\$1,337.84	\$1,365.14	\$1,363:91	\$1,406.09	\$1,404.82	\$1,448.27
MSW 2-3 Years	\$1,305.83	\$1,346.22	\$1,345.68	\$1,373.14	\$1,371.90	\$1,414.33	\$1,413.06	\$1,456.76
Rad. Tech. 10+ Years	\$1,335.48	\$1,376.78	\$1,376.23	\$1,404.32	\$1,403.06	\$1,446.45	\$1,445.14	\$1,489.84
Lead Radiologic Technologist	\$1,340.79	\$1,382.26	\$1,381.71	\$1,409.91	\$1,408.64	\$1,452.21	\$1,450.91	\$1,495.78
MSW 3-4 Years	\$1,341.24	\$1,382.72	\$1,382.16	\$1,410.37	\$1,409.10	\$1,452.68	\$1,451.37	\$1,496.26
MSW 4-5 Years	\$1,376.67	\$1,419.25	\$1,418.69	\$1,447.64	\$1,446.34	\$1,491.07	\$1,489.73	\$1,535.80
MSW 5-6 Years	\$1,412.11	\$1,455.78	\$1,455.20	\$1,484.90	\$1,483.57	\$1,529.45	\$1,528.07	\$1,575.33
MSW 6-7 Years	\$1,447.50	\$1,492.27	\$1,491.68	\$1,522.12	\$1,520.75	\$1,567.78	\$1,566.37	\$1,614.81
Engineer - two licenses required	\$1,480.00	\$1,525.77	\$1,525.16	\$1,556.29	\$1,554.89	\$1,602.98	\$1,601.54	\$1,651.07
MSW 7-8 Years	\$1,482.94	\$1,528.80	\$1,528.19	\$1,559.38	\$1,557.98	\$1,606.16	\$1,604.71	\$1,654.34
MSW 8-9+Years	\$1,518.30	\$1,565.26	\$1,564.64	\$1,596.57	\$1,595.14	\$1,644.47	\$1,642.99	\$1,693.80
Sr. Soc. Worker 0-1 Year	\$1,538.10	\$1,585.67	\$1,585.03	\$1,617.38	\$1,615.92	\$1,665.90	\$1,664.40	\$1,715.88
Sr. Soc. Worker 1-2 Years	\$1,573.52	\$1,622.19	\$1,621.54	\$1,654.63	\$1,653.14	\$1,704.27	\$1,702.74	\$1,755.40
Sr. Soc. Worker 2-3 Years	\$1,608.93	\$1,658.69	\$1,658.02	\$1,691.86	\$1,690.34	\$1,742.62	\$1,741.05	\$1,794.90
Sr. Soc. Worker 3-4 Years	\$1,644.34	\$1,695.20	\$1,694.52	\$1,729.10	\$1,727.54	\$1,780.97	\$1,779.37	\$1,834.40
Reg. Pharm. 0-2 Years	\$1,980.62	\$2,041.88	\$2,041.07	\$2,082.72	\$2,080.84	\$2,145.20	\$2,143.27	\$2,209.56
Reg. Pharm. 3-5 Years	\$2,055.10	\$2,118.66	\$2,117.81	\$2,161.03	\$2,159.08	\$2, 225.86	\$2,223.86	\$2, 292.64
Reg. Pharm. 6-9 Years	\$2,114.67	\$2,180.07	\$2,179.20	\$2,223.67	\$2,221.67	\$2,290.38	\$2,288.32	\$2, 359.09
Reg. Pharm. 10+ Years	\$2,233.77	\$2,302.86	\$2,301.94	\$2,348.92	\$2,346.81	\$2,419.39	\$2,417.21	\$2,491.97

### STIPULATION 2B NEW HIRE/MINIMUM RATES FOR NURSING HOME EMPLOYEES HIRED AFTER OCTOBER 1, 2013<sup>1</sup>

(Nicolau Award)

### LEAGUE NURSING HOME NEW HIRE RATES AS OF JUNE 1, 2013

Classification	Years of Service*	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
*See Footnote for Defin	nition: Servi	ce, Maintenance a	nd Clerical Titles		
Cashier/Dietary	0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	\$768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Cook's Helper	0-5	\$759.58	\$774.77	\$798.01	\$821.95
	5-8	\$764.55	\$779.84	\$803.24	\$827.34
	8-9	\$772.00	\$787.44	\$811.06	\$835.39
	9+	\$827.61	\$844.16	\$869.48	\$895.56
Dietary Clerk	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Dietary Worker	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
First Cook	0-5	\$938.57	\$957.34	\$986.06	\$1015.64
	5-8	\$944.74	\$963.63	\$992.54	\$1022.32
	8-9	\$953.91	\$972.99	\$1002.18	\$1032.25
	9+	\$1022.66	\$1043.11	\$1074.40	\$1106.63
Housekeeping Worker	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Laundry Worker I	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Laundry Worker II	0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	\$768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Lead Dietary Worker	0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75

1 As per the Nicolau Award June 2013.

,	Years of	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023
	Service*	3.00%	2.00%	3.00%	3.00%
Lead Housekeeper	0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75
Senior Nursing Attendan	t 0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75
Nursing Attendant	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Pot Washer	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Presser	0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	\$768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Second Cook	0-5	\$866.96	\$884.30	\$910.83	\$938.15
	5-8	\$872.63	\$890.08	\$916.78	\$944.28
	8-9	\$881.14	\$898.76	\$925.72	\$953.49
	9+	\$944.59	\$963.48	\$992.38	\$1022.15
Sewing Machine Operato	or 0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	5768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Soiled Laundry Handler	0-5	\$729.86	\$744.46	\$766.79	\$789.79
	5-8	\$734.63	\$749.32	\$771.80	\$794.95
	8-9	\$741.81	\$756.65	\$779.35	\$802.73
	9+	\$795.23	\$811.13	\$835.46	\$860.52
Third Cook/					
Special Order Cook	0-5	\$819.28	\$835.67	\$860.74	\$886.56
	5-8	\$824.64	\$841.13	\$866.36	\$892.35
	8-9	\$832.68	\$849.33	\$874.81	\$901.05
	9+	\$892.64	\$910.49	\$937.80	\$965.93
Ward Clerk	0-5	\$733.52	\$748.19	\$770.64	\$793.76
	5-8	\$738.35	\$753.12	\$775.71	\$798.98
	8-9	\$745.52	\$760.43	\$783.24	\$806.74
	9+	\$799.24	\$815.22	\$839.68	\$864.87
Washer	0-5	\$767.59	\$782.94	\$806.43	\$830.62
	5-8	\$772.60	\$788.05	\$811.69	\$836.04

## LEAGUE NURSING HOME NEW HIRE RATES AS OF JUNE 1, 2013

	Years of	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023
Classification	Service*	3.00%	2.00%	3.00%	3.00%
	8-9	\$780.14	\$795.74	\$819.61	\$844.20
	9+	\$836.34	\$853.07	\$878.66	\$905.02
Waxer Stripper	0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	\$768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Ambulance Attendant	0-5	\$748.37	\$763.34	\$786.24	\$809.83
	5-8	\$753.25	\$768.32	\$791.37	\$815.11
	8-9	\$760.59	\$775.80	\$799.07	\$823.04
	9+	\$815.39	\$831.70	\$856.65	\$882.35
Emergency Medical Te	chnician				
(EMT)/Attendant	0-5	\$890.89	\$908.71	\$935.97	\$964.05
. ,	5-8	\$896.71	\$914.64	\$942.08	\$970.34
	8-9	\$905.44	\$923.55	\$951.26	\$979.80
	9+	\$970.67	\$990.08	\$1019.78	\$1050.37
Emergency Medical					
Technician (EMT)	0-5	\$759.60	\$774.79	\$798.03	\$821.97
	5-8	\$764.57	\$779.86	\$803.26	\$827.36
	8-9	\$772.03	\$787.47	\$811.09	\$835.42
	9+	\$827.64	\$844.19	\$869.52	\$895.61
Carpenter A	0-5	\$942.53	\$961.38	\$990.22	\$1019.93
	5-8	\$948.72	\$967.69	\$996.72	\$1026.62
	8-9	\$957.95	\$977.11	\$1006.42	\$1036.61
	9+	\$1026.95	\$1047.49	\$1078.91	\$1111.28
Carpenter B	0-5	\$866.96	\$884.30	\$910.83	\$938.15
	5-8	\$872.63	\$890.08	\$916.78	\$944.28
	8-9	\$881.14	\$898.76	\$925.72	\$953.49
	9+	\$944.59	\$963.48	\$992.38	\$1022.15
Carpenter's Helper	0-5	\$775.52	\$791.03	\$814.76	\$839.20
	5-8	\$780.59	\$796.20	\$820.09	\$844.69
	8-9	\$788.19	\$803.95	\$828.07	\$852.91
	9+	\$844.96	\$861.86	\$887.72	\$914.35
Central Sterile					
Technician	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Electrician A	0-5	\$970.44	\$989.85	\$1019.55	\$1050.14
	5-8	\$976.79	\$996.33	\$1026.22	\$1057.01
	8-9	\$986.30	\$1006.03	\$1036.21	\$1067.30
	9+	\$1057.36	\$1078.51	\$1110.87	\$1144.20
		1			

## LEAGUE NURSING HOME NEW HIRE RATES AS OF JUNE 1, 2013
	Voor- of	Effective Date	Effective Date	Effective Date	Effective Date
Classification	Years of Service*	0ct. 1, 2020 3.00%	0ct. 1, 2021 2.00%	0ct. 1, 2022 3.00%	0ct. 1, 2023 3.00%
Electrician B	0-5	\$894.85	\$912.75	\$940.13	\$968.33
	5-8	\$900.69	\$918.70	\$946.26	\$974.65
	8-9	\$909.48	\$927.67	\$955.50	\$984.17
	9+	\$974.99	\$994.49	\$1024.32	\$1055.05
Electrician's Helper	0-5	\$775.52	\$791.03	\$814.76	\$839.20
•	5-8	\$780.59	\$796.20	\$820.09	\$844.69
	8-9	\$788.19	\$803.95	\$828.07	\$852.91
	9+	\$844.96	\$861.86	\$887.72	\$914.35
Engineer -					
two licenses required	0-5	\$1400.35	\$1428.36	\$1471.21	\$1515.35
	5-8	\$1409.50	\$1437.69	\$1480.82	\$1525.24
	8-9	\$1423.21	\$1451.67	\$1495.22	\$1540.08
	9+	\$1525.77	\$1556.29	\$1602.98	\$1651.07
Fireman	0-5	\$827.20	\$843.74	\$869.05	\$895.12
	5-8	\$832.64	\$849.29	\$874.77	\$901.01
	8-9	\$840.74	\$857.55	\$883.28	\$909.78
	9+	\$901.30	\$919.33	\$946.91	\$975.32
Groundskeeper	0-5	\$748.37	\$763.34	\$786.24	\$809.83
	5-8	\$753.25	\$768.32	\$791.37	\$815.11
	8-9	\$760.59	\$775.80	\$799.07	\$823.04
	9+	\$815.39	\$831.70	\$856.65	\$882.35
Incinerator Attendant	0-5	\$795.09	\$810.99	\$835.32	\$860.38
	5-8	\$800.29	\$816.30	\$840.79	\$866.01
	8-9	\$808.10	\$824.26	\$848.99	\$874.46
	9+	\$866.30	\$883.63	\$910.14	\$937.44
Lead Carpenter	0-5	\$1002.23	\$1022.27	\$1052.94	\$1084.53
	5-8	\$1008.76	\$1028.94	\$1059.81	\$1091.60
	8-9	\$1018.61	\$1038.98	\$1070.15	\$1102.25
	9+	\$1091.98	\$1113.82	\$1147.23	\$1181.65
Lead Electrician	0-5	\$1057.91	\$1079.07	\$1111.44	\$1144.78
	5-8	\$1064.82	\$1086.12	\$1118.70	\$1152.26
	8-9	\$1075.19	\$1096.69	\$1129.59	\$1163.48
	9+	\$1152.68	\$1175.73	\$1211.00	\$1247.33
Lead Painter	0-5	\$934.61	\$953.30	\$981.90	\$1011.36
	5-8	\$940.72	\$959.S3	\$988.32	\$1017.97
	8-9	\$949.89	\$968.89	\$997.96	\$1027.90
	9+	\$1018.31	\$1038.68	\$1069.84	\$1101.94
Lead Plumber	0-5	\$1022.04	\$1042.48	\$1073.75	\$1105.96
	5-8	\$1028.72	\$1049.29	\$1080.77	\$1113.19
	8-9	\$1038.74	\$1059.51	\$1091.30	\$1124.04
	9+	\$1113.57	\$1135.84	\$1169.92	\$1205.02
		I	I	I	I

Classification	Years of Service*	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
Maintenance Mechanic	0-5	\$894.85	\$912.7S	\$940.13	\$968.33
	5-8	\$900.69	\$918.70	\$946.26	\$974.65
	8-9	\$909.48	\$927.67	\$955.50	\$984.17
	9+	\$974.99	\$994.49	\$1024.32	\$1055.05
Maintenance Worker	0-5	\$791.42	\$807.25	\$831.47	\$856.41
	5-8	\$796.59	\$812.52	\$836.90	\$862.01
	8-9	\$804.35	\$820.44	\$845.0S	\$870.40
	9+	\$862.31	\$879.56	\$905.95	\$933.13
Mason/Plasterer	0-5	\$922.65	\$941.10	\$969.33	\$998.41
	5-8	\$928.69	\$947.26	\$975.68	\$1004.95
	8-9	\$937.72	\$956.47	\$985.16	\$1014.71
	9+	\$1005.29	\$1025.40	\$1056.16	\$1087.84
Morgue Attendant	0-5	\$783.42	\$799.09	\$823.06	\$847.75
	5-8	\$788.56	\$804.33	\$828.46	\$853.31
	8-9	\$796.24	\$812.16	\$836.52	\$861.62
	9+	5853.61	\$870.68	\$896.80	\$923.70
Motor Vehicle Operator	0-5	\$759.60	\$774.79	\$798.03	\$821.97
	5-8	\$764.57	\$779.86	\$803.26	\$827.36
	8-9	\$772.03	\$787.47	\$811.09	\$835.42
	9+	\$827.64	\$844.19	\$869.52	\$895.61
Painter A	0-5	\$858.99	\$876.17	\$902.46	\$929.53
	5-8	\$864.62	\$881.91	\$908.37	\$935.62
	8-9	\$873.05	\$890.51	\$917.23	\$944.75
	9+	\$935.94	\$954.66	\$983.30	\$1012.80
Painter B	0-5	\$827.20	\$843.74	\$869.05	\$895.12
	5-8	\$832.64	\$849.29	\$874.77	\$901.01
	8-9	\$840.74	\$857.55	\$883.28	\$909.78
	9+	\$901.30	\$919.33	\$946.91	\$975.32
Painter's Helper	0-5	\$775.52	\$791.03	\$814.76	\$839.20
	5-8	\$780.59	\$796.20	\$820.09	\$844.69
	8-9	\$788.19	\$803.95	\$828.07	\$852.91
	9+	\$844.96	\$861.86	\$887.72	\$914.35
Plumber A	0-5	\$958.47	\$977.64	\$1006.97	\$1037.18
	5-8	\$964.77	\$984.07	\$1013.59	\$1044.00
	8-9	\$974.15	\$993.63	\$1023.44	\$1054.14
	9+	\$1044.34	\$1065.23	\$1097.19	\$1130.11
Plumber B	0-5	\$870.99	\$888.41	\$915.06	\$942.51
	5-8	\$876.69	\$894.22	\$921.05	\$948.68
	8-9	\$885.24	\$902.94	\$930.03	\$957.93
	9+	\$949.02	\$968.00	\$997.04	\$1026.95
Plumber's Helper	0-5	\$775.52	\$791.03	\$814.76	\$839.20
	5-8	\$780.59	\$796.20	\$820.09	\$844.69
	8-9	\$788.19	\$803.95	\$828.07	\$852.91
	9+	\$844.96	\$861.86	\$887.72	\$914.35

	Vooro of	Effective Date	Effective Date	Effective Date	Effective Date
Classification	Years of Service*	0ct. 1, 2020 3.00%	0ct. 1, 2021 2.00%	0ct. 1, 2022 3.00%	0ct. 1, 2023 3.00%
		5.00 /0	2.00 /0	0.0070	5.00 /0
Stationary Engineer -					
one license req	0-5	\$1201.00	\$1225.09	\$1261.84	\$1299.70
	5-8	\$1208.92	\$1233.10	\$1270.09	\$1308.19
	8-9	\$1220.70	\$1245.11	\$1282.46	\$1320.93
	9+	\$1308.65	\$1334.82	\$1374.86	\$1416.11
Trades Helper	0-5	\$744.65	\$759.54	\$782.33	\$805.80
	5-8	\$749.53	\$764.52	\$787.46	\$811.08
	8-9	\$756.81	\$771.95	\$795.11	\$818.96
	9+	\$811.35	\$827.58	\$852.41	\$877.98
Accounting Clerk	0-5	\$767 .60	\$782.95	\$806.44	\$830.63
-	5-8	\$772.61	\$788.06	\$811.70	\$836.05
	8-9	\$780.15	\$795.75	\$819.62	\$844.21
	9+	\$836.35	\$853.08	\$878.67	\$905.03
Accounts Payable/					
Receivable	0-5	\$771.56	\$786.99	\$810.60	\$834.92
	5-8	\$776.59	\$792.12	\$815.88	\$840.36
	8-9	\$784.16	\$799.84	\$823.84	\$848.56
	9+	\$840.67	\$857.48	\$883.20	\$909.70
Admin/Exec/Secretary II	II 0-5	\$890.90	\$908.72	\$935.98	\$964.06
•	5-8	\$896.72	\$914.65	\$942.09	\$970.35
	8-9	\$905.45	\$923.56	\$951.27	\$979.81
	9+	\$970.68	\$990.09	\$1019.79	\$1050.38
Admitting Clerk	0-5	\$763.51	\$778.78	\$802.14	\$826.20
-	5-8	\$768.50	\$783.87	\$807.39	\$831.61
	8-9	\$775.98	\$791.50	\$815.25	\$839.71
	9+	\$831.89	\$848.53	\$873.99	\$900.21
Cashier (Business Office	e) 0-5	\$771.56	\$786.99	\$810.60	\$834.92
	5-8	\$776.59	\$792.12	\$815.88	\$840.36
	8-9	\$784.16	\$799.84	\$823.84	\$848.56
	9+	\$840.67	\$857.48	\$883.20	\$909.70
Clerk/Typist	0-5	\$741.00	\$755.82	\$778.49	\$801.84
	5-8	\$745.85	\$760.77	\$783.59	\$807.10
	8-9	\$753.13	\$768.19	\$791.24	\$814.98
	9+	\$807.38	\$823.53	\$848.24	\$873.69
Clerk	0-5	\$728.13	\$742.69	\$764.97	\$787.92
	5-8	\$732.88	\$747.54	\$769.97	\$793.07
	8-9	\$740.03	\$754.83	\$777.47	\$800.79
	9+	\$793.34	\$809.21	\$833.49	\$858.49
Key Punch Operator	0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75
		•	I.	1	I

	Years of	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023
Classification	Service*	3.00%	2.00%	3.00%	3.00%
Mailroom Clerk	0-5	\$729.86	\$744.46	\$766.79	\$789.79
	5-8	\$734.63	\$749.32	\$771.80	\$794.95
	8-9	\$741.81	\$756.65	\$779.35	\$802.73
	9+	\$795.23	\$811.13	\$835.46	\$860.52
Medical Records/					
Coding Clerk	0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
-	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75
Payroll Clerk	0-5	\$779.48	\$795.07	\$818.92	\$843.49
-	5-8	\$784.\$8	\$800.27	\$824.28	\$849.01
	8-9	\$792.22	\$808.06	\$832.30	\$857.27
	9+	\$849.30	\$866.29	\$892.28	\$919.05
Receptionist	0-5	\$737.29	\$752.04	\$774.60	\$797.84
	5-8	\$742.13	\$756.97	\$779.68	\$803.07
	8-9	\$749.35	\$764.34	\$787.27	\$810.89
	9+	\$803.33	\$819.40	\$843.98	\$869.30
Registrar	0-5	\$752.09	\$767.13	\$790.14	\$813.84
noglotiui	5-8	\$757.01	\$772.15	\$795.31	\$819.17
	8-9	\$764.40	\$779.69	\$803.08	\$827.17
	9+	\$819.45	\$835.84	\$860.92	\$886.75
Secretary I	0-5	\$791.42	\$807.25	\$831.47	\$856.41
	5-8	\$796.59	\$812.52	\$836.90	\$862.01
	8-9	\$804.35	\$820.44	\$845.05	\$870.40
	9+	\$862.31	\$879.56	\$905.95	\$933.13
Senior Secretary/					
Secretary II	0-5	\$847.08	\$864.02	\$889.94	\$916.64
	5-8	\$852.62	\$869.67	\$895.76	\$922.63
	8-9	\$860.93	\$878.15	\$904.49	\$931.62
	9+	\$922.96	\$941.42	\$969.66	\$998.75
Telephone Operator	0-5	\$771.56	\$786.99	\$810.60	\$834.92
	5-8	\$776.59	\$792.12	\$815.88	\$840.36
	8-9	\$784.16	\$799.84	\$823.84	\$848.56
	9+	\$840.67	\$857.48	\$883.20	\$909.70
Typist/Transcriptionist					
(Medical)	0-5	\$791.42	\$807.25	\$831.47	\$856.41
,	5-8	\$796.59	\$812.52	\$836.90	\$862.01
	8-9	\$804.35	\$820.44	\$845.05	\$870.40
	9+	\$862.31	\$879.56	\$905.95	\$933.13
Typist/Transcriptionist	0-5	\$779.48	\$795.07	\$818.92	\$843.49
	5-8	\$784.58	\$800.27	\$824.28	\$849.01
	8-9	\$792.22	\$808.06	\$832.30	\$857.27
	9+	\$849.30	\$866.29	\$892.28	\$919.05
		1	1	1	1

Classification	Years of Service*	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
** See Footnote for Defini	tion: Technic	al/Professional Tit	les		
Registered Dietitian (RD	) 0-2	\$1124.21	\$1146.69	\$1181.09	\$1216.52
	2-4	\$1151.00	\$1174.02	\$1209.24	\$1245.52
	4-5	\$1177.75	\$1201.31	\$1237.35	\$1274.47
	5-9	\$1203.53	\$1227.60	\$1264.43	\$1302.36
	9-10	\$1308.63	\$1334.80	\$1374.84	\$1416.09
	10+	\$1338.37	\$1365.14	\$1406.09	\$1448.27
Cert. Respiratory					
Therapy Technician	0-5	\$900.86	\$918.88	\$946.45	\$974.84
	5-9	\$920.58	\$938.99	\$967.16	\$996.17
	9+	\$1000.96	\$1020.98	\$1051.61	\$1083.16
Dental Technician					
Assistant Certified	0-5	\$776.09	\$791.61	\$815.36	\$839.82
	5-9	\$793.06	\$808.92	\$833.19	\$858.19
	9+	\$862.31	\$879.56	\$905.95	\$933.13
Dental Assistant	0-5	\$756.59	\$771.72	\$794.87	\$818.72
	5-9	\$773.16	\$788.62	\$812.28	\$836.65
	9+	\$840.67	\$857.48	\$883.20	\$909.70
Dental Hygienist	0-5	\$861.83	\$879.07	\$905.44	\$932.60
Dentai nyyienist	0-5 5-9	\$880.69	\$898.30	\$925.25	\$952.00
	5-5 9+	\$957.59	\$976.74	\$1006.04	\$1036.22
EEG Technician	0-5	\$850.15	\$867.15	\$893.16	\$919.95
	5-9	\$868.77	\$886.15	\$912.73	\$940.11
	9+	\$944.59	\$963.48	\$992.38	\$1022.15
EKG Technician	0-5	\$787.82	\$803.58	\$827.69	\$852.52
	5-9	\$805.06	\$821.16	\$845.79	\$871.16
	9+	\$875.35	\$892.86	\$919.65	\$947.24
Graduate Dietitian	0-5	\$967.20	\$986.54	\$1016.14	\$1046.62
	5-9	\$988.38	\$1008.15	\$1038.39	\$1069.54
	9+	\$1074.66	\$1096.15	\$1129.03	\$1162.90
Graduate Pharmacist	0-5	\$1166.43	\$1189.76	\$1225.45	\$1262.21
	0-5 5-9	\$1100.43	\$1215.82	\$1225.45	\$1289.86
	5-5 9+	\$1296.04	\$1321.96	\$1252.29	\$1209.00
Hemodialysis Technicia		\$861.83	\$879.07	\$905.44	\$932.60
	5-9	\$880.69	\$898.30	\$925.25	\$953.01
	9+	\$957.59	\$976.74	\$1006.04	\$1036.22
Histology Technician I	0-5	\$881.33	\$898.96	\$925.93	\$953.71
	5-9	\$900.63	\$918.64	\$946.20	\$974.59
	9+	\$979.27	\$998.86	\$1028.83	\$1059.69

Classification	Years of Service*	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
Histology Technician II	0-5	\$920.38	\$938.79	\$966.95	\$995.96
	5-9	\$940.52	\$959.33	\$988.11	\$1017.75
	9+	\$1022.66	\$1043.11	\$1074.40	\$1106.63
Infant Care Technician	0-5	\$764.39	\$779.68	\$803.07	\$827.16
	5-9	\$781.10	\$796.72	\$820.62	\$845.24
	9+	\$849.30	\$866.29	\$892.28	\$919.05
Clinical Laboratory					
Technician I	0-2	\$945.77	\$964.69	\$993.63	\$1023.44
	2-5	\$960.06	\$979.26	\$1008.64	\$1038.90
	5-9	\$999.33	\$1019.32	\$1049.90	\$1081.40
	9-10	\$1086.58	\$1108.31	\$1141.56	\$1175.81
	10-15 15+Years	\$1116.31 \$1146.02	\$1138.64 \$1168.94	\$1172.80 \$1204.01	\$1207.98 \$1240.13
	10+10015	\$1140.0Z	\$1100.94	\$1204.01	\$1240.13
Clinical Laboratory					
Technician II	0-2	\$986.79	\$1006.53	\$1036.73	\$1067.83
	2-5 5-9	\$1001.08	\$1021.10	\$1051.73	\$1083.28
	5-9 9-10	\$1041.24 \$1132.17	\$1062.06 \$1154.81	\$1093.92 \$1189.45	\$1126.74 \$1225.13
	10-15	\$1161.89	\$1185.13	\$1220.68	\$1225.13
	15+ Years	\$1191.63	\$1215.46	\$1251.92	\$1289.48
		• • • • •	• • •	• • •	
Clinical Laboratory Tech		<b>0010 47</b>	#000 04	#00.4 OF	#000.00
(Merged)	0-2 2-5	\$918.47 \$932.37	\$936.84 \$951.02	\$964.95 \$979.55	\$993.90 \$1008.94
	2-5 5-9	\$932.37	\$989.87	\$979.55	\$1008.94
	9-10	\$1055.20	\$1076.30	\$1108.59	\$1141.85
	10-15	\$1084.09	\$1105.77	\$1138.94	\$1173.11
	15+ Years	\$1112.97	\$1135.23	\$1169.29	\$1204.37
or · · · · ·					
Clinical Laboratory Technologist I	0-2	\$1035.02	\$1055.72	\$1087.39	\$1120.01
recimologist i	0-2 2-5	\$1035.02	\$1055.72	\$1102.38	\$1120.01
	2-3 5-9	\$1090.48	\$1112.29	\$1145.66	\$1180.03
	9-10	\$1185.67	\$1209.38	\$1245.66	\$1283.03
	10-15	\$1215.42	\$1239.73	\$1276.92	\$1315.23
	15+ Years	\$1245.15	\$1270.05	\$1308.15	\$1347.39
Clinical Laboratory					
Technologist II	0-2	\$1111.72	\$1133.95	\$1167.97	\$1203.01
	2-5	\$1126.02	\$1148.54	\$1183.00	\$1218.49
	5-9	\$1168.90	\$1192.28	\$1228.05	\$1264.89
	9-10	\$1270.94	\$1296.36	\$1335.25	\$1375.31
	10-15	\$1300.68	\$1326.69	\$1366.49	\$1407.48
	15+Years	\$1330.42	\$1357.03	\$1397.74	\$1439.67

				,	
Classification	Years of	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023
Glassification	Service*	3.00%	2.00%	3.00%	3.00%
Clinical Laboratory					
	0.0	¢1005 10	¢1005.00	¢1055.00	¢1007.00
Technologist (Merged)	0-2	\$1005.12	\$1025.22	\$1055.98	\$1087.66
	2-5	\$1019.02	\$1039.40	\$1070.58	\$1102.70
	5-9	\$1059.00	\$1080.18	\$1112.59	\$1145.97
	9-10	\$1151.48	\$1174.51	\$1209.75	\$1246.04
	10-15	\$1180.36	\$1203.97	\$1240.09	\$1277.29
	15+Years	\$1209.26	\$1233.45	\$1270.45	\$1308.56
Laboratory Trainee	0-5	\$772.18	\$787.62	\$811.25	\$835.59
	5-9	\$789.06	\$804.84	\$828.99	\$853.86
	9+	\$857.98	\$875.14	\$901.39	\$928.43
Lead Radiologic					
Technologist	0-5	\$1244.02	\$1268.90	\$1306.97	\$1346.18
	5-9	\$1271.26	\$1296.69	\$1335.59	\$1375.66
	9+	\$1382.26	\$1409.91	\$1452.21	\$1495.78
Licensed Practical Nurs	e 0-5	\$990.58	\$1010.39	\$1040.70	\$1071.92
	5-9	\$1012.25	\$1032.50	\$1063.48	\$1095.38
	9+	\$1100.64	\$1122.65	\$1156.33	\$1191.02
Surgical Technologist	0-5	\$776.09	\$791.61	\$815.36	\$839.82
Surgical recimologist	5-9	\$793.06	\$808.92	\$833.19	\$858.19
	9+	\$862.31	\$879.56	\$905.95	\$933.13
Practical Dietitian	0-5	\$826.76	\$843.30	\$868.60	\$894.66
	5-9	\$844.85	\$861.75	\$887.60	\$914.23
	9+	\$918.63	\$937.00	\$965.11	\$994.06
Radiation Oncology		#000 F0	<b>\$1010.04</b>	\$1040 CF	\$1071 07
Therapist	0-2	\$990.53	\$1010.34	\$1040.65	\$1071.87
	3-5	\$1072.47	\$1093.92	\$1126.74	\$1160.54
	6-9	\$1095.94	\$1117.86	\$1151.40	\$1185.94
	10+	\$1191.63	\$1215.46	\$1251.92	\$1289.48
Reg. Elig. Nuclear					
Medical Technician	0-5	\$939.92	\$958.72	\$987.48	\$1017.10
	5-9	\$960.49	\$979.70	\$1009.09	\$1039.36
	9+	\$1044.36	\$1065.25	\$1097.21	\$1130.13
Registry Elig.					
Respiratory Therapist	0-5	\$1117.17	\$1139.51	\$1173.70	\$1208.91
	5-9	\$1141.63	\$1164.46	\$1199.39	\$1235.37
	9+	\$1241.31	\$1266.14	\$1304.12	\$1343.24
<b>Registered Pharmacist</b>	0-2	\$1837.70	\$1874.45	\$1930.68	\$1988.60
	3-5	\$1906.79	\$1944.93	\$2003.28	\$2063.38
	6-9	\$2005.01	\$2045.11	\$2106.46	\$2169.65
	10+	\$2302.86	\$2348.92	\$2419.39	\$2491.97
		I	I	ļ	I

Classification	Years of Service*	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
Reg. Nuclear Medical					
Technologist	0-2	\$990.53	\$1010.34	\$1040.65	\$1071.87
	2-4	\$1072.47	\$1093.92	\$1126.74	\$1160.54
	5	\$1123.16	\$1145.62	\$1179.99	\$1215.39
	6-9	\$1147.76	\$1170.72	\$1205.84	\$1242.02
	10+	\$1247.95	\$1272.91	\$1311.10	\$1350.43
Registered Respiratory					
Therapist	0-5	\$1163.74	\$1187.01	\$1222.62	\$1259.30
morupiot	5-9	\$1189.22	\$1213.00	\$1249.39	\$1286.87
	9+	\$1293.04	\$1318.90	\$1358.47	\$1399.22
Registered Ultra Sound					
Technologist	0-5	\$1163.74	\$1187.01	\$1222.62	\$1259.30
	5-9	\$1189.22	\$1213.00	\$1249.39	\$1286.87
	9+	\$1293.04	\$1318.90	\$1358.47	\$1399.22
Respiratory Therapy					
Technician	0-5	\$854.11	\$871.19	\$897.33	\$924.25
	5-9	\$872.80	\$890.26	\$916.97	\$944.48
	9+	\$949.02	\$968.00	\$997.04	\$1026.95
Respiratory Therapy					
Trainee	0-5	\$733.85	\$748.53	\$770.99	\$794.12
ITAIIIEE	5-9	\$749.92	\$764.92	\$787.87	\$811.51
	9+	\$815.39	\$831.70	\$856.65	\$882.35
Social Work Assistant	0-1	\$938.99	\$957.77	\$986.50	\$1016.10
	1-2	\$972.03	\$991.47	\$1021.21	\$1051.85
	2-3	\$1005.29	\$1025.40	\$1056.16	\$1087.84
	3-5	\$1038.32	\$1059.09	\$1090.86	\$1123.59
	5-9	\$1061.04	\$1082.26	\$1114.73	\$1148.17
	9+	\$1153.68	\$1176.75	\$1212.05	\$1248.41
MSW Social Worker	0-1	\$1145.86	\$1168.78	\$1203.84	\$1239.96
	1-2	\$1177.94	\$1201.50	\$1237.55	\$1274.68
	2-3	\$1211.61	\$1235.84	\$1272.92	\$1311.11
	3-4	\$1244.45	\$1269.34	\$1307.42	\$1346.64
	4-5	\$1277.33	\$1302.88	\$1341.97	\$1382.23
	5-6	\$1338.87	\$1365.65	\$1406.62	\$1448.82
	6-7	\$1372.45	\$1399.90	\$1441.90	\$1485.16
	7-8	\$1406.04	\$1434.16	\$1477.18	\$1521.50
	8-9	\$1439.58	\$1468.37	\$1512.42	\$1557.79
	9+	\$1565.26	\$1596.57	\$1644.47	\$1693.80
Senior Social Worker	0-1	\$1427.12	\$1455.66	\$1499.33	\$1544.31
	1-2	\$1459.96	\$1489.16	\$1533.83	\$1579.84
	2-3	\$1492.81	\$1522.67	\$1568.35	\$1615.40
	3-5	\$1525.70	\$1556.21	\$1602.90	\$1650.99
	5-9	\$1559.08	\$1590.26	\$1637.97	\$1687.11
	9+	\$1695.20	\$1729.10	\$1780.97	\$1834.40

Classification	Years of Service	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2020 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2021 2.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2022 3.00%	Effective Date Oct. 1, 2023 3.00%
Special Procedure					
Technician	0-5	\$1181.70	\$1205.33	\$1241.49	\$1278.73
	5-9	\$1207.57	\$1231.72	\$1268.67	\$1306.73
	9+	\$1313.00	\$1339.26	\$1379.44	\$1420.82
Ultra Sound Technologis	t 0-5	\$1123.82	\$1146.30	\$1180.69	\$1216.11
-	5-9	\$1148.44	\$1171.41	\$1206.55	\$1242.75
	9+	\$1248.71	\$1273.68	\$1311.89	\$1351.25
Radiologic Technologist	0-2	\$1109.11	\$1131.29	\$1165.23	\$1200.19
• •	2-5	\$1152.47	\$1175.52	\$1210.79	\$1247.11
	5-9	\$1230.78	\$1255.40	\$1293.06	\$1331.85
	9-10	\$1338.24	\$1365.00	\$1405.95	\$1448.13
	10+	\$1376.78	\$1404.32	\$1446.45	\$1489.84

\* Definition: Service, Maintenance and Clerical Titles

0-5 = 1st 5 years of service (5 Steps) - 91.78% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by contractual increases)

- 5-8 = Next 3 years of service (3 Steps) 92.38% of 5/31/13 minimum (increased by contractual increases)
- 8-9 = Next 1 year of service (1 Step) 93.28% of 5/31/13 minimum (increased by contractual increases)
- 9+ = After 9 years of service, or the start of your 10th year-100% of 5/31/13 minimum (increased by contractual increases)

\*\* Definition: Professional/Technical Titles

- 0-2 = 1st 2 years of service (2 Steps) 90% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)
- 2-4 = Next 2 years of service (2 Steps) 90% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)
- 4-5 = Next 1 year of service (1 Step) 90% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)
- 5-9 = Next 4 years of service (4 Steps) 91.97% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)
- 9-10 = Next 1 year of service (1 Step) 100% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)
- 10+ = After 10 years of service , or the start of your 11th year-100% of 5/31/13 rate (increased by any contractual increases)

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK CITY EARNED SAFE AND SICK TIME ACT AND NEW YORK STATE PAID LEAVE LAW

September 23, 2021 George Gresham, President 1199 SEIU Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter sets forth our updated agreement regarding the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Time Act and our agreement regarding the New York State Paid Leave Law. Our agreement is as follows:

The Union accepts all comparable benefits (including, but not limited to, vacation time, sick time, and holiday time at premium rates) under the Collective Bargaining Agreement in lieu of any other benefits that may be available under the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Time Act ("NYCESSTA") and the New York State Paid Leave Law ("NYSPLL") (together, "Acts") and expressly waives the provisions of the Acts, except that this waiver does not apply to: (1) the Acts' prohibitions on Employer retaliation against Employees for use of sick leave, including, with respect to the NYCESSTA, discipline under a point or occurrence system, but not including discipline for fraud, misuse or abuse of sick leave, or use of sick leave for purposes other than those described in the Acts; (2) the Acts' provisions for use of sick leave to care for a family member as defined by the Acts, which shall run concurrently with sick leave provided under Article XVII of the Collective Bargaining Agreement; (3) the Acts' provision for the use of paid sick leave for safe time for the reasons set forth in the Acts when an Employee or a family member has been the victim of a domestic violence, a family offense matter, sexual offense, stalking, or human trafficking, which shall run concurrently with sick leave provided under Article XVII of the Collection Bargaining Agreement; or (4) the NYCESSTA's use of sick leave in the event of closure of employer or employees' child school due to public health emergency, which shall run concurrently with sick leave provided under Article XVII of the Collection Bargaining Agreement.

If you are in agreement with these modifications, please sign below and return an executed copy for our files.

Very truly yours,

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Accepted and Agreed to by: Marc Kramer, President

George Gresham, President

#### MAY 18, 2016 LETTER RE: 1199 AND LVHH-JOB SECURITY FUND ("JSF")

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

555 West 57th Street, New York, NY 10019-2925 . Tel (212) 956-8900 . Fax (212) 956-8355

#### Bruce McIver President

Roseann M. Simonelli Vice President Sean M. Moore AVP of Member Services

May 18, 2016

Mr. George Gresham, President 1199SBIU United Healthcare Workers East 310 West 43<sup>rd</sup> Street New York, NY 10036

Re: 1199 & LVHH -- Job Security Fund ("JSF")

Dear George:

This is to confirm our agreement concerning the above-captioned matter:

- 1. <u>Bmployer Response Time</u>
  - a) Management will respond with results of JSF referrals within 30 calendar days.
  - b) If the Hospital does not respond within 30 calendar days, the JSF can refer additional candidates and the original referrals can be sent to other institutions with vacancies.
- 2. Expand Grouping Article IXA (B) (i) (2)

Bxpand the Service groupings to include Support Associate, Environmental Escort Associate (EEA), Building Services/Patient Escort; and expand Clerical grouping to include Business associate, PSA, PSR for Entry Level positions as long as the decision to recommend someone for a vacancy is based on the job description and the duties required. The rate for the job should be the same rate as the titles that are currently included in the Service and Clerical Groupings.

3. Outplacement Programs and Pension Bridge

Local 1199 and the League will form a committee, with two League and two Union representative to work with the JSF staff to develop outplacement programs and to oversee actuarial review of the impact of 1199's pension bridge proposal.

AGREED:

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS & HOMES OF NEW YORK

By:

Bruce McIver, President Date: May 17, 2016

**1199SEIU UNITED HEALTHCARE** WORKERS EAST cogo Gresham, President

Date: May 17, 2016

#### MAY 6, 2015 LETTER RE: APPOINTMENT OF ARBITRATORS

Richard A. Levy Daniel J. Ratner Daniel Engelstein<sup>o</sup> Gwynne A. Wilcox<sup>4</sup> Pamela Jeffrey Kevin Finnegan Carl J. Levine<sup>4</sup> David Slutsky<sup>A</sup> Allyson L. Belovin Suzanne Hepner-Richard Dorn Robert H. Stroup Dana E. Lossia Susan J. Cameron<sup>A</sup> Micah Wissinger\* Ryan J. Barbur Alexander Rabb

#### LEVY RATNER, p.c.

Attorneys at Law 80 Eighth Avenue, 8th Floor New York, New York 10011-7175

Telephone (212) 627-8100 Telecopier (212) 627-8182

www.levyratner.com

Vanessa Fiores<sup>A</sup> Laureve D. Biackstone<sup>A</sup> Jorge A. Cisneros Kimberly A. Lehmann<sup>A</sup> Angelica M. Cesario<sup>A</sup>

May 6, 2015

#### VIA FIRST CLASS

AND ELECTRONIC MAIL Bruce McIver, President League of Voluntary Hospitals 555 West 57<sup>th</sup> Street New York, NY 10036

#### Re: League CBA: Appointment of arbitrators

Dear Mr. Mclver:

As a follow-up to my letter of April 29, 2015, I am writing to confirm that the parties' have agreed to appoint the following five (5) arbitrators to resolve disputes regarding the inclusion of residual titles under <u>Exhibit F-Residual Job Classifications</u> and organizing rights under <u>Attachment A - Union</u> <u>Organizing Rights</u> of the 1199-League Collective Bargaining Agreement.

> George Nicolau Daniel Brent Richard Adelman Homer LaRue Bonnie Weinstock

Very truly yours,

Daniel J. Ratner

cc: Daniel F. Murphy, Esq.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES

By:\_\_

Bruce McIver, President

Dated: May \_\_, 2015

1199SEIU UNITED HEALTHCARE WORKERS EAST

By:\_\_

George Gresham, President

Dated: May \_\_\_ 2015

#### SIDE LETTER RE: CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM/ DELEGATE TRAINING PROGRAM

Marc Z. Kramer, President League of Voluntary Hospitals 555 West 57th Street New York, N.Y. 10036

Re:1199-League 2021-2024 MOA Contract Administration Program/Delegate Training Program

Dear Mr. Kramer:

In the 2021-24 Memorandum of Agreement the parties extended the Contract Administrators and Delegate Training Programs ("Programs") from October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024. This letter memorializes the parties' intent to fully fund both Programs through that period.

The parties agree to extend the Programs and project that for the period of October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024, the expenses for both Programs will not exceed \$18.5 million. The total funding allocated for the Delegate Training Program is estimated to be \$1.6 million and the reimbursement amounts in Article V, Section 7 for delegate training days are to be \$340 per day for Guild members and \$608 per day for RNs. The Contract Administrator side letter will be updated accordingly. The total funding allocated to the Contract Administrator program during the October 1, 2018 to September 30, 2021 period is estimated to be \$16.9 million.

Any disputes regarding the funding of the Programs, the specific amounts of funding or the specific sources of funding shall be submitted to CIPC for resolution.

If the foregoing accurately reflects our understanding, please sign and return an executed copy for our files.

Very truly yours

George Gresham

Accepted: League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Marc Z. Kramer, President Dated: 3/29/22

#### AGREEMENT RE: FUNDING FOR CONTRACT ADMINISTRATORS

Agreement between the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York (League), as agent on behalf of its members (Member(s)), and 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East (Union) (collectively the parties) modifying the collective bargaining agreement between the League and the Union in effect for the period October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024 (CBA):

The Contract Administrators Program (CAP) shall be extended for the period October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2024 and total costs shall not exceed \$16.9 million. The program will continue under the same terms and conditions as described in the July 30, 2002 agreement and 2001-2005, 2004-2008, 2007-2011, 2009-2015, 2015-2018, and 2018-2021 League multi-employer CBA side letters, and subsequent written agreements adjusted to reflect the duration of this Agreement.

Funding shall be from the National Benefit Fund (NBF) surplus by way of credits to Employer contributions that would otherwise be due to the NBF (CAP Contribution Deductions); and

Whereas, the parties wish to specify the manner and timing of CAP Contribution Deductions;

NOW THEREFORE, the following shall constitute an amendment of the CBA:

Each Member shall take its CAP Contribution Deductions to fund the CAP for the periods during the monthly National benefit Fund Contributions specified below:

PERIOD

#### MONTH OF NBF CONTRIBUTION DEDUCTION

October 1, 2021-March 31, 2023 (18 Months) April 1, 2023-September 30, 2024 (18 Months) March 2023

September 2024

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the League and the Union have executed this Agreement.

1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

By, George Gresham, President

Date: 3/29/22

League of Voluntary Hospitals & Homes of NY

By, Marc Z. Kramer, President

Date: 3/29/22

# SIDE LETTER RE: DELEGATE TRAINING AND CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION STUDY

October 1, 2021

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: Delegate Training and Contract Administration Study

Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter sets forth our agreement regarding the Delegate Training and Contract Administration Study:

A study is to be done to improve the delegate training and contract administration programs. Representatives of Management and the Union will evaluate the effectiveness, the budget, the oversight, the original formulas used to determine the number of contract administrators, the number of delegate trainings and any other concerns. The study will result in recommendation for both programs by end of the year. This agreement is not intended to reduce funding for either program.

> Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Marc Z. Kramer, President

Accepted and Agreed to by:

1199SEIU Health Care Workers East

George Gresham, President

#### 1199SEIU-LEAGUE OF VOLUNTARY HOSPITALS AND HOMES OF NEW YORK COMMISSION ON WORKFORCE AND POLICY ISSUES

It is the intent of 1199SEIU and the League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York to form a Commission to:

1) Maintain a strong relationship between labor and management to ensure the delivery of high quality care to patients, a bright future for the workers that dedicate their lives to caring for others, and the sustainability of the health care institutions.

2) Develop a framework to identify and address workforce issues related to the transformation of the health care delivery system - issues that pose a challenge to maintaining a high quality workforce and strong union membership.

3) Conduct an environmental assessment and develop a joint advocacy agenda on emerging policy issues in Washington, D.C. and Albany that threaten the sustainability of New York's health care system and its workforce.

4) Ensure that healthcare workers have a continuing voice at the table through 1199SEIU and that healthcare workers in each sector enjoy appropriate wages and standards.

#### <u>Rationale</u>

The health care delivery system is in a period of rapid transformation, driven by new technologies and new reimbursement models to incentivize value-based care. These changes are shifting care delivery from inpatient hospital care to ambulatory care settings, and incentivizing the development of new lower-cost models of care. This shift is straining the financial health and viability of health care providers because the reimbursement structures are far lower in the ambulatory care setting than inpatient setting. These trends are expected to continue and potentially accelerate as health insurers (including the Medicare and Medicaid programs) seek to reduce the overall cost trends and get better value for their health care dollar.

The workforce implications of these changes pose significant challenges for the union and management alike. Therefore, thoughtful dialogue is required to develop solutions that balance ensuring a growing, strong union membership and the needs of its workers to earn a living wage and benefits, with the affordability for providers.

Issues to be addressed by the Commission include, but are not limited to, the following:

- impact of the growth in ambulatory care services and the emergence of new technologies on the workforce needs of providers, and the resulting job retaining needs of workers;
- alignment of the workforce cost structure with the economics of the new care delivery models (i.e., providing a living wage and

benefits within the new reimbursement levels); and,

 development of new, flexible job categories to accommodate the new care delivery models.

To support this work, the Commission will conduct an independent, environmental assessment of the current and emerging health care issues that impact on the financial sustainability of the health care system. In addition to guiding the work on the labor-management issues described above, the results will be used to develop a joint advocacy agenda to be carried out through the Healthcare Education Project.

#### Composition and Timeframe

The kick-off for the Commission would be a meeting between Chief Executive Officers and the President of 1199SEIU. The purpose of the meeting would be to discuss the Commission, the issues to be addressed, and officially name its members. Leadership reserves the right to invite Governor Cuomo to attend this meeting to educate him about the major issues facing the health care industry.

The Commission would convene as soon as practical thereafter and finalize consensus recommendations no later than July 1, 2019. The Commission shall be comprised of 6 individuals, with 3 union and 3 management representatives, and an outside individual serving as the Chair. The Chair would be responsible for facilitating the fact gathering on the issues discussed above to find common ground between the parties. A recommendation for the Chair would be Jason Helgerson, former New York State Medicaid Director, and currently Chief Solutions Officer, Helgerson Solutions Group.

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NURSING HOME COMMITTEE

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: Nursing Home Committee

Dear Mr. Gresham:

A committee made up of both Union and Management, and a designee from GNYHA, shall convene to work towards the following goals:

- 1. Securing state funding for Nursing Homes that meet high standards of quality of care.
- 2. Securing payment of monies already owed to League Nursing Homes for quality incentives, listed below:
  - \* Nursing Home Quality Initiative Incentive Payments for Five Years: 2013-2017
  - \* Universal Settlement Awaiting Fourth of Five Scheduled Payments
  - \* CINERGY Funding for Year I of Phase 2
  - \* NH Capital Payments
  - \* Implementation of SFY 2018-19 Budget Provision Restoring Fee-For-Service Medicaid Reimbursement for Long-Stay Nursing Home Residents

Very truly yours,

League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Marc Z. Kramer, President

Accepted and Agreed to by: 1199SEIU Healthcare Workers East

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: ARBITRATOR SELECTION

October 1, 2021

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: Arbitrator Selection Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter sets forth our agreement regarding arbitrator selection:

The Parties will meet as expeditiously as possible following ratification for the selection of arbitrators.

> Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Mark Z. Kramer President

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: 1199 NURSING HOME PROPOSAL

September 23, 2021

George Gresham, President 199SEJU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: 1199 Nursing Home Proposal

Dear George:

This letter sets forth our agreement regarding 1199's proposal entitled "Notice of Agreements to Transfer Management or Ownership of a Home." We agree that in the event that 1199 is successful in achieving agreement to that proposal in bargaining with both the Group of 65 and the Greater New York Healthcare Facilities Association, the League Nursing Homes will agree to the language that 1199 achieves with those groups.

> Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Mark Z. Kramer, President

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK HERO ACT

September 23, 2021

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter sets forth our agreement regarding the New York Hero Act, which is effective as of September 23, 2021. Specifically:

The Union agrees to waive all requirements set forth in Labor Law §§ 27-d, also known as Section 2 of the New York Hero Act (the "Act"), and to continue in lieu of those requirements the Safety and Health Committees established by Article XXXIX, Section 3 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, which shall have the authority to carry out all tasks listed in §27-d(4) of the Act.

If you are in agreement with these modifications, please sign below and return an executed copy for our files.

> Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Mark Z. Kramer, President

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NEW YORK CITY TEMPORARY SCHEDULE CHANGE LAW

July 16, 2018

George Gresham, President 1199 SEIU Healthcare Workers East 310 West 43rd Street New York, N.Y. 10036

Dear Mr. Gresham:

This letter sets forth our agreement regarding the New York City Temporary Schedule Change Law, which is effective as of July 18, 2018. Specifically:

The Union accepts all comparable benefits (including, but not limited to, vacation time, personal days, and unpaid short term leave) under the Collective Bargaining Agreement in lieu of any other benefits that may be available under the New York City Temporary Schedule Change Law ("Law") and expressly waives the provisions of the Law.

If you are in agreement with these modifications, please sign below and return an executed copy for our files.

> Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Mark Z. Kramer, President

George Gresham, President

#### SIDE LETTER RE: NYU PRO/TECH RATE ADJUSTMENTS

September 23, 2021

George Gresham, President 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East 498 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10018

Re: NYU Pro/Tech Rate Adjustments

Dear George:

This letter sets forth our agreement that the process negotiated between 1199 and NYU Langone Hospitals (NYU) set forth in the December 10, 2018 agreement between 1199 and NYU shall continue to apply to Pro/Tech rate adjustments at NYU institutions instead of the process set forth in paragraph 11 of the September 23, 2021 MOA.

Very truly yours, League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes

Mark Z. Kramer, President

George Gresham, President

# INDEX

# A

Absences 12, 60, 61, 65, 66, 69 Additional facilities 8 Agency workers 17, 18 Arbitration 12, 15, 22, 23, 33, 40, 42, 60, 76, 77, 78, 79, 84, 87, 88, 89, 90, 93, 95, 102, 104, 106, 107, 121, 129, 131, 134, 148, 151, 154

## B

Benefit fund 3, 16, 30, 31, 66, 72, 75, 77, 125, 132, 193 Bumping 33

# С

Child care fund 13, 16, 93 CIPC 5, 23, 24, 27, 29, 35, 36, 41, 42, 59, 61, 76, 84, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 96, 102, 104, 121, 126, 127, 130, 131, 132, 192 Credit union 11, 12, 99

## D

Delegates 13, 14, 134, 135, 137, 144, 145 Disability 13, 38, 60, 65, 66, 70, 73 Disciplinary grievances 86 Discipline 84, 91, 189 Discrimination 5, 124 Displacement 19, 20, 25 Dues 9, 10, 11, 12, 98, 129

## E

Effective dates 4, 74, 96 Employment service 3, 14, 16, 17, 89, 95, 96 Excess sick leave 66 Expedited mediation 84 Extra hours 17

## F

Family and medical leave act 70 Free days 8, 62, 63, 64, 119

# G

Grants 24 Grievance mediation 87 Grievance procedure 88, 89, 90, 106 Grouping 32

# Η

Hiring 14, 15, 16, 27, 29, 31, 39 Holiday pay 16, 71 Holidays 8, 21, 30, 35, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 85, 87, 119, 154 Hours 7, 9, 10, 17, 19, 21, 23, 27, 33, 38, 40, 41, 42, 58, 59, 61, 62, 63, 65, 83, 84, 85, 86, 91, 93, 132, 134, 139, 140, 154, 155 Housing 4, 93

# I

Initiation fees 10, 11, 12

# J

Job security fund 3, 15, 16, 23, 24, 27, 28, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 89, 127, 151 Jury duty 61, 69, 70

# L

Layoff 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38, 66, 71, 72 Leave 8, 11, 12, 16, 17, 18, 19, 30, 38, 58, 60, 65, 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, 73, 128, 189, 201 LMI fund 4, 29, 91, 94, 95, 96, 122 Loss of seniority 19 Lunch period 58

## Μ

Management rights 3, 80 Mediation 84, 87, 88, 90 Meetings 13, 14, 87, 110, 111, 137, 144, 145, 155 Membership 9, 14, 20, 23, 98, 150, 195 Minimum rates 39, 119, 120 Monitoring 59, 83

## N

Negotiations 42, 83, 92, 93, 102, 128, 148, 151

# 0

On-call 40, 58, 59, 61, 69 Organizing 109, 134, 135, 136, 140, 141, 142, 144 OSHA 93, 154, 155 Overtime 17, 23, 38, 40, 42, 58, 59, 61, 74, 132

## Р

Part-time 8, 9, 14, 15, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23, 27, 30, 33, 38, 58, 90, 94 Past practices 3, 71, 119 Penalties 3, 22, 23, 84 Pension 76, 78, 151 Permanent employee 18 Political action 11, 12, 100 Preferred provider program 74 Probationary period 15, 18, 22, 23, 27, 29, 31, 35, 39, 69 Professional 4, 28, 41, 42, 71, 94, 184, 188 Professional conferences 71 Promotions 19, 32, 35, 37 Protected employee 25 Pyramiding 59, 62

# R

Recall 14, 16, 19, 20, 21, 24, 25, 28, 29, 32, 33, 37, 38 Records 52, 77, 78, 110 Registered nurses 8, 137 Regular work week 15, 19, 58 Reports 59, 77, 83, 84, 129 Residual units 9 Resignation 66, 84 Rest periods 59 Rotation of shifts 62

# S

Scheduling 19, 42, 59, 88 Seniority 3, 16, 18, 19, 24, 25, 71, 89 Separability 3, 92 Sexual harassment 13 Shifts 8, 62 Social workers 40, 64 Students 8, 14, 42 Subcontracting 80, 83 Suspension 84, 87, 135, 154

# Т

Time worked 61, 65, 66 Training and upgrading fund 3, 16, 18, 28, 70, 71, 72, 89, 127

# U

Uniform allowance 80 Uniforms 80 Union activity 3, 13 Union notices 13 Unused vacation 84 Upgrading 3, 16, 18, 28, 70, 71, 72, 89, 127

## V

Vacancy 14, 15, 16, 17, 21, 22, 25, 32, 33, 35, 37, 41, 42, 62, 78, 83, 106 Vacation 16, 19, 37, 41, 58, 63, 64, 65, 66, 84, 154, 189, 201 Visitation 3, 13

## W

Wage increases 24, 38 Wages and minimums 3, 38, 91 Weekends off 60 Work day 58, 59, 60, 61, 63, 66, 69 Work week 8, 9, 15, 19, 27, 40, 58, 61, 62

# NOTES



## 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

498 7th Avenue New York, NY 10018 (212) 582-1890 1199SEIU.org ¶∑ @@1199SEIU

## League of Voluntary Hospitals and Homes of New York

555 W. 57th Street, Suite 1530 New York, NY 10019 (212) 956-8900

